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PREFACE

For many years there has been & need for a compiled recoid of the
facts about Loulsburg College history. The collection has been diffie-
cult to compile and is not complete because of the lack of records
covering certain periods.

The writer wishes (o acknowledge with appreciation the encourage-
ment and advice given by Dre J. Re Melton of the Appalachian State
Teachers College Craduate Facully and the helpful suggestions made by
Dre. Ce Po Eggers and Mr., Cratis Williams of the same faculty.

She elso wishes to thank those who have lent early records and
documents and have provided other useful information,.

Finally she wishes to thank the Louisturg College administration,
faculty, staff, and students for thelr interest in this work. She
particularly thanks Mrs. Elsa Yerborough, the librarian, for her
assistance in gathering materials.
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CHAPTER I

THE PURPOSE OF THE STUDY, A PREVIEW OF THE HISTORY,
AND FACTS AEOUT FRANKLIN COUNTY

Louigturg College is the oldest school in the United States which
functions today as a junior college. It is the oldest coliege in the
United States connected with the Methodlist denomination. It is the only
Junior college belonging to the North Carolina Conference of the Vetho-
dist Churche

I. PURPOSE OF THE STUDY

It was the purpose of this study to put together the story of
Louisburg College as it developed from an early North Carolina academy
to a modern junior colloge.

The story is long and has meny parts. The parts tell of a begine
ning closely assoclated with the founding of the town of Loulsbturg, of
geslous founders, of struggles during wars and periods of depression, of
colorful periods of prosperity, and of the efforts of devoted teaschers
and friends.

II. A PREVIEW OF THE COLLECE HISTORY

loulsburg College is a fully aceredited, co=-educational junior
college owned and operated by the North Carolina Conference of the lethow-
dist Church and is located in the town of Louisburg, North Carolina, in
Franklin County, about thirty miles northeast of Raleigh and forty niles
east of Durham.
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The college is located today where it Legan--in the center of town
in an area containing a large oak prove. The present twelve-acre campus
is a part of the twenty-four acres set aside in 1779 as a Town Common.
The town commissioners immediately declded to use the Conmon for educaw
tional purposes, and it haes never been used for anything else.

The school was founded in 1787 as Franklin Academy, a proprietary
school for boys, chartered by the State legislature, The writer has
found no record of the operation of the school after 1787 until a second
charter was granted by the State legislature in 1802. The acadeny
opened in 1805, offering a wide range of subjects, wl th Matthew Dickine
son, & Yole graduate of Somer, Connecticut, as the first teacher. The
Acadenmy building was placed on the east slde of the Common where it
stands today back of the Mills High School building. Franklin Academy
remained open until it was absorbed by 1ills school, the public school,
in 1905,

In 1813 a Female Department wes added to Franklin Academy and was
called the Louisburg Female Acadenys A legislative act named as trustees
some of the seme men who were trustees of Franklin Male Academy, and the
two academies for some time were thought of and treated as one school.
The Female .cademy building was erected in 181k in the west grove of the
Common, the present college campus.

The two academies remained open but became a part of a larger
operation vhen the Louisburg Femele College wes organiszed in 1855 as a
joint-stock company to esteblish a college of high stending for young
women. Instruction in the college began in 1857. The Female Acadeny
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became the preparatory department of the ecollege, a department which was
conducted continuously until 1930. Franklin Male Academy continued to
operate until 1905,

Singce the Franklin Acadeumy and the Female jcadexy never closed
until the turn of the twentieth century except for a few days during the
occupancy of Louisburg by the Union Army, it is often stated that Louls-
burg College has never closed. On the contrary, the college actually
was closed in 1865 but was reopened in 1866, In 1878 Louisburg College
clogsed again, that time for a period of eleven years. A new interest in
the college brought about its reopening in 1889 by Mr. 5. D. Bagley. It
has remained open since then.

Although the school has been influenced by Methodist leaders since
its beginning, its relationship to the North Carolina Conference of the
Methodist Church begen in 1866 when (reensboro Female College, a Metho=
dist school, was moved to Loulsburg and operated undér the name of
lLoulsburg Femsle College. Since then Loulsburg College has been opere
ated under the suspices of the North Caroling Methodist Conference,
although the Conference gove nothing to its support until 1910, ir.

De Ne Duke, who inherited the college property from his father, Mr.
Washington Duke, gave the property in fee simple to the Conference in
1907.

Loulsburg College has been a junior college since 1915. The
college became & co=educsbional junior college in 1931.

For the 1957=58 term Loulsburg College had an enrollment of four
hundred students, end & faculty and staff of thirty-four. The college



property is valued at §1,600,000,00 and has an endowment of $138,000,00.
Becsuse resources have been given during the years, and because some of
the teachers during the years have given faithful service, the college
has kept expenses to the minimum, For the 195859 term the totel ex
penses for a boarding student are {705.00, For those who cannot pay the
full smount, there are three forms of aids free scholarships, service
or labor scholarships, and loans.

During the present administration the work st Loulsburg College
is Wuilt around three major curriculas Ceneral Liberal Arts, Pre-
Professional, and Terminal., The college awards an Assoclate in Arts
Degree to those completing the requirements for the course pursued.

IITI., LOUISBURG AND FRANELIN COUNTY

The community in which Louisburg College is located has many
interesting features.

The County Frenklin, formed from Bute County in 1779, is located
in the northeastern pledmont section of the state and covers an area of
1,68 seuare miles. The population in 1850 was 11,7133 today the popule-
tion is approximately 31,300.) Frenklin County is bordered by Nash
County on the east, Warren County on the northeast, Vence County on the
north, Cranville County on the west, and Wake County on the south,

The chief crops of the county are corn, cotton, and tobaccoj the
chief industrial products are metal molding, cotton goods, lumber, and

ltnterview with Alex T. Wood, Register of Deeds, Franklin County,
Horth Carolina.
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pulpwood. TFranklinton, where Sterling iills and a branch of Purlingion
Mills ere located, is the industrial center of the county.

Loulsburg, the county seat, is a little town known for its culture
and charme The reputation for beauty end culture is due largely to the
oak groves surrvounding large old homes and to the town's long assoclation
with educa Hon, The town, built at the fords of the Tar River on the old
stage road betwsen Richmond and Raleigh, has a population of approxie
mately twenty-six hundred. The town was settled in 1758, nawed in 176k,
and incorporated in 1799.

There are many distinctions honoring louisburg and Franklin
County.

The author of the First Article opposing the tax measures of the
British Covernment was Ceorge Sims of Loulsburg. The incldent that led
to the psssage of the North Carclina Iynching lLew occurred aboub two
miles north of Loulsburg. There a group of Franklin County citizens
hanged Major Iynch, a tax collsctor worklng under Covernor Tryon.

One of Loulsburg's citizens, Orren Randolph Smith, designed the
first of the Confederacy's four flage, the Steys and Bars, v ich was
first unfurled in fromt of the Franklin County Courthouse.

Edwin We Fuller, author of Angel in the Cloud and other Poems and

Sea CAft, was born in Louisburg. Fis novel Sea (ift (1873) wes so
popular with the students at the Universily of North Carolina that it
wes called the Freshman's Bible.

Five miles from loulsburg, Fenton Foster perfected his invention
of the linotype machine, Foster applied for the patent just after it had



é
been granted to Mergenthaler. It is said that pleces of type have lmen
found on the grounds of the Fenton Foster home.

"Spelling John® was the name given to John Allen of near loulse
burg becavse of his unusual memory. HPis family has & goblet that he won
as the best speller in North Caroline and a letter signed Yy Robert E.
lee commending John Allen's outetanding record es & scholar at Vashinge
ton (Washinrton and lee) College.
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FIGURE 1
Map of Louisburg showing College property.

Noe L and Noe. 5 combined are the same as the original town commons



CHAPTER II
THE BECINNING (1779-1802)

Loulsburg College had its beginning in the period that witnessed
America's struggle for independence, the coming of lethodism to North
Carolins, and the establishment of the town of Louisburg and the county
of Franidin in MNorth Carolina, Its founders included patriots of the
Tevolution, pioneers of Horth Carclina Methodism, and the first comnise
sioners of Loulsburg and Franklin County. Its beginning is so closely
associated with the founding of loulsburg that often the beginning dates
of the town and of the school have been confused.

In 1778 the Ceneral Assembly of North Carolina enscted legisla-
tion creating Varren and Franklin Counties in the territory that had
been Bute County. The Assembly also appointed John Nerwood, Matthew
Thomas, and Joseph Norris as commissioners for Franklin County and eme
vowvered the commission to purchase ome hundred acres of land for a place
for erecting a court house and for other purposes necessary in esteblish-
ing a tom.l

On April 17, 1779, the same commissioners purchased fram Pate-
ville Milner and his wife, Jacobina, ome hundred acres of land on the
north side of the Tar Piver to establish the town of Loulsburg.® The

commissioners were directed to

Lyalter Clark, Laws of 1777=78 (Vol. XXIV of The State Records of
North Carclina. 26 volS.3 Coldstoros MNash Brothers, 1905)s PPe 227=230e

2yranidin County Register of Deeds, Book I, pe le
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seesel apart a lot of ground convenient and sufficient for the Court
House, prison end stocks and slso to lay out 100 other lots, each lot
to contain one half acre with convenlent souares and the overplus of
land (if any) to remain as & common for the use of sald town until by
lew it shell be appropriated to other uses.3

The town comuissioners must heve had in mind using the Commnon for
educetional purposes, for the property has never been used for other than
school purposes. The earliest knowm mep showing the town of Loulsburg
marks as a Common twenty-two and one fourth acres of the one hundred
acres purchased for the town--that "overplus of land," the land since
known as the school grovu.h The present arrangement of Main Streeti,
which divides the school property into two groves, is the same as shown
on the mapj and the oldest streets, running parallel to Main Street,
still end at the school property.

The Common, which is the present school property, was located on
the hirhest point in the town, near which there were "al least two bold
springs of constantly running 1!:&#.09."5 The school at first bore the
neme of the county, Franklin, in honor of Benjamin Franklin, It now
bears the name of the town of Loulsburg, which, according to Edward
Hooker, was named after lLouls XVI. An entry in Hooker's diary, dated

November 30, 1808, states:

hﬂlm M’ 220 9&.’ Pe 303.
byraniain, op. citis, Book 32, pe 213.

Swdward Hill Davis, Historical Sketches of Franilin County
(Releigh: Edwards & Broughtom Go., 19L0),; pe ile
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seesThe County was nawed after Dr. F. and the village after Louis XVI

at the time Dr. F. as our agent in the revolution went to F, and
obtained supplies frem the French.®

I. CHARTERS

On Jamary 6, 1787, the North Carolina Oeneral Assembly passed an
act authorizing the esteblishment of an scademy in the county of Franklin
in the town of Louisburg.! The charter stated that the establishing of
an acadentyy would be an advantage to Horth Carolina in general and to
Franklin County in particular. Constituted and appointed as trustees of
the academy were Doctor John Hing, Villiam Lancaster, Josizh Love,
Benjamin Seawell, Hobert Coodlow, Robert Bell, Jorden Hill, Francis
Taylor, Hugh Heys, Williem CGreen, Thomae Stokes, and Doctor Varell,
Esquires. The trustees were given full power and authority to receive
2ll money and other property which had been and would be subseribed for
the purpose of erecting the academy, to pay for the house already con-
tracted for, to employ a tutor or tutors, and to perform every act that
a majority of the trustees would {ind necessary for the good of the
acadenyye The trustees were also given the power to make such rules, not
opposed to the laws of Worth Carolina, that would be necessary for the
well being of the students who proved their literary merit before leav-
ing the schoolj however, the trustees were not to confer any degrees.

égharles L. Coon, North Cerolina Schools and Academies 1790-18L0
(Releighs Edwards & Broughton, 1J10)s Pe ODe

Tclark, op. cites ppe 876=878. (See Appendix B, p. 16l.)
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Yo record has been found to reveal what happened concerning the
acadery between 1787 and 1802, vhen snother charter was pranted by the
North Carolina Ceneral Assembly.® The second charter stated that the
establishing of the Academy was Yessentlial to the happiness and prosper=
ity of the community." It named John Hunt, Frencis Taylor, Epps loody,
John Haywood, Joshua Perry, Archibald Davis, William lencaster, Jeve=
mish Perry, Junior, Richard Femner, Ceorge Tunstall, Creen Hill,
william Oreen, Alexander Falecon /Falconer/, and William Williams, Junior,
Becuires, and Major Jeremich Perry to be known as the trustees of the
Franklin Acadeny.

II. TRUSTEES

Vhatever may have happened during the fifteen years between
charters, the trustees, being leaders of thelr community and state,
would indicate that they could not have been unconcerned with the idea
of esteblishing a school.

It is significant that the names of William Creen and John Hunt
appesr on the school charters as trustees and on the deed of 1779 as
commissioners to direct the buillding of the town of ILoulsburge The
names of William Lancaster, Francils Tegylor, and William Green appear on
both the school charter of 1787 and the charter of 1802,

On the first two Doards of Trustees were two ministers, two
doctors, three members of the legislature, one renowned judge, two noted
patriots of the Revelution, and two founders of Methodism in North Carolina.

8cm:m, Ope cites po 8he (See Appendix C, p. 166.)
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Dr. John King, one of the first trustees of Franklin icademy, came
to America from England in 1769 as a ploneer of Methodism two years be=-
fore Bishop Asbury came. Dre King had been educated at Oxford, was a
graduate in medieine, and had been disinherited by his family when he
became identified with the Wesleoyan movement. He preached for ten years
in Yew Jersey, Deleware, and Marylend before receiving his appointment
to the North Carolina Cireuit in 1777.

In Bute County (now Franklin and Warren) he married a sister of
Colonel Benjamin Seawell, He soon retired from the active ministry to
practice medicine in FPranklin County, where he had acocuired large holde
ings of lend, John King is said to have been "the leading spirit in
orgenizing the Louisburg Acadesy®" and a "sensible, zealous, and very
useful® man.”

Another one of the first trustees, Colonsl Benjamin Seewell, was
one of the distinguished patriots of the Revolution. At the Provineisl
Congress at Halifax, May 2, 1776, he was appointed as & member of the
committee to secure armes for the stetet's defense. MNe represented Bute
County at the Halifex Assembly, November 12, 1776, when a Constitution
and a B1ll of Rights were adopted. Tt was he vho introduced the bill in
the Senate for the divieion of Bute County into Franklin and Warren
counties, The act establishing the county of Franklin suthorized that
the first court be held al “eawell's house.

News item in The Releigh Times, /he dp/e
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After more than twenty years as an honored citizen of Pute and
Franklin counties, Seawell moved to the part of North Carolina that is
now Tennepsee, where he and others were granted lands because of oube
standing service in the Revolution. There he contimued his interest in
civie effairs through his practice as a lawyer and as a prosecuing
attorney.10

Cn his death in 1821, The Thig, of Nashville, Ternessee, said of
feawell:

seelie was not only a great defender of the peoplets rights but 2
real Christian as was demonstrated in his last moments., So died a
great patriot and e good cltizen,

Reverend Major Creen Hill, trustee of Frenklin Acsdemy by the Act
of 1802, stood up for imerica's independence from Englend at New Dern
end ot valifax,)? ve served as a member of each session of the Provine
eial Congress in North Carolina; he served one time as State Treasurerj
he gerved as major and chaplain in the Revolubionary War, Me is most
often remembered as the pioneer preacher in vhose home the first Methoe
dist Conference in North Carclina was held on April 20, 1785, At that
Conference there were present twenty preachers, among whom were Dishop
pstury, Bishop Coke, and Dr. John Kingel3 Other Methodist Conferencos

]'ODB‘V’.I, /el _c__iﬁn, PPe 59“600
nIbid., Pe 6.

12yews item in ¥alone Scrapbook, /n. de/ (from Speech by Hon.

13yows item in Malone Scrapbook, /h. de/.
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were held in the same house in 1790, 1791, and 179L. That s.me house,
possibly built by Green Hill himself, 1s still in use by his descendants
and is well known as "Cyeen Hill House." Vhen he was nesrly sixty years
old, Creen Hill and his family moved to Tennessee and built a home he
called "Tiberty Mill," similer in many waye to the home in Franklin
County. Liberty Hill 2lso becmme a meeting place for the Vethodists.
This trustee, known as preacher, pstriot, and host, married a sister of
Col. Benjemin Soavmll.m

The three patriot, planter, and preacher trustees nemed sbove
were not the only eminent trustees of Franklin Academy in its beginning.
Judge John Paywood was eleeted Solicitor Cenerel of North Carolina,
Jttorney Cenersl, and Judge of Superior Court.e ¥hile in North Carclina,
he published two works, Haywood's Momnal end Haywood's Justice. e was

& member of the Bosrd of Trustees of the University of North Carclina.
In 1807 he moved to Tennessee, vhere he contimued to be recognized as
sudpe, tescher, snd suther.l® QOolonsl W. L. Ssunders wrote of Judge
Hayvwoods

esosdJudge Haywood wes one of the ablest lawyers and grestest Judges

thutont.dormdthobnwmmdthtbmohmﬂmﬁwotm
shotbe,

ll‘Dﬂm, 2. 21_5_., Phe 63"6!30
157b4d., pe 138,
16y4114am 1. Saunders, "Prefatory Notes" (Vol. VIT of The Colonial

Records of North Carolims., 10 vols.j Raleighs Josephus Daniels,
to the st&“, 1890), Pe XXXLe
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Others have regarded him as the greatest lawyer that North Caro-
lina has ever produced.t’

Archibald Davis, Jordan Hill, Williem Oreen, and William Williasms,
other trustees, all served es members of the Ceneral issembly from Franke
1lin County sometime between 1780-1836.18 Alexander Palconer was & prace
tioing attornay.l? Joshua Perry, Jeremish Perry, Jre, and Major Jeremish
Perry were prominent land owners and were members of a family that
ardently supported the Ioulsburg school for many yem.zo

The early citizens of Franklin County and the town of Ioulsburg by
their patriotism, religious zesl, civic responsidbility, and hunger for
knowledge created a2 school born to give ranklin County youth the aduca=
tion essential to freedam, They gave 2 bepimning to an institution that
has provided educational oWthiea to the youth of eastern North
Carolina since its opening.

In its earliest years Franklin Acadeny, like many other private
schools in the state, helped meot the educationsl needs during the long
delay until Yorth Caroline began to provide public schools. Although
the first step towerd public education was made when the Worth Carolina
fonstitubion of 1776 made provision fer schools,?d the next step was not

17navis, ope ci%e, pe 139
13_1._'9_151_.. pp. 23-2k,
19‘]_.'_b_:|£., pe 27,

201bid., pe 110.

2lrdgar Ve Wnight, Tublic School Pducation in North Cerolina
(Boston: Houghton MAfflin Company, 1910)s pe Ole
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made until 1825, when a former Franklin Academy teacher, Charles Apple=-
white Will, introduced the law which created a fund for the establishment
of coumon schools.22 The public schools were established in 1839, when
the first state public school lew was passed.23

In its beginning "ranklin Academy, so far as is known, was not
unlike other academies chartered by authority of the North Carolina
Oeneral Assembly end placed under the control of leaders of the local
communities. Like numerous other academies, Franklin Academy first

served as a forerunner of & public school,

22Ib1d0 3 PDe 79-80.
231b1do. PPe m—ms.



FIGURE 2

Louisburg Female Academy Building
Erected 181k - Burned 1927



CHAPTER ITI
THE ACADEMIES (1802-1855)

After the first charter in 1787, in spite of the hardships of the
independence movement in America, the first trustees of Franklin Academy
kept alive the determination to establish a school in their community.

Two years after the Charter of 1802 the trustees saw their dream
become a reality. In the Raleigh Register of December 17, 180k, the
public was informed that Franklin Academy would open its doors less than
one month later, January 1, 1805.%

First chartered in 1787, and again in 1802, Franklin Academy did
open on January l, 1805, with Matthew Dickinson, a Yale graduate, as the
first preceptor. The academy, by 1828 known as the Louisburg Male
Acadeny, operated as a boys' academy until 1905, when it became a part
of the Louisburg public school.? So far as is known the academy was
open without a break except for a short time in 1865, when the Union
Army occupied the building and the academy grove.’ Mr. Dickinson during
his three years with the school sometimes had as many as ninety students.
He had as his assistant lMr. Davis Mayhew, a graduate of Williams College.’

lcharles L. Coon, North Carolina Schools and Academies 1790-18L0
(Raleighs Edwards & Broughton, 1915)s De Ole

2yrs. Ben Holden & Mrs. Ormond M. Collins, "Franklin County and
Franklinton," North Carolina Fducation, XIV (May, 19L8), p. L85.

3paward Hill Davis, Historical Sketches of Franklin County
(Raleigh: Edwards & Broughton Go., I9LB)s; Pe 293

hCOOﬂ’ Ope ﬁo’ pe 90.
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Tn 1813 a Female Department was added.” A legislative act of 181k
named a board of trustees for a Louisburg Female Acadeny comprised of
John D, Hawkins, Creen Hill, Jr., Jesse Person, Robert A. Teylor, William
urphey, Benjamin F. Hawkins, Jordan Hill, Nathan Fatterson, Richard

6

Fermer, Richard Inge, Joel King, and Alexander Falconer. These men were

among forty-three signers of a paper, dated April 5, 181L, stating:s

We the subscribers impressed with the necessity and advantages of
Female education, and being desirous to establish a seminary for
that purpose at or near the towm of Louisburg do agree and bind our-
selves severally, to pay to the Comuissioners hereafter to be
appointed for the purpose of letiing and superintending the building
thereof, the sum set against our seversl nemes--the site as also the
plan & model of the building to be agreed upon by Commisslioners to
be elected or appointed by the body of Subscribers here shall
be authorized to contract with a ¥orkman to perform the Work.

The total amount of the money "set against our several names" was
§795.008

Then the new bullding wes completed, Miss Harriet Partridge, from
lassachusetts, beceme the first preceptress. The Female Academy was in
operation until 1855, when it was converted into the Louisburg Female
Gollogo.9

So great was the emphasis on education in Franklin County between
1805 and 1855 that the period was referred to as "The Educational

5000!1’ Ope _0_5_.30_0, pe ke

Guptstorical Sketeh of Louisburg College," Bulletin of Louisburg
gollege, Catalogue Issue, 1958-59, pe 1lh.

Tianuseript in the Hewkins Papers in the Southern Historicsl
Collection, University of North Carclina.

S1bid.
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Awakening" in a pageant written as a part of the sesqui~centennial cele-
bration in 1929,10

lirs, Susan Bennett Wester, a former teacher at the Academy and a
native of Louisburg, in 1902 wrote that "Louisburg has always been a
great and grond educational center. I wager it has given to the world
more cultured, perfect Christian men and women then any other place of
its size in the whole world,"t

As early as 18L7 the town was referred to as an educational
center: "Does it not appear that Loulsburg is the very nursery of
education, vhen we think of the muber of teachers that has gone out
from here,"12

I. PUBLIC SUPPURT, FRODLEMS, PHYSICAL BUUIPHENT,
AND ACADEMIC PROCRAM

The history of the two academies unfolds many colorful items of
educational interest in eastern Worth Carolina during the early part of
the nineteenth century. The schools enjoyed the strong support and
approval of the community. Louisburg, during the time of the Male
Academy, was described as a place where "literature is much respected...
and literary men revercnced. "L

10vyourth Period" in Pageant for Sesqui-Centennial Celebration,
in serapbook belonging to lire J. E. Malone, Louisburg, North Carclina.

llyews item in The Franklin Times, Wov. 1k, 1902,
12pamiseript letter from Louisa Thomas to her sister lirs. Jones

Fuller, Feb. 9, 1847, in Jones & Fdwin Wiley Fuller Collection, Nami=
script Room, Duke University.

130001‘1, Ope 2_1_-&.’ pe 90.



21
It is related that when the [irst teacher arrived ",..he had no
property and nothing to recommend him but his books and educstion, /yet/
he received flattering testimonials of respoct and was treated with
equal civility,nll
In one of the documents {rom the Thomas Hendersom lLetter Book

(1810«1811) there is recorded an opinion that
Altho Frenklin /County/ camnot at present boast of amy first rate
Characters yet it is boldly asserted that she possesses as respect=-
able a yeomanry as any County in the State--her citizens in general
are men of industry, of handsome information and eager after know-
ledge--and the desire which &ll classes mni.fu{scf properly educate
ing their children does them the highest honor.

School ammouncements and advertisements frecuently included words
such as "The Trustees flatter themselves" in announcing the employment
of a teacher, or in references to the healthy climate, or low cost at
the school. Frequently the trustees used "happy to announce," "have
much pleasure in amncuncing," or "with much satisfaction umm."lé

In the Halifax Journal, Jsnuary 6, 1306, there appeared this
announcenent signed by eight trustees:

The Trustees of the Franklin Academy are happy in being able to

announce to the Public the present flourishing situation of this

institution, and fair prospect of ite rising to a much higher
degree of eminence. 7

As part of an announcement siyned by eight trustees in the

Releigh Minerva on December 17, 1807, is the statement:

Lirpig,

15pavis, op. cites pe 67¢
16g00n, ops cite, pp. 8L=90.
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The Trustees have the further pleasure of adding, that during the
three years that the Institution has been in operation, although
attended by not less than lofventylgtudem annually, the greatest
order and decorum have prevalled.

This announcement for the Female Acadeny appeared in the Raleigh
Register, December 2, 182k, and was signed by the Secretary of the
Boards

The Trustees believe that taking into view the high qualifica=-

tions of the preceptrese, the healthiness of the situation, the low
rate of board, and the advantages of regularly attending divine

worship, this institution pﬁaonta to the public claims not sure
passed by any in the State.

The following announcement asppeared in the Haleigh Register,
Decenber 30, 1825!

The Trustees tender their warmest acknowledgements t0 & generous
publiec, for the support heretofore given to this Institution, and
can but indulge the pleasing hope, that...this qulm will contimme
to receive a liberal share of public patronage.

Twelve years later, in the haleigh hegister, the trustees re-

ported that
The very liberasl share of patronage extended to these Institu-
tions, for the last 1. years, induces the Trustees to look for
a contimuence of the same,
The Trustees not only sponsored school edvertisements and upheld
the teachers they employed, but by all evidences they also attended 211
school=closings "to review the ierit and Scholarship of each student,"2e

The school=-closings took place semi-snmually and usually lasted two dayse.

13_1_9_1@_.. pe 88,
19_12&., pe 100,
201vid., pe 101.
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A typiecal Fxamination anmouncement was printed in the June 17,

1505, Raleiph Register:

The semleanmual Examination of the Students of the Franklin
Acadenyy, will commence on Tuesdsy the 2d of July next, when the
Trustees will attend to review the Merit and Scholarship of each
Student.

On Wednesday, the succeeding day, the Young Centlemen will de-
liver Orations selected for the occasion.

The whole to conclude by the Exhibition of a Comedy and Farce,
for the benefit of the Academy. The Performance will begin at half
after 7 otclock P.M.

By Order
Lewisburg, June 12 e Hill, Sec of Board®s

(n reporting the results ‘of that Examination, the Trustees gave
this statement to the Raleigh Register, July, 1805:

seeln the 2d inst. in the presence of & most numerous

of ladies and gentlemen, the Students were examined in the English
Grammar, Ceopgraphy, and in the Latin and French Languages. On the
34, they delivered select Orations and Dialoguess and in the evenw
ing acted a Flay, in which they were assisted by some young (entle=
men in the neighborhood, for the benefit of the Academy. The whole
was conducted with the utmost decorum and regularity, and the per-
formances of the students very far exceeded the expectations of the
Trustees. They cannot refrein from saying, that the highest
eulogiunm is due to the exertions as well as to the abilities of .
Dickinson, the Preeident. And the Trustees, from this experience of
the progress made Ly the Students, can predioct with much confidence,
thattho?mnknnmﬂwunbnmmwmmam
public institutions,

At times & member of the Board of Trustees would address the stu=~
dents to express the feelings of the trustees, Such was the case in
December, 1806, when the students had "in all their performances ex—
ceeded the sanguine expectations of the Trustees"s

231bids
zhlbid., PDe 85‘86.
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YOUNG CENTLEMEN,
sesfome of you have particularly distinguished yourselvesy o1l of
you have performed your parts exceedingly well, and are entitled to
your approbation. Your examination yesterdsy, and your exhibition
i R e g Ao B S B
¥y

On school=closing days, usnually the announcements were made.

Trom the June, 1820, Examination at the Female Academy, & full
account ae printed in The Star on June 16 has been preserved. The re-
port divided the pupils inte nineteen classes, the oldest pupils in
Glass T. An extra paragraph reported on Drawing and Painbing,20

In 1832 when Mr, and lMrs. Bobbitt had charge of the Academies,
during a three=~day program the trustees "eritically examined" the pupils
with the assistance of a well known linguist and mathematician, the
Reverend J. MeCutchen, of Washington College, Virginia.27

In the years of the academies "Commencement" was a word used to
announce the begimning of school, For example, under the heading
"Frenklin Acedemy Commencement for 1807" is the sentence: "The Franklin
Academy will be opened on the first londay in January next for Lhe recep-
tion of Students."2® Another example comes from sn 1826 ennouncement:
"The next session of the Franklin Academy will commence on Monday the

26th of June."?

25!!)1}:!., PPe 86“87.

261bid., ppe 96~98. Also see copy under Curriculum pe 30 in this
mpmo

27Ibid. 3 Do 103.
ZBMd oy De 87.
29Ibi.d. s Pe 101.
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Mre He He Davis, in his Historical Sketches of Franklin County,

suggests that the trustees of the Academies paid for more than coumence=
ment announcements. He supports his suggestion with this statement of
accounts

Board of Trustees,

To Matthew Dickinson, Ir.

To L:oqén.ng Satterwvhite's horse 36 days, shillings V.C. per day,
10.67.

To eight days work clearing averme and the Spring end attending at
the Academy during examinations and exhibitions at L V.C. per

day, 533 ]/30
To 20 lbs., of candles at 203 VeCe por pound, 7 750,
To the fellowing articles used at Examinations and Exhibitions:
To one gellon of Cognag, 2.00.
To one gallon of whiskey, 1.00,
To one gallon of Rum, 2.00,
To two gallons of Apple brandy, 2.00.
To 100 Segars, 500
Alsos

June 10, 1808, To the Board of Trustees. I saw ¥r. Dickinson
pay Sancho for fiddling, three dollars for music at Exhibition.

Chas. he 7111,39

Even though most of the available information presents an atti-
tude of optimism and encouragement, the school supporters were not withe
out school problems--financial, socisl, and academic,

A letter from Viss Mory Nemsey, teacher, to the Trustees dated
April L, 1824, indicates financial and socisl problems confronted then.
In the letter ifiss Nemsey asked “an amendment of terms" to allow her
£300,00 more salary.

"fou are a body. I am an individual," she stated. She referred
to the financial situation as if the school were in jeopardy at the timej

3%!71', ﬂo 9_&.’ PPe 38=39.



26
and she reminded the Trustees that they were at liberty to advertise for
another teacher if they could not meet her terms.

It would appear that some soclal problem at school had come to the
attention of the trustees, for liiss Ramsey said in the letter:

"I am glad you so fully avow your disapprobation of my leting /sic/
those persons be married at the Academy., Far be it from me to want any-
one involved in consequence of my imprudence. I confess, it was an
impropriety. Put T have nothing to sdvance in self-defence,"3k

The board ohviously settled the problems with satisfaction since
the school announcement of the Female Acadeny Commencement for 1826 gave
notice of liiss Ramsey's return and praised her for her “ability, zeal,
and industry,"32

A similar snnouncement concerning iilss Ramsey was publighed for
the 1831 seseion,>> |

Joel King, trustee and town postmaster, received a letter dated
April 18, 182- /date in original not legible/ asking aid for a boy in
gchool at Louisburg at that time. A portion of the letter readss

T do not lknow whether or not ry mother will comsent for Blount to

leave her. E£hould you see her I would thank you to advise her to do
g0, ag I could provide for the finlshing of his education at this
place with a great deal less expense than at Louisburg...But should

Blount not come out and remain at school in Louisburg I must beg the
favor of you to pay some little attention to him, and from time to

lyanuseript letter from Wiss Mary Ramsey to Board of Trustees,
182k, Louisburg Female Academy. In Hawkins Collection, Southern
Historical Collection, University of North Carolina.

32000n, ope eites ppe 100-101,
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time give him such advise as you may think proper._  Your little town
of Louisburg is a dangerous place to raise bqn...%

The Male Academy wes "a pleassnt building on the hill about 1/L m.
from the Village of Loulsburg.">® The same "pleasant building," its
doors first opened to pupils in 1805, still staends on the same hill.

The building is a two-story freme building with foundations of
solid rocke The Male Academy grove, the east portion of the Common re-
ferred to in Chapter II, is now used as the ¥ills High School campus.
The Academy building is a part of the Mills High School feeilities.

The Female Academy building was erected in 181k in the west grove,
now the Louisburg College campus, and was in constant use until it
burned in 1927.

When the Trustees asked for bids for the erection of the bullding
to be used es the Female Acadeny, this description was published in the
Rsleigh Register, June 2k, 181Ls

A House for A Female Acadeny,

At Louisburg, 30 by 20 feet, two stories--ll and 9 feet pitche
two rooms above, 18 by 20, and 12 by 20, feete-three six-paneled
doors--four 18 and four 8 light windows below, and six 15 and four
8 light windows above-=to be built of good hard timber—with two

of brick or hewn stone, andtmde:pimudvi}%tho.m—-
to be ceiled within, and painted without, entire...

According to interviews with some who attended school in that

building, the deseription is accurate.

3bpamuseript letter from Hoss April 18, 182, in Joel ¥ing
Collection, Mamuscript Room, Duke University Library.

35000!1' 0p. E}&o’ Pe 89.
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Until about 1827, "fuel and contingencies" apparently were
furnished.s In that year lir. Fliah Brewer, teacher, announced that a
small tax would be charged each pupil for such crxpemnl.37

Board, the terms usually advertised as moderate, was provided by
a teacher or near-by residents of the community. In 1828 C. A. Hill,
teacher, announced that he would take ten or twelve students to board
with hin.38 fn 1834 the trustees reported that Mrs. Bobbitt, teacher,
was prepared "to take under her immediate charge, as boarders, many of
the young ladies. In genteel families, convenient to the Academy, board
also may be obtained on moderate terms."3?

Another example comes from an 1837 announcement: "Board may be
obtained, with the Preceptress, at $L0 per Session, without any extra
charge. Other families in the village and viecinity will also take males
end femeles as boarders."iO

In 1809 the trustees planned a library of the most useful books.il
By 1810 the library was spoken of as "a respectable library. nki2 Ry 1811
"the handsome library recently established" was spoken of as one of the
advantages at the Acadaw.l‘a

37Ibid., p. 102,
381nid.

391bid., p. 10L.
hQ_Iy_i;t_l_., p. 106,
Wlrpid., p. 9.
Mw,, pe 92.
w_@_ﬂ;_c}_., pe 93.
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lusical instruments were included in the eouipment of the college,
perticularly in the Female Academy. A ecircular of 1851 lists extra
charges foruuotthopimundthoguiur.m‘

The announcements, circulars, and advertisements exomined by the
writer reveal nothing more concerning esuipment except the implication
that the offering of drewing, painting, end chemistry in the course of
study meant that there were some materials for the courses,

Anyone studying the enrriculum of the Academies will be impressed
with the large nmumber of subjects offered and with the emphasis on
English grammar, geography, Latin, Creek, Fremch, and arithmetice.

In 1805 Matthew Dickinson advertised to teach:

Reading, Writing, Arithmetie, Fnglish Crammer, Ceography, Belle
Letitres and Rhetoriecj and...lthies and Metaphysics, the Latin,
(reek, Hebrew, irench and Italian Languages, and the higher
Brenches of Metaphysics end Philosophy, viz. Algebra, Ceometry,
Trigonometry, Conic Sections, Altimetry, Longimetry, Vensuration of
Superficies anﬁssaida, Surveying, Navigation, Nestural Philosphy
and Astronomy.

At one time during ir. Dickinson's years at the Acadeny
(1805«1808), twenty young men from the University of North Carolina left
Chapel Hill, "having concelved disgust et the Monitorial law, impoeing
gn oath on 2ll by turns to sct the part of sples on each othert's
conduct,” and entered the Acaderyy. Mre Dickinson is said to have taught

2ll branches offered in the college except conie uctim.w

hho.trcular, louisburg Female Seminary, 1851, pe 3, in Hewkins
Papers, Southern Historical Collection, University of North Carolina.
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Coon spoke of a "traditional" impression that lMr. Dickinson
intended to have his Academy become superior to the University; but in
his study of the early documents of academies in North Carolina, Coon
found no evidence to prove this belief.l7

¥hen the Female Department was added to Franklin Academy, the
first notice advertised instruction in "Reading, Writing, Fnglish
Granmar, Arithmetie, Ceography, Astronomy, Painting and Music; also use-
ful and Ornamental Needle-Work, of almost every duoripbim."ha

In 1820 the Male Academy announced that "the plan of education is
calculated to prepare young gentlemen for the Univorsity."w

The most complete record found by the writer is one made in
1820.50 It shows the classification of pupils, the subjects on vhich
they were examined, and the results of the examination.

It may be noted that M. C. Somerville, the student ranking highe
est, was examined on the following subjeets: natural philosophy,
chemistry, history (Greek and American), rhetoric, geopgraphy (world),
reading, spelling, parsing, needle-work, and penmanship, Her neme is
also mentioned in the 10th Class, but the names of the subjects for the

class are not given.

k71bid., Introduction, p. xvii.

ha;[_b_i_cl., pe 9k

h9;_'b;l_<_i_., pe 99,
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In 1826 the curriculum was organized for pupils of elementary
school age and for clder groups. Ite purpose was to prepare pupils for
"imericen Colleges,” particularly the University of North Carolina.>t

The curriculum for the boys of the Acadeny and the curriculum of
the girls reveal that languages, perticularly latin and Creek, were con=-
sidered important for boys. No language other than English is mentioned
for the girls' course of study in the documente found for 181L through
1851, Arithmetic and science m common to all the lists of subjects
for boys; for girls, arithmetic is listed. Astronomy is found on the
lists of subjects for girls. Chemistry was offered at times for girls.
One person in the Female Acadeny was examined for chemistry in 1820,
There is no mention of health study in any course nor is there any
mention of a course in religion prior to 185l.

The Circular used in 1851, and copled in the appendices of this
study, sumariges the courses offered, the text books used, the method
of reporting, the expenses, and miscellaneous items. The copy found is
from the Female Seminary.

II. TEACHERS

During the years between 1805 and 1855, the lLouisburg Academies
were usually directed by good teachers. From all records, the teachers
were well qualified, attentive to their pupils, end faithful to their
duties.

SII'bid.. Po 101.
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As in other schools, many of the teachers in Louisburg then
taught only a part of the time.>2 Some of them were also preachers,
lawyers, or planters. It is known that four teachers of the lizle
Acadeny were Yale graduates, one was 2 Williams College graduate, and
three were graduates of the University of North Carclina. Many of the
teachers in the Female Acadeny came from the North, according to the
1ittle information that has been found about the teachers.

¥iss Partridge (Mrs. Bobbitt), first preceptress, was with the
Loulsburg Female Academy longer than any other teacher. G5She teught
there nineteen years. Mr. John Bobbitti remained at the Franklin lNale
Academy for fifteen years, longer than any other teacher remained
between 1805-1855,

In the following paragraphe, the teachers of the Franklin
Academies during the period 1805«55 are named in order of their coming
to the schools, and & brief bilographical sketch iz given of those about
whom the writer found information.

Born in Somers, Connecticuty; and graduated at Yale College about
1804, Matthew Dickinson came to Louisburg in 1805 to be the first pre-
ceptor of Franklin Academy. iHe was the maternal uncle of Cyrus West
¥ield, the promoter of the first Atlantic Cable; David Dudley Field, II,
lawyer; Henry M. Fleld, minister; end Stephen J. Field, lawyer.

¥r. Dickinson was at Yale College during the presidency of
Timothy Dwight, known to have been a great teacher who inspired the
interest of the students. In 1809 Dickinson received a letter from

52000!1, Ope 2&&0
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a former pupll at Louisburg indiecating that he in turn inspired his
pupils at Frenklin Academye

A portion of the letier reads: "...twas you, sir, who not only
informed me how essentisl a good education is but taught me Lyeee
perserverence and pecular [sic/ application to my study I might after no
lengthy space of time reap the Colden Harvest, and who gave me so many
valuable precepts whereby I might attain the CGoal of Decency and
Doc:.ou'nm..u"s3

In letters and other records reference to Mr. Dickinson's books
is common. One Franklin County historian gives the informetion that
Dickinsonts librery included "many volumes in the Latin, Oreek, Italian
and Hebrew languages ande..titles ss variant as Robinson's Charles the
Fifth, Addison's )Miscellanies, Curran's Speeches, and the Kentucky
Revival, Watte! Hymns and the Holy %.,.Sh Dickinson sent long book
orders to William Boylan of Raleigh.>®

lr. Dickinsont's carecr 28 a teacher was most successful. He was

referred to a8 a teacher of abilities and many talents, and as one who
gave full attention to his pupils. The notice of his deaih in the
Raleigh Register, Sept. 21, 1809, said that "Mr. Dickinson was very
highly and very deservedly respected by all who had the pleasure of his

53yanuseript letter from J. Wills, Petersburg, Virginia, Feb. 2L,
1809, In Matthew Dickinson Collection, Manusecript Room, Duke University

Library.
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wqtmintame."sé A% one time, Covernor Turner invited Dickinson to dinner
with the British Consul, the Federal Court Judge, and other eminent
people, =11 of whom treated the teacher with respect.d!

The first master of the school was not compelled, as were many
early schoolmesters, to lead a 1life of "genteel poverty"; but he found it
necessary to exercise some ingenuity to supplement the income from his
professional labors. In 1308 & friend wrote in his diaxy:

Vr. Tickinson has acouired a very decent little estate since he
first came here L years ago. He thinks himself between six and
seven thousand dollars. The first year he had gbout seven hundred
dollars-—-the next, the avails of his school 1000 Dllse-the next they
amounted to 1500 and the last year 1200, Besides this too he pays

an Usher (Mayhew from Wme College) 300 Dlls. But he has improved
opportunities to speculate by lending sey 600 Dlls. cash to a young
Sportsman and taking a Bond for 1000, Till lately he owned a house
and farm of more than three hundred acres, six slaves, and a
cuentity of stock, as horses, sheep and cattle. lLately he sold his
land for 00O Dlls. which was one thousend more than it cost him.
mmhamuug,mwwaurﬁntwmmmmm
the spring to visit Conn. in this style.

ir. Dickinson stopped teaching in 1808 to practice law in Frank-
1in County. In 1809 he died after a short illness called "bilious
fever,” which he had developed on a trip to "the low countxy,"5?

Following are the words on the stone that marks hie greve, which
is located between Warrenton and louisburg near Corinth Church:

5660011. Ope cite; pe 91.
57_Ib_1§_.. pe 70
55_1}_19_., p. 89,
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facred to the memory of latthew Dickinson a native of Somers,
Conn. & graduste of Yale College and first Preceptor of Franklin

Academy, a wan of talent, learning, and virtue
Obt. Sept. 17, 1809 Aged 29 years

Davie He Mayhew was firut Mr. Dickinson's assistant., Vhen lir.
Dickinson resigned, Mr. Vayhew became principal., He received a "classi-
cal education at Williams College in Masasachusetis," and the Franklin
trusteecs announced him as a gentleman of “approved abilities, acquire-
ments and moral character.® When he assisted lr. Dickinson, his salary
was 15300.00.60

William Hillman was assistant to lir. Mayhew in 1811. Probably a
Harvard graduate, he was sald to be "a young gentleman of talente and
well cualified to teach the first branches of learning,"Sl

James Dogle, Principal in 1810, was described as "a man of genius,
an excellent Classical Scholar, and to a very happy talent for instruct-
ing unites an uncommon zeal in the cause to which he is devoted." Dur-
ing Ur, Bogle's time at the Academy, the librery was established.52

Josiah Crudup was assistant to Mre Bogle in 1810 before he
became a Daptist preacher and poli’oicun.63

Yhen the Franklin trustees engaged John B, Bobbitt as rineipal
in 1816, he had already superintended several literary institutions very
successfully. He was a graduate of the University of North Carolina, and

60_1§_b_1t_1_. s pp. 88=90,

6lrbid., p. 92.

62y,44,
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was reconmended as being well cualified to teach the Inglish, Latin,
Creek, and French languasges and also other branches usually teught at
the Academy. lr. Bobbitt merried Miss Harriet Partridge, the first
teacher in the Female Acadery.ol

Fitch Wheeler, principal from 1820 until 1822, was a graduate of
Yale College and came to Loulsburg highly recommended.

Addison Vhite, prineipal 1824-1825, was a graduste of Yale
College and was recommended for his "good moral character and high
literary scouirements. n65

A graduste of Yale College in 182k, Fliah Brewer came to Franklin
Academy in 1826 recommended by the President of Yale "as a man of
scientific and literary ettaimments, a good moral and christian
cheracter, and well cualified in every respect for the verious departe
mente of academical instruction,n5®

Charles Applevhite Hill, a descendant of Creen Hill, was bom in
1784 in Franklin County. In 180k, he was a student at the University of
North Carclina, which he left before graduating. His leaving came at the
same time the twenty studente left the University to attend ¥r. Dickine
son's school, but it is not known whether he left for the same reason.
He moved to (leorgia, vhere he taught & mumber of years. lHe returned w"
the University of North Carolina in 1815 and graduated with the class of
1826. Dr. Battle in his history of the University names My, Hill,

a*lbi.d., DPe 9h=95,
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prineipel, preacher, and State Senstor, as one of the most notable of the
class of 1816.67 After leaving Frenklin Acadeny, e Hill taught in
Werrenton and Midway Academy, between Warrenton and Iouisburg, Perhaps
hic method of diseipline at Loulsburg was the same as that which he
advertised from Midwey Academy in the Releigh Register, 1828: "The
Frineipal will pursue that course which he would with his own children.
He will advise and admonishj where these fall, the rod will be resorted
to, but with parental prudence,"®3

Coon, the historian, said of Ur. Hills
Hill...was a Methodist preacher and a good teachevr. le also
found time enough...while living and teackbing in Franklin County to
be elected to the State Senate; where he was the author of the law
which created the Literary Fund of 1825, lie was also the leader of
the opposition to lotteries in the Senate of 1826 and was no small
factor in ereating enough sentiment to do away with those gambling
devices in aid of sehools and churches.
Asher Rey was principsl from 1843 until 1856, when latthew Devis
became prineipal for the next twenty-five years.
Viss Harriet Partridge wae the first Louisburg Femasle iAcademy pre-
ceptress. CShe was first written of in Franklin County as "a lady from
Massachusetis, eminently oualified for the importent trust, w70 prom

181k until 1821 she first taught at the Acedemy; and when she returned to

6Tg, P, nmattle, Pistory of the University of North Carolina
Raleigh: Béwards & Broughton, 1907=1912, T, 2L0.
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the fcademy in 18931 (as Mrz. Bobbitt), the trustees were pleased because
her success as a great teacher sssured them of a good school, fhe was an
aunt of iss Sophia Partridge, a well kmown teacher in Paleish, 18L6-
186h, She assisted her niece in the Raleigh school at one time, 't

Assistant to Miss Partridpe and Miss Benedict in the Itusle Depart-
ment, John La Taste was reforred to as & teacher with "lmown and
universally acknowledged mualifications in teaching music upon the Forte
Plano,® and with a "graceful end elegant menner of teaching dancing...."n

Miss Ann Nenedict taught in Comnecticut and New York City before
coming to loulsburg in 1821 highly recormended as a lady of "genius and
acouirsments.” The trustees assured the parents that "under the able
governance of this lady their dsughters will make great progress, not
only in those desirous studies which contribute to the dignity and use-
fulness of 1ife, but in those polite and elepant acouirements which
constitute its ornsment and prace.nd

A receipt sirned by Mies Denedict on July 1, 182k, shows that she
recoived from Joel Ying, Treasurer of the Board of Trustees, {500.00 for
Wheing full of my sallery /sig/ as principel instructor,t’l

Tnelta Kappa Carma Socicty., Some Ploneer Vomen Teachers of
Horth M’m’ 1955, PPe 119150,

7200“; Ope g&p’ Pe 796
131014,
Miamuseript veceipt, by Ann Benedict to Joel King, July 1, 182k

In louisburg Female Academy Collection, Manuseript Room, Duke University
Library.
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A letter from Wiss Benedict to Joel King written in 1826 from
Releigh, where she was teaching at the time, indicates s cordial rela-
tionship with the King family. 1In the letter she sddressed each of the
¥ing children—iiclen, John, and Williame-urging each one to study dili-
gently and to be mbitim.75

Miss Msyy Ramsey, from New York, wes previously mentioned in this
chapter in commection with a letter asddressed to the Board of Trustees
in 182} requesting more sslary,

The trustees considered her highly malified and felt that the
examinations of December, 182l, reflected her proficient sk%ill and
mansgement, WViss Mary RBarl, her niece, asssisted Miss Ramsey in the
depertment, of music and painting in 1831.76

lrs. Jane A. Rey was prineipal of the Female Academy from 1843
until 1856,

During the acadeny movement in Worth Carolina, the Loulsburg
acadenies were faithfully eupported, and they offered a wide range of
subjects with well trained men and women as teachers,

PSuanuseript letter, Ann Benedict to Joel King, Jamuary 21, 1826,
from Raleighe In Joel King Collection, Mamnuscript Room, Duke University
Tibrary.

76000!1, ODe _e-i_f:_o’ Dhe 100=103,
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CHAPTIR IV
LOUISBURG FEMALE COLLEGE (1855-1915)

The Franklin Academies grew and developed their usefulness to the
young people of eastern North Carolina., Ae they grew there came to
light the realisation that louisburg Female Acedeny was not "a school of
as high grade as the nocessities of the times demanded,"’ As a response
to the realization the citizens of louisburg and the area formed in 1855
a Joi:it stock company for the purpose of establishing "a college of high
grade, for the education of young ladies."® The Legislature chartered
the company under the name "Loulsburg Female College compamr."3

The first step in changing the Female Acedesmy into a college was
that of moving the Female Academy building to make room for a new bullde-
ing that would be equal to its purpose. The wooden Seminary building
was moved to the south side of the campus, where it was used as an annex
to the college until 1927, "They are getting on bravely with the
College~-upwards of $18,000.00 have been taken," wrote lrs. Amma
Fuller to her husband on March 18, 1857.

In 1857 a spacious and elegent four-story building in the style of
Greek Revival was erected at a cost of §16,000.00. The building,

1iouisburg College Catalogue 1913-lh, p. 8.
21vid,
31vid,

lysarmseript letter from Anna Fuller to her husband March 18, 1857.
In Jones and Bdwin Wiley Fuller Collection, Menuscript Room, Duke
University.



containing more than fifty rooms, was furnished and ecuipped at the
additional cost of s:h,OOO.OO.5

The new building is thought to have been constructed by ir.
Albert Jones, a contractor living at Embro, in VWarven County, who
mortgaged everything he and his wife had to insure a good building for
the collage.6

The welleconstructed building contimues to stand in the middle of
the thirteen acres shaded by 2 grove of large oaks and hickories. It
serves ag8 Main Puilding of Louisburg College. It has been remodeled
twice and 1t still gives the stately appearance it gave in the beginning,

At 2 meeting of stockholders of louisburg Female College held in
the Franklin County Court House on June L, 1857, the following were
elected directors for the next year:

De Co Stone, Esce, De 8. Hill, Esg., MajJor J. He Yarboro, Dr.

We Re King, We Fo Creen; Esce., T. K. Thomas, Esq., Reve. Jas, Reid,

Pe Jo Brown, 9“.’ Je Je Davis, Hsqe; Je Be Littlejohn, Te T.
glifton, Esq.

I. THE VAR YEARS

The College opened for instruction in the fall of 1857. Although
the school opened with enthusiasm, full support, a large enrollment, the
brightest hopes, and the highest purposes, it opened under the shadow of

Spouisburg College Catalogue,1909-10, ps 8e

életter from Mrs. Hlanche Hgerton Baker to Miss Zelda Coor,
April 20, 1958, 1In President's office, Louisburg College.

Tiews item in American Eagle, June 6, 1857. In Franklin Times
office, lLouisburg.
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the War between the States and the Reconstruction Period, For the next
fifty years it was to experience periods of depression and readjustment.
The school always operated through the academies except for the brief
time of Union Army occupation in 1865, Instruction in the eollege began
under the direction of Jemes PF. Nelson, of Maryland., Mr. Je Jo Avirett
followed lir, Nelson.® Two years loter ir. Golumbus Andrews beceme
President and had as hie assistent Mre L. W. Andrews, his eon.’

Students' letters and a school girl's diary provide a picture of
some of the college life during and after the war. Ella NMontgomery, a
gtudent at lLouisburg Female (College during the sixties, wrote a letter
to Rosa Biddle expressing her devotion to her college. (liss Biddle
mist have been at Chowan College, for the letters to her are addressed
to Murfreesboro and there are references to her being in college.) The
letter tells of the high esteem in which the president was held.
Our school is progressing finely. Ve hive 2 mumbey of scholars
superintended by a most excellent President, whose high character as
a pentleman and fine scholar has secured for him, not only the posi-
tion he now occupies, tut an inestimeble reg in hearts of our
community. I know you would like the school.
In another letter of the same year she wrote to Rosa that she en-
joyed her Latin and that "Young Andrews" (Mr. L. ¥. Andrews) was very

good to his students, for he never thought of giving a fault wk.u

Buiist of Presidents of Louisburg College from 1851 to 190L," The
collogi_g, April, 190k, p. 9lia

I1bid.

1°uamacr1pt letter from Ella Montgomery to Rosa Biddle, March 15,
1860, 1In Sanmel Biddle Collection, Mamscript Room, Duke University.

ilypid,, July 31, 1860.



In her diary for February 2L, 1861, Pauline Hill wrote of the

school and Mr. Andrews in particular:
Ve have a full school. I like Mr. Andrew's lectures on Rhetorie.
The big girls as well as the younger ones, all play out doors during
recess, jumping the rope, etc. Sometime Nr. Louis and Mr.
Copeland, our painting teacher, jump the rope with us,

Annie 8. Brodie's letter to Kosa Biddle in April, 1861, gives the
first hint of the War's influence on the Loulsburg Female College and the
coming finencisl depression. According to her letter, Louisburg had be-
come an urnusually dull place with all the talk concerning the War. "As
for our College, it is not very flourishing this term. It was sold last
Mareh Court. HMessers Richard and John Yarborough and Ceneral Littlejohn
bought 164"

A deed recorded in Franklin County Courthouse shows the sale of
"all buildings, fixtures, furniture, land and premises with its iuprove-
ments" to R. F. Tarborough, Je Be Littlejohn, and J. "« Yarborough of
Frankiin County.

eeoknow all men by these presents that the undersisned Sheriff of

the County of I'renklin and State above written by virtue of execu=
tions issued from the Court of Pleas and quarter sessions of said
county in the cases following to wit Joel K. Thomas against the
Louisburg Female College Company and several executions ageinst the
same and in favor of Divers perties as of Record does appear having
levied said executions on the lands and tenements of the said Louis-
burg Female College Company hereinafter cdescribed on the lst day of
Jany 1861 and having made advertisement according to law and sold

said lands and tenements at Public Sale for cash on the lst day of
darch 1861 at the Court House Door in said County, when and vhere

12vpxtracts from a School 0irlts Journal," The Collegien, July,
1903) Pe 590

13yanuseript letter from Annie S. Erodie to Rosa Biddle, April 1k,
1861, 1In Samuel Biddle Papers, op. P.!'..t.‘
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Re F. Yarborough, J. Be Littlejohn, J. B. Yarborough of the County of
Franklin and the State of North Carolina became the last and highest
bidder at the sum of five thousand dollars which said sum has been
paid to the undersigned in accordance with the terms of said sale, In
consideration of the premises and her consideratlion of the
purchase money paid as aforesaid..."

A part of the college building was used as a residence during
some of the time between 1861 and 1889, but the school was carried on in
other rooms and in the Annex, the 0ld Female Academy building.ls

Pauline Hill's diary, dated April 20, 1861, mentions the War:

esolire Andrews pave us for a debate this question, 'ag the South

the right to secede?' I am on the negative side, and Pa gave me for
a quotation, 'It is bet to bear the 1ills we have than to fly te
others we know not of.'

The college girls learned to knit socks for the soldiers, had
"beautiful tebleaux" for the soldiers, and learned to wear homespun
dresses with pridc.n

They watched the troops passing the campus. One dey in April,
1861, they joined the town ladies as they gathered on the campus to
present the Franklin Rifles (on the campus for drill) with the flag they
nade. By recuest from the soldiers, the ladies sang "Dixie." The girls

gave three cheers for the "Volentiers /5i¢/ of Frankiin,nid

Uspranklin County Reglster of Deeds, Book 63, pe 127.

5yotes of interview with Mr. and lirs. M. S. Davis, Louisburg,
North Carolina.

16upxtracts from a School Nirl's Journsl," op. cite, pp. 58-59.
17Ib1dop Do 62.

18yanuseript letter from Annie Brodie to Rosa Biddle, April 26,
1861, In Biddle Collection, op. cit.
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The girls in the college, in spite of war talk and activities,
prepered for a beautiful May Day celebration in 186l1. Pauline Hill was
chosen Queen of May.l’ But the students decided in the last week of
April to give wp their May-hay celebration because of their respect for
the Franklin men vho were leaving for war,20

All the letters and journals examined by the writer depict a
gloom and uneasiness among the college people and town people during the
war. However, there are references to a few parties, programs, and
study. FElla lontgomery wrote to Rosa Biddle in 1860 that she had been
to four dancing partiu.al In her next letter to Rosa she said that
there was nothing but hard study with the girls. "I think about ny
Letin more than T do samebody's heart."22

199 xtracts from a School Cirl's Journal," op. cites pe 59. Also
see Julia L. Barrow, "Louisburg Female College, Half a Century Ago," The
Colle . (Urs, Barrow says that "May Day was looked forward to for

monthgy and was greated with inexpressible joy." The students dressed
in white Swiss muslins with pink end blue ribbons. Each girl took a
basket and went out on the campus or to a neighbort's garden,

to the garden of "Aunt Thomas," to gather flowers for decorating the
throne, The throne was erected on the sampus and trimmed with flowers
and greenery. ©Several decorated arches, each held by two girls, formed
& pathway for the (ueen and her attendants. The Queen was elected by
ballot. There were alweys two candidates. After the Coronation Cere-
nony, the flower girls presented their flowers to the Queen, and songs
and recitations followed. The entire group then marched in procession

to the chapel.)

20vamseript letter, Annie Brodie to Rosa Biddle, April 26, 186l.
Diddle Papers, op. cite.

2lanusoript letter from Ella Montgomery to Rosa Biddle, July 31,
1860, gps cite

”Ibid.. hugust 13, 1860,



L7
inother college girl, Maggle lcleod, mentioned in a2 letter that
she had never been so tirodoi‘wintornd.mvor 80 ar#ionatom
vacaﬁion.” ‘

In the spring of 1862, Professor Knerringer, music professor at
Loulshburg Female College, gave a very successful concert for the "gun-
boat" nission, 2l

By 1862 Mr. James Southgate hod been discharged from the service
o a.paept the presidency of the college. He was then thirty yeers of
agee In 1858 he had merried ¥ies Delia Haywood Wynne, an English
teacher in his mother's sehool in Norfolk, BDefore the war, Mr. South-
gate had taught Latin and CGreek in his mother's school until he end a
brother opened a dey school for boys in Norfolk. Mr. Southgate remained
as President until 1865, when he went to 0lin College near Stetesville,
vhere he remained until 1872, That year he moved to Hillsboro, where he
engaged in the insurance business. Tn 1876 he moved to Durham.2

23yamuseript letter from Annie S. Brodie to Rose RBiddle; April 26,
1861, op. cit.

2lnpxtracts from a School Cirl's Journsl," op. cite, ppe G0-6l.

25vThe Presentation of A Portrait of Jemes Southgate to Durham
Lodge NMumber 352 Ancient, Free and Acespted Mosons,® April 3, 194k,
middle page. Brochure in Louisbturg College Library.

Brochure dates Mr. Southgate's term from 1862 to 1867, The lLouis-
burg College Catalogues give lr. Southgete's term ending 1865. ©Dr.
Semuel Be Turrentine in his book A Romance of Hducation on p. 95 and the
Louisburg College Catalogues give the yesr 186D as the year Dre Te He
Jones reopened the college. Dre. Jones followed Mr. Southgate. A report
card belonging %o Annie R. Fuller, in the Jones and Edwin Wiley Fuller
Collection in the Duke Library, is dated March 23, 1866, and is signed
by Te Me Jones, President.
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Mr., end Mrs. Southgate were considered good teachers. After fifty
years one of their students wrote: "If I have ever written anything that
served to interest or help others, I owe it all to /my/ father and my
faithful teacher, Mrs. James Southgate, whose wonderful art of imparting
Imowledge made study a delight,"28

An editorial in the college paper dealt with the typical currice
uwlum of My, and Mrs. Southgate's time at the college.

After a most thorough drilling in the three "R's,' Peter Parley's
or (Coodrich's Histories, lorse's (eography, and a contimuous study
of Smith's Crammar, with its varied and often puzgling parsing and
numerous ruleS..., she (the student) was advenced to the more pleas-
ing study of Botany, Philosophy, Rhetoric, feography of the Heavens,
Astronomy, Komes's Flements of Criticism, etec. Nany of the older
gtudents will remember the set of globes used in the astronomy class,
representing the sun, moon; earth, Saturn and her rings, and we dee
lighted in the study of the constellations.

To this we added lusie, Drawing, Painting, end various forms of
embroidery., Calisthenies was a plessing addition, and a more
besutiful sight one may rarely see than these lovely meidens grace=
fully forming the intricate fijures of 'stars' and other pretiy
desipns,

ind then the closing deys of school life, vith the Examination
(not Commencement) Exercises, vhen every class was examined orally
before a large awilence, camposed of parents and other ﬁlativu,
end friends, together with the dignitaries of the town.
From the above discussion the curriculum in 1863 appears to be
gimilar to that discussed in Chapter II. There is no mention of Latinj
but becanse of so many veferences to it in journals and letters (some

already quoted), it must have been a part of the course of study.

261 ouisburg Female College of Half Century Ago," in The
E&P Aprﬂ., 19014’ Pe 7%

27pauline Hill Brooks, "Sditorial,"® m gollepian, 190k, pe ke
(urs. Brooks was & member of the Class of 1063.)
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A copy (in the Appendices) of an 186} report card of & tenwyear-
old pirl in the preparatory deperiment shows the course of study there
similar to that of the earlier academy.2d

While the Female College was being operated under lr. Southgate's
adninistration, the ¥ele Acadeumy was being conducted by lire lls 5. Davise
The Academy continued to operate full time. A record shows that in 1864
Edwin Wiley Fuller attended 286 recitations and was absemt two and one
half dayse2’

Speech notes seribbled on the back of a Report Card for the
Spring of 186l indicate that school was to continue as usual even though
financial support wes becoming & burden in Louicturge. The specch,
evidently a school-closing speech, wae outlined as followss

Explanation of plan. Fleasant and harmonious session - s%
scholorship improven /si¢/. BHeginning of next term. Thanks.

Another note on the back of a Fall Report, 186k, indicates the
coming financial depressions

Lth year of Lincoln's War - tuition £30 and §50 per session. Dur-
ing this year I paid 100 per bushel for corn, §L0 for & peir of
cotton carde, $75 for 3 lbs. of indifferent sole leathers, $8 for
one bell of shoe threads, $80 for 8 yrds. of calico, {50 for a bunch
of cotton yarn.

20yanuseript report card of iiss Anna Richmond Fuller, May 27,
1864, In possession of J. E. Mzlone, Louilsburg.

29yenuseript letter to J. Fuller, Esquire, from M. 8. Davis,
June 25, 186k. In Jones and Edwin Wiley Fuller Collection, op. cite

30yanuseript note on back of Spring Report, 1864, In Louisburg
Ferale Academy Collection, Manuseript Roem, Duke University.
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The truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth so help me
God,

e 5o Davigdl
In the spring of 1865 Federal troops ceme to Louisburg under the
coumand of Ceneral John A. Logan and Ceneral Judson Kilpatrick and used
the college and academy groves for headquarters. The schools had been
clogsed upon the warning of the amy's approach. The collepe building
{now Main Building) served as the peneral's headquarters and hospital,
and the Male Acedemy building wes used as & granary for the storage of
corn. Corn was piled so deep that the floor gave way and the building
was on the verge of mcking.u
Je He Koyes, a member of the regiment occupying the groves, bee
came i1l and was confined to the hospital (Main Building). In 1903,
when he had become a Methodist minister in Ohio, he wrote Mr. M. S
Davis, president of Louisburg Femele College, and enclosed a ten-dcllar
gold piece to be given to the member of the graduating class who exw
celled in mathematics. He wrotes
I am glad to make this recognition of the Institution over which
you preside, not only in the interests of fraternity, but also be-
caugse that within one of the rooms of the college building I found
2 place of rest and retirement during a part of & long and serious
illness, I have always felt something akin to veneration for that
building which sheltered me during that trying ordeel. Tt ig true
that I was not invited by the college authorities to enter its roe

cinets, but was there by the fortunes of war, yet I have never
coased to be thankful that such a2 nlace was open to me in time of

Slysmuseript note on back of Fall Report, 186k. In Louisburg
Female College Collection, Manuscript Room, Duke University.

32peward nill Davie, Historleal Sketches of Franklin County
(Releigh: Fdwards and Broughton Co.s 1 s Do 107e
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need, and if it received any hamm by my occupancy, I trust thal the
ensll contribution enclosed may be at least some compensation. 2

II. THE RECONSTRUCTION YEARS

The occupation of Louisburg lasted only a few days. The army
moved on, leaving no violent disorder, and the scadeny re-cpensd for the
next seasion.

In Jamuary, 1866, the Reverend T. M. Jones came as President from
Creensboro Femele College after that school burned in 1863. Dr. Jones
wes born in Franklin County, June L, 1819, not many years after the
Franklin icademies begane Ilils parents, Amos Jones and Mary Amnne Myrick
Jones, were both natives of Franklin County. He attended the "old field
school" and a boarding school near his father's hame before going to
Randolph-Macon College. He left college because of failing health,
¥hile at home, he taught in the family of lir. Edward Alston of Warren
County and at the end of the year was elected princlpal of Ridgeway
heademy in the esame county. In 10845 he received his A. B. degree. Of
the ten and one half yeers he spent teaching in academies and in
private femilies, seven and a half years were spent in Franklin County
and two and a half in Warren County. During three of the years he was
Principel of Louisburg Male Academy. He was conesidered a very efficlent
end popular teacher. In 1853 he was elected to the Professorship of
iHethematics and Ancient Languages in Creensboro Female College. After
one year he became president of that collegee

33np Letter from a Union Soldier," The Collegian, July, 1903,
Pe 90.
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In 1869 Dr. Jones left Louisburg to open a sechool at Kittrell,
¥ive months later he lessed Varrenton Femsle College, moved his school
there, and remeined until the end of the 1873 school sessions Then he
returned to the presidency of Creensboro Female College where he worked
until his deakh in 1890. Wwherever he taught, his school was spoken of
o8 prospercus, and Dr. Jones was spoken of as a scholarly, cultured,
patient, and firm gentleman, A devout Methodist, he wag licensed to
preach while he was teaching at the lLouisburg Mele Academy. IHe chose to
remein a local preacher, snd the honorary degree of Doctor of Divinity
was conferved upon him by Trinity College.’¥ Loulsburg Femsle College
under the guldance of Dr, Jones wes & highly organized and prosperous
schools One of hie teachers described her cssocistion vith Dr. Jones
and the college:

There comes vividly to ny nmind the rether depressing elrcum-
stances under which we entered upon the New Year and its new duties.
On account of a deep snow, there were very few pupile present on the
firsl dsy, and indeed for several days after...But in a short while
the weather became more pleasent, the girls began to come in, and
all were kept too busy to give way to despondent feelings. Ir, and
lrs. Jones, in their usvally lovely way, diffused a home feeling
throughout the building, inspiring the feeling that it was just one
large family of which they were the thoughtful and efficlent heads.
This wag always characteristic of their administration and was per-
hape the secret of their great popularity and almost magice influence
over the pupils intrusted to their cere. The faculty, as I remember
it, was composed of the following: Dr. Jones, Prof. and lirs. Aldere
man, Profe. loke, Miss Mollle Mitchell, iiss Mittie Bethel, lilss
Yaria Muty, Miss Yannle Ogburn, Miss Willle les, Miss liszie lMayhew,
and Miss Lou Van Fleckese

(ne pleapant recollection is that of the girls' prayer-meeting,
held every Tuesday evening in one of the recitation rooms in the

Sheammel Bryant Turrentine, i Romance of Pducation (Gmnsboros
The Piedmont Pron. Bhé), ppe 93-98, Llso see m
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basement, Thie quiet hour wes alwoys 2 season of spiritual enjoy-
menty where Divine etrength was obtained for the duties and trials
of college life.

. sgha two years gpent there were among the most plessant of my
life.

A letter from another teacher, ilss Willle lLea, to her sister,
tells of the food and equipment at the college inm 1866, She thought
that the collsge kept an "extravagant table." There were usually two
meats and & great variety of vegetables. The usual menu for breakfast
ingluded two kinds of bread, bubter, and one or two kinds of meaty for
gupper, there were two kinds of bread, plenty of butter, and molasses.
Dessert was served on Sunday and frequently on Wedmaday.%

idse lea's room, "not an unpleasant chamber," was furnished with
a cottage bedstead, "tolerably neat bureau," a small cirecular teble; a
washing stand, and chairs.37

Miss Lea wrote that she was satisfied at the collepe, where the
gituation was pleasant. DPut she observed the "evil effects of college
1ife upon ¥r. Jones' children," She sympathized with Cerland Jones, 18,
ag he wandered about "scarcely knowing wheve to go, for fear of encoun-
tering some of the girls."” The President's son never went to prayer
becanse of the girls, snd he always had to eat at a second table., Miss
Iea did not regard such a public place sultsble for the training of
c)lfli.l.cfl!'ozt.""3

35143uie Mayhew Hendren, "A Letter," The Collegiam, 150k, pp. L5-ii7.

3byanuseript letter from iiss Willle Lea to Lillle, Aug. 23, 1866,
In Lea Collection, Southern Collection, University of North Carolina,.

3T1vid,
saIbid.. to Edward, September h, 1866,
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The letters from liss Lea to nerbers of her family frecquently

menbtion the large envollment at the college. "I am in the bustle of a
large boarding school,” she saild once.3?

later she mentioned that a muber of applicante had to be re-

fused, for thers was room for only seventy-five boerders in the cnllege.
®2 large school is & heavy respongibllity,” she wrote her fa!.nhex".ho

Religion was a strong force among the students during the early

Teconstruction period., Revivel meetings were considered important and
were well-atiended Yy the students Ilrom the college.

I recall with distinetmess and plessure a graclous revival of
religion, conducted by Dre Je A. Cumninggim, the "nole Jesse! of
blessed memory, vho was the pastor of the churche. All of the stu=
dents came under the blessged influence; and quite a murber were
among the cenverts. The interest wes so grest that frequently
prayer-neetings were held in the afterncon in the different roomseid

Oone of Miss lea's letters, April 23, 1867, tells of a revival in

the Methodist church at which "a good many girls mede profession of
religion.” One student began to act strangely after the revival and
grew worse, {inally becoming "raving distracted." Those caring for her
g8t the school gave up hope for her improvement, but she grew better in
a few doys. It wag thought that her 1llness was caused by nervous

exellonente u

39 101d.
kO114d,, o Father, Jamuavy 16, 1867,
ldyigate Mayhew Hondren, op. cites pe L6e

“umcrmmmmm-wummumm April 23,
18679 m‘ﬂ'
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Not all of the incentive for church attendance wus purely

spiritual. On one occasion, at lesst, a young man of Louisburg wes pre-
ocoupied with the college girls. "e..o.lhen service was over as I left
the door I gave another peep into the gallery (which is given up to the
college and has become in reslity a 'Caltery.) and got a most angelic
enile, i3

It is assumed from the satisfaction expressed by the teachers and
pupils and from the popularity of the school that the course of study
during Dre Jones'! administration wes as suitable for the times as that
he hed offered at Creensboro Female College.

A report from the Preparatory Class showing the progress of iilss
Annie R, Fuller gives some information as to the preparatory department
curriculum. Three grades of scholarship were recognisged - First,
acholarship very goods Second, goodj Third, respectable. Those falling
below the third grade were required to review their work before poing to
& higher class. The position in each grade was denoted by the numbers
1, 2, and 3., First Crade, muwber 1, was highest, Annie Fuller was highe-
est in FPirvet Crade in all her subjects except composition, in which she
ranked Crade 1, 2. FHer subjects were arithmetic, grammar, geography,
spelling, reading, Bible, composition, and permanship. She was praded
"Exemplary" in deportment. A space was left on the report for marking
absences (excused or not excused) from church, prayers, and mitati.anu.m‘

L3jenuseript letter from “dwin Wiley Fuller to George Thomas,
August, 1868, Edwin Wiley Fuller Collection, Manuseript Room, Duke
University.

“‘uumaoripb report card of Miss Annie R. Fuller, March 23, 10866.
In Jones and Rdwin Wiley Fuller Collection, Manuseript Hoom, Duke Library,
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Dre Jones had a disciplinary system similar to the honor system of
todey. "No system of espoinage /8ic/ is practiced or countensnced. Each
pupil reports the mumber of times she may have vioclated each rule, and
the violations for each euarter are denoted by the mumber prefixed,":S
The list of college rules wes printed on the report card as
follows:

1. The pupils will rise at the first bell, Three-quarters of an
hour before prayers will be allowed for the tollette. MNalf an hour
after prayers for morning walke

2. The rooms are to be ready for inspection at 8 ot'clock.

3¢ The pupils are not to converse in a loud tone on their way to
and from the dining-room or during the meals.

L. 1o boisterous talking, laughing or romping is allowed at any
time, in any part of the building.

Se During study hours each pupil is to remein in her own room
unless when summoned to recitation, or called out by some officer of
the Institution.

6o The pupils are not to converse during study hours in their
rooms, on their way to and from recitation, nor are they to write
letters, nor engage in any reading, except such as pertains to their
essipned studies.

7« The pupils are not to visit each other's rocms between the
bells at nighte

8. The pupils are not allowed to meke communication by work or
gign in the chapel or recitation room, without special permission
of the teacher,

9. The pupils are not allowed to visit the parlors, except when
called to see company, nor in the music room, except in discharge of
College duties, nor the dining-room except at meals, nor the kitchen
at ANY time,

LSy amseript "Private Rogulations" 1866, Louisburg Female College
Collection, Manmuseript Room, Duke University.
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10, No package, letter or message is to be delivered to the
pupils of the Institution by those residing in the town. All
communications with the town must be had through some officer of the
Oonego.

11, The pupils are not to go beyond College bounds, unless
accompanied by some officer of the Institution.

12, Yo pupil will be allowed to spend a night in towmn without
the special permission of her parents or guardian.

13. A1l defacing of the wells or other College property is
strictly forbidden.

1, Dencing is forbidden. The wearing of jewelry is restricted
to ONE breastpine

15, At the last bell at night, 21l lights must be utingﬁishod
and gll conversation cease.

l6e Perfect propriety at divine service ia specially required.

17. The pupils are to throw nething from the windows, and to have
no communication therefrom.

18. Mo pupil is to purchase anything on credit, under any circume
stances whatever.

19« At prveﬂ,hgoci.tation and church, the pupils will sit in
alphabetical order.

At Louisburg Dr. Jones served well as 2 teacher and an administra~
tor in 2 time when it was not easy to keep a school golng, His college
was not endowed and there were no conference appropriations from the
Methodist church. His school was supported entirely by income from the
students. That income had to be used efficlently in a time of depres-
sion in the South.!7

bérbad,

h7mn Hill Ihm. a- ﬁ.’ Do 135"136.
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When Dr. Jones moved his schonl to Xittrell, the college at Louls=
burg was closed for eight yesrs. The Loulsburg Female Seminary and the
Franklin Mele Acadeny carried ony however, to fill the interim in the
school life.

iiles Cornelia Crenshaw, "a cultured maiden lady," conducted the
Louisburgz Seminary in her home on Elm Street near MNash Street. The
Crenshaw home wag large enough %o accommodate boarding students, and Miss
Crenshaw used a2 frame house next door gs her school buillding. Miss
Crenshaw's special interest was musice Her love and talent for teaching
music made the feminary commencements I'aw:mu.l‘ls

Ire Fo Lo Reid became president of the Louisburg Femele Oollege
in 1877, and with Dr. W. B. Royal and Professor W. C. Doudb tried to
revive the school, After a year, they gave up the task,

¥or the next eleven years the college building wos used as a
private residence and as & high school, At one time B, W, Ruye,
PeleBaCoNeYey opened a school called loulsburg Practicel High School.
(The initisls which Mr. Raye alweys used after his name meant NTastman
National Business College in New York. )M

Turing the time between Dr. Jones's school and the reopening of
louisbturg Female College in 1889, the Franilin lale Academy remained

opens

1810id., pe 2k5. Also from an interview with Mre. C. M. Howard,
m Street, Louisburg, North Carolina.

b9 tnterview with Mr. Stuart Davis, Loulsburg, North Carolina.
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III, THE REOPENING AND CONTINUOUS OPERATION

After the college had been closed for several years, a new
interest caused its reopening in 1809. Although the new impetus came in
a time of poverty and struggle, it brought about an era of subsecuent
contimuous operstion. The college has since then operated without inter-
ruption. In 1389 the college property was put up for sale and bought by
Mre Co Mo Cooke and others.50 In Merch,1889, the Louisburg Town
Commissioners, by suthority of the North Carolina Genersl Assembly,
bought the property for §5400,00,°F By March, 1891, Washington Duke,
Esqes of Durham, had become owner of the same property for which he paid
85450,00, The purchese was made subject to the limitation that the
school should be used only for the education of persons of the white

IacBe

eseThe Bosrd of Commissioners of the Town of lLouisburg were
authorized /By an act of the Ceneral Assembly of N. C. at the
seseion in 18917 and empowered to sell convey and meke title to
the property hereinafier described to such person or persons as
they may think best to be held and used by such person or persons
in trust for the purpose of a school for the white race under the
restriction and provisions that the consideration for which a sale
wes authorized under sald sct should not be for less than a sum
sufficient to acruire the interest and rights of certain parties

claiming the said propertyece
esoto take and hold the property above deseribed and every part

of the same uolug;.ve]y for the purpose of a school or schoocls for
the white races..

SOrranklin County Register of Deeds. Book 88, p. 172.

51lrbid,
521bid., Book 88, p. 175. (Ihe Louisburg Female College Catelo
for 1590-91, p. 5,carries the announceme college property was

purchased "last March" by . mo)
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In September of 1889, Mre Bagley, bringing with him his faculty
and a few of his students, came from Littleton College to Loulsburg
Collegee fHe had leased the college property for five years, The number
of his students never reaeched one hundred, nor were there ever more than
thirty boarding students at one time. At the termination of his lease,
Jire Dagley resigned.>3

Mr. Bagley organized his school well and sought to run a college
second to none. During his administretion, the eollegiste year was
divided into two sessions, fall and spring. Four years of work were
offered in the Collegiate Deparitment. There was also a Preparatory
nepartment., Sk

Diplomes were given to those who took the full English Course and
one language, The following is the Course of Study for the Collegiate
Department e

FIRST YEAR CLASS,

Test Vords--festlake. History of United States.
Tessons in Mnglishe-fleid & Botany=-¥ood or (ray.
Kellogg. Algebra (commenced)==Sanford.
Arithmetic=-fentworthe Fhyslologyr=-iutchinsone
Physical Ceogrephy--Inman. Composition and Reading,

SOPHOMORE CLASS.
AMgebra (completed)—dientworthe History of England=-iiontgomerye

Physics==ttecle, Moral Fhilosophy--Peabody.
Ceology--Cteele. Varmal of Niymology-—-ieblbe
Iythology--Berens, Composition and Reading.

53Interviev with Mrs. Ivey Allen, former president of Louisburg
Female College, and teacher during lir. Bagley's administration, in
Warrenton, North Carclina.

Skyouisburg Female College Catalogue, 1890=91, ppe T=0e
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JUNIOR CLASS.
Plane Ceometry (five months ) English Literature (five months )=
Wentworth, Trimble.
Solid Ceometry (five months)e Civil Covermmente—jounge
Wentworth, Composition and Reading.

Chemistyy (five months)--Steele. Test Words.
Zoology (five months)--Steele. Ancient History T8
Ehetoric (five months)~~Quackenbos.>
imsic was also a part of the curriculum, and diplomas were given
to pupils who successfully completed a three-year course in the music
schoole Public recitals were given every monthe At the close of school
a concert was givoxx.56
By this time "Type-Writing and Short-hand writing" had become a
part of the school curriculum since "the age demands that our girls
shall have a practical knowledge of some business whereby they mey earn
2 livelinood,"57
In the Art Department, the following branches were taught: Drawe
ing-=Chareoal, Crayon, Photoerayon, Pastel, and Pencilj Painting in oil
and woter-colorsy Decorative Painting on china, satin, terraline; all
brenches of ornamental work. Certificates were given to art pupils
doing satisfactory work in two years of study.>S
Calisthenices was required of the boarding students, unlees they
were physically unsble to participate. Outdoor exercise was recuired
every morning and evening when the weather was fcvomblo.59

55_!9_:_.9_., pre 11-12,
561bid., pe 13.
571bid.

581bide, po b
59_1:\,_15_.
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A student could earn an A. B. degree by completing a year of post=
greduate study. |

Regpular graduates of the college are granted the privilege of re-

viewing their studies, or of extending them, free of tuition, except
in the Special Departments. Put they MUST board in the College,
subject to its rules, with such modification of the rules as the
President may grent at his diseretion. The degree of A, B, will be
conferred upon all Postegradustes, who complete a ycaréa Poglh=
graduate Course, and stand a satisfactory examination.

Examinations took place at the close of each half session, and at
the completion of any course. The examinations, always in writing, were
considered as important as the daily recitations. A pupil's class rank
was determined by the average of dally scholarship and deportment grades
and the examination gudu.&

Two literary societies were organized on the campus during r.
Bagley's aduministration and were reparded "as valuable euxiliaries in
helping the puplls to acouire trained habits of thought, ond a love for
higher literary culture."&2

The Sea Gift Literary Society was a voluntayy organization named
in honor of Edwin Wiley Fuller, the distingulshed author of a novel of
the Civil War entitled Sea 0ift. Tuller was a resident of Louisburg and
attended the Frenklin Acadermy. The Neithean Literary Society was both a
literary and historical soclety. As long as the societles exisied, they

published a literary magezine, The Collegian, four times each year.

6°Ibid., Pe 17.
Blrvid,
ész’.do’ De 20,
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It was in The Collegisn that the writer firet noled the use of the
present college motto, "Wisdom Is Better than Rubles." With this observa-
tion and no knowledge of an earlier use of the motto, it is assumed that
¥re Bagley composed the lLouisburg College motto. '
Religion was an important part of 1life on the college campus at
that time. Fach day's schedule began with a period of scripture study
and prayer., DTach day closed with a Thankegiving and Prayer Service.
Every pupil was required to attend regular church services of some
denanination,63
lr. Bagley and his family lived in the college building and supere
vised the life in the dormitory. The president expected each of his
teachers to assist nim in the supervision, and he recuired all of his
faculty members to exert a good influence "both by precept and example."
The lady Principel, MNrs. Bagley, gave a "mother's tender care" when
there was sicknosa.&‘ :
Some of the rules of govermment reveal the senge otrﬂwouq
moral responsibility felt by Mr. Bagley.
¥e earneatly strive to give our pupils every advantage of home
influence and individual attention, that they may feel they are
withdrawn from society for the purpose of strengthening their
natural powers and enabling them to develop complete characters.

To this end, they will not be allowed privileges which are found
to impede thelr progress, even with the permission from home.

~ Correspondence should be restricted to the immedliate femily of
the pupils but a few friends may be included by direction to the
Pregident from home.

63Ibid.. Pe 21,
iroid,



Puplls taking extra studies only will be required to observe
school hours and the regulations in regard to general exercises.

Study hours close at 9 P.i., and at ten all ars required to be in
bed, when lights are extinguished., In the morning all are reguired
to obey the "rising-bell," and hold themselves ready for punctusl
and neat presentation in the dininge-room.

Pupils are recuired to cover thelr own beds at an early hour, and
to keep their rooms at all times in a neat and tasteful condition,
Servants will carry wood and water, and perform all other needful
service in the rooms.

The young ladies will not be permitted to make visits, or to re-
ceive attention from gentlemen. When leaving the Campus, they will
in all ceases be attended by one of the teachers, and UNDER NO CIR-
CUMSTANCES will they be permitted ¢o spend the night oubt of the
College. This is absolutely necessary in order to guerd the pupils
from objectionable influences, and to prevent the formation of un=

worthy accuaintances.

Reouest from parent or guardian relating to the young ladles must
be made DIRECTLY TO THE PRESIDENT, and not through letter to the
pupil, or it will receive no attention.

Visitors will not be received during the school hours, and the
College IS AIWAYS CLOSED TO VISITORS ON SUNDAY.

Visitors from the young ladies! homes must bring letiers of
introduction to the President, WITH WRITTEN PERMISSION TO CALL.

Pupils will be permitted to go shopping once a month in charge of
the teachers. At other times the teachers will make thelr purchases
for them.

DAY PUPILS WILL NOT BE PERMITTED TO ENTER THE ROOMS OF BOARDERS,
AND BOARDERS WILL NOT BE PERMITTED TO RECEIVE VISITORS IN THEIR
ROOWS o

To promote economy and %o avold rivelry in dress, pupils are re-
quired to wear a uniform on all public occasions.

The uniform for the winter LACK CASHMIRE: for the sumer any
white goods THAT CAN BE WASHED,

65Ibido| Pe 19 ppe 21=-22,



Total expenses for a session of twenty weeks in the English
Course were {71.003 the English Course with lusic and one language,
$91.,00s Optional studies had fees of §5.00 to §20.00.

In the Preparatory Department, the Academic fee was £12,50,
Primary, $10,005 incidental, $1.00,56

The influence of the organization lr. Dagley formed would appear
to have percisted for many years after his departure.

The Reverend J. A. Oreen dreamed one night that he took over the
leadership of the college, which was struggling for existence, and
operated it successfully. Mr. Creen actually became president in 189k
and remained until 1896, but the school was not a success. Nr. Duke,
owner of the property, asked the president to "shut the college and
bring me the lnay."67

The town again looked for a way to keep the school aslive, and one
of its ministers made a sugrestion that solved the problem. The
Reverend ('e Fo Smith suggested to lMrs. Ivey Allen, teacher at the college,
that she and her father, lr. Matthew Davis, open the school for the next
session. They did so, and the family moved from Creen Hill Place, their
home, to the college building, which they had leased for £300.00 & year.%®

Mre Davis had been prineipel of the ieale Academy for twenty-five
years (1856-1881), serving longer than any other teacher. During those

66Ib1do’ De 18.
6T nterview with Mrs. Ivey Allen, Warrenton, North Carolina.
681p14,
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years he teught slmost all of the young men in loulsburg and meny from
other sections, He received his schooling from Mr. A. He Ray and Dre
Te s Jones at the Franklin Academy, and at the University of MNorth
Carolina., He graduated from the University in the Class of 1855. After
his temure at the Academy he spent several years farming at Green Hill
and served three terms as Treasurer of Franklin County.

¥r, Devis's children have deseribed him as & man "tall, erect,
active, strong of arm, broad browed,"” as a scholarly and Christian men,
end o8 2 useful citizen and a man devoted to his home.®? The devotien
to his home wag carried over into the gollege home-life., Some will
‘remerber how ir, Davis enjoyed taking long wallks with the students.

lrg. Davis, who was the former iiss Sarah louise 1ill, descendant
of the Reverend Major fOreen Hill, was known by the collepe family as the
"ereat lady." She tenderly cared for the collsge household and person=
ally supervised the dining room, particularly the washing of the silver.
The servante remembered "Miss lou" as a Idnd and generous Lsdy.m

¥r. Devists daughter, Mrs. Ivey Allen, was a tescher and business
manager of the college.

Tn September the college opened with twenty boarding students and
a siszable town patronare. College expenses were lows board for the
first vear was only eight dollers a month since the college had its own
vegetable garden. At the end of the year Mr. Davis was azble to pay rent

69Ed'in Hill Davis, Ope. 9&0, De 297

T0nterview with Debbie Pullock, servant for Mrs. Davis, in
Louisburg, North Carolina.
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for the buildings, and 21l bills for salaries and groceries were paid.
When the last cuarter's rent was handed to Mr. Duke, he pave the money
back to lrs. Allen, telling her that she could have the collese free of
rent as long as she wanted ite '+

The ecurriculum was simllar to the program of studies v, Dagley
had offered. FPnrollment inereased from year to year until more room was
needed.

Mr. Davis died in 1906, leaving the presidency to Mrs. Allen.

The telents, enthusiasm, and unselfish spirit of Mary Davis Allen
rave Louisburg College one of its most colorful periods and a school
epirit that still influences the life of the colliege.

Mrs. Allen, now ninety-six years old and living in Varrenten,
North Carolina, continues her interest in the school with the wisdom
and energy of her earlier yeers. A niece recently described her as the
"smartest, cutest, brightest person I ever kenew, " 12

She is the daughter of Mabtthew Davis and Touise Hill Devie., Her
ancestry includes Green Hill, a first trustee of Franklin Acadery and a
pioneer in lethodismy John King, the first trustee of Franklin Acadeny
and a pioneer in Methodismy and Charles A, Hill, Franklin Acadeny
teacher and author of the North Carolina Literary Fund lLaw of 1025,

She attended school in Jouilsburg and received instruction from
her father., Yor nine years she taught in a school on the plantation of

TlInterview with Mrs. Ivey Allen in Warrenton, North Carolina.

nunmsonpt letter from Blanche Fgerton Baker, Coldsboro, Horth
Carolina to ¥iss Coor, April 20, 1958. 1In the president's office, Loulse

burg College.
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& cousin at Arcola, in Warren County. For one year she taught at Little~-
ton College before going to louisburg College as a member of Mr. Bagley's
faculty. Thile her father was president of the college, she served as
Iady Mansper and served so well that the achonl prosparad finanecially for
the first time in many years. DNuring her presidencr, har mmshand, Ivey
Allen, servad as secrelary and treasurer with similar sncaess.

In 1911 the Davis Memorial Building was erected as a memorial to
the Davis famdly. In the same year the college's first central heating
plant wag installed.

In 1917 ¥r. and Mrs. Allen decided to give their place of leader-
ship to one with special training for the tasks they saw coming with
expansion., For two years after the new president, Dr. F. 5. lLove, tock
over his duties, lrs. Allen remained at the college as dean. In 1919
she joined her husband at the Oxford Orphanage, where she was teacher
and he was treasurer.

They retired from their work at the orphanage in 1946 and went to
Varrenton to live. ir. Allen died after a few years.

Mrs. Allen recalls with pleasure the loyalty and happiness of the
servants, students, faculty, and town people during her thirty years as
teacher, manager, president, and dean of the college.

None of lirs. Allen's faculty received over $30.00 or §35.00 a
month for their sexrvices to the school, but the administration tried to
make up the difference between faculty salaries and the salaries of
pubiic school teachers by making the college work and social iife a
happy, satisfying experience. She thinks the success of a school
depends upon the loyalty of its faculty.



The most tregic experilence that Mrs. Allen remembers from her
years on the campus was one that happened one day in 1900-01, during a
flu spldemic, Two sisters who were studerts developed pneumonia, and
both died in their college room the same night. The mother of the girls,
who had come to visit her daughters, also developed pneumonia and died
soon after returning home. The brother of the two sisters soon entered
his niece at louilsburg College as a student, thus expressing his
family's continued confidence in the school. lirs. Allen feels that no
higher compliment could have been given the college.

By 1896 an Alummae aissociation had been fomed, and during lirs.
Allen's presidency the alumnae banouets became one of the notable
features of commencement week, Sometimes the banquet remuired a
caterer {rom Raleigh because the college could not provide enough
silve:varo.73

Something of the cultural aims of the college is indicated in a
booklet issued in 190910

The design of the President is to surround the pupils, while
under her care, with such influences as tend to cultivate taste,
refine and polish manners, develop and strengthen the moral sense,
and fit them to occupy with ease and graoo every department of
soclal and domestic life.

School life should be made pleasant and happy: discontent, worry
and homesickness, are alike opposed to successful progress in educa-
tional training and the development of amlable and cheerful disposi-
tions. A love for the good, the noble, and true is inculcated. The

teachers are the companions and advisors of the pupils, and seek to
guide them to the highest ideals of Christian womsnhood. The

T3 mterview with Mrs. Ivey Allen, Warrenton, North Carolina.
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Christian graces give to ladies a charm and power which no odormgt
of person or culture of intellect, in thelr absence, can produce.

In 190910 the eollege had the usual colleglate and preparvatory
departments, but also offered Normal Courses. The Normal Course in-
cluded the County Certificate Course which was intended to prepare stu=
dents for the County Certificate Exsminstion in any state. The course
could be completed in one school year. The Nommel Course also included
the Teachers! Course, which could be completed in three years, and the
Didactic Course, which could be completed in four years.!d

In 1909=10 elocution, stenography, and bookkeeping were added to
the curriculum, 76

In 1912-13 elooution was given the title Expression and Dramatic
Art. The objectives of the course were to stimulate mentel activity,
lead through literature to universal knowledge and an understanding of
2l the arts, teach a method of developing the natursl languages of
voice and body, and stimlate a knowledge of the suggestive character=
istics of language.'!

In 1912-13 diplomes were given only to those who took the full
lEneliah Course and one aneient and modern langusge. The reasons for
this, stated in the college catalogue, were as follows:

Thiouishurg College booklet, 190910, pe 6. In Louisburg College
Librarye.

7SIbM0’ Pe 150
761144,
"T10uisburg College Catalogue, 1912<13, pe 35.




h
The day has come when English is teken as & test and measure of
cultivation, Reallizing this, we give more time to the study of it
than heretofore. Orammay and Fhetoric are taught throughovt the en-
tire College course. Opeclal attention is given to Composition, and
in the Freshman and Sophomore classes much of this work is recuired
to be done under the eye of the teacher in the classroom. In

Vathematies thoroughness,; accuracy and a complete mastery of the sube
Ject are taught. Pupils are roq,t,xérod to do thelr own thinking and
Ke

to explain fully their cwn wor

By 1912 ®a bright, sunmy room® had been set apart for an
infirmery. A murse supervised the infirmary, and it was her duty "to
prevent the development of slight indisposition into serious illness; to
correct by careful treatment any tendency toward chronic disease; to win
the pupile to good bodily habits, and to instruct them in the laws of
health, 12

In 1915 the school reorganized its curriculum go that it could be
ranked as a junior college. The preparatory department continued with
its course of study including "Reading, Spelling, Writing, Arithmetic,
Ceography, Vistory, English, and Nature Study...instruction is given in
Drawing, Sewing, etc. n80

The collegiate department in the junior college offered two
ecourses, lLiterary and Classical., The Literary Course included English,
mathemetics, lLatin, sclence, history, French or Cerman, Bible,
psychology and education as resuired courses. Domestic sclence, music,

art, and expression were electives.

78Ibid., Phe 16"’170
"910uisburg College Catalogue, 1912-13, pe 10.
Bolnuisbnrg College Catalogue, 191h=15, p. 18.
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The (lzssleal Course Included the same required subjects, without
electives,

A Certificate of Proficiencgy was given every student who completed
successfully either one of the eowm.sl

As early as 1897 Louisburg College wes, in effect, under the
management of the Methodist Churche President Davis and his family
operated the college at that time with the interests of the church in
mind and were largely responsible for the church's receiving the

property as a gift.
The 1897 Journal of the North Carolina innual Conference contains

the following stetement, part of the Board of ¥ducation Report on lLouls—
burg Female College:

This College is managed in the interest of the lethodist church
and is on an economical basis, 80 as to place it within the reach
of 2ll who desire a good education. Special advantages are offered
the daughters of ministers of our Church.

The President, lire ¥. 5. Davis, only askg a trial to test ils
merits. It is worthy of a large patronage.o2

The 1900 Conference Journal reported: "The President of this
institution desires it to be strictly understood that 'Louisburg Female
College is owned and controlled by Methodists, and is run in the
interests of the Methodist Church, 3

achuisburﬁ College Catalogue, 191516, pp. 25-26.

82J .lg!_‘_theﬂqrthcarolimmmalcmfamg_g_thomtho-
dist Wl&%ﬂrﬁ'—swm’ IB;’ s pp.m.
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In 1907 ¥r. and lrs. Allen "prevalled upon Mr. Denjamin Duke" to
give the school to the North Cerolina Wethodist Conference.Sl

A deed dated Junuary 15, 1909, records the transfer of the loulse
burg College property to the Loulsburp College trustees fram Nr,
Benjamin N, Duke for one dollar "in orxder to encourage and pramote the
educational interests of the Methodist Eplseopal Church South." The
trustees were L. 0. Hassey, D. B. Zollicoffer, J. T. Flythe, Js He Shore,
Be W, Dallard, Z. We Iyon, A. Jo Parker, F. B. MeKinne, and G, F.
smith, 85

In 1909 the Board of Rducation of the Methodist Church reported
that the management of the college had been turned over to the Board of
Trustees, 26

Then the propsrty wes signed over to the lNorth Carclina Methodist
tonference; the school was free of debt. Vhen the Allens left loulsburg
College in 1917 after thirty years of service, the Methodist Conference
had spent no money on the school except for §9,000.00 on the Davis
Building.m

8htnterview with lirs. Ivey Allen.
85 ranklin County Register of Deeds, Book 162, p. 16k.
88j0urnal, op. cit., 1909, p. 50.
871nterview with Mrs. Ivey Allen.
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CHAPTER V
LOUISEURG COLLEGE (1915-1938)

The spirit of determination and loyalty that Louisburg College
inherited from its academy and young college years came to its rescue
many times during later years of expansion, depression, and re-growth.
The determination of its leaders and the loyalty of its faculty, stu-
dents, and friends carried the college forward and fixed it so firmly
that it mounted every crisis that occurred during the period between
1915 and 1938,

I, THE JUNIOR COLLECE

At & meeting in 1913, the presidents of women's colleges of the
lethodist Fpiscopal Church, South, requested the Ceneral Board of Educa=
tion of the Church to urge the Ceneral Conference to make provisions for
creabing a new division known as Junior Oollegu.l

The report of the Committee of Junior College Courses of Study
wag adopted by the presidents and was printed in the lLouisburg College
Catalogue announcements for 1914=-1915. The report consisted of the
following parts: (1) That the same entrance requirements be accepted as
for the college; (2) that thirty semester hours of college work be
recuired for a diplomaj (3) that senior colleges grant full eredit for
the two years work offered by the junior callogel.2

1Inuiabnrg College Catalogue, 191h=15, ps 20

21044,
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The North Carolina Conference of the Methodist Episcopal Church,
South, joined the president and trustees of the college in 191k in a
recuest to the Ceneral Doard of Wducation for classification as a jJjunior
college.? In 1915 the college "™wisely reorganiszed with the status of a
Junior college. nh

After the re-organization, & diploma from Loulsburg College was
conferred upon the student who had completed fourteen units for enirance
to the Junior Class and thirty hours of approved college vork.>

The school as a junior college offered work in three departments:
preparatory, sub=collegiate, and colleglste. Courses were arranged to
offer the first two years of higher college work, and the courses were
designed in terms of semester hourse

The preparatory department--grades one through six—-prepared
students for the sub-collegiate classes. The course of study was the
same thet had been offered in the years just prior to 1915.

The recuirements for admission to the college freshman class
were: mathematicsj arithmetic completed and algebra to quadrztics;
sciencej geography, Tarr and Melurray's, Frey's or Maury's completed;
physiology completed; Pnglishs English gremmar completed, elements of
rhetoric and ten Fnglish classics completed, compositionj Iatin: begin-
ner's Iatin completed, two books of Caesar.®

3Journal of the North Carolina Conference of the Hethodist
gpiaeopd'm, 50ubhs 101k Pe Lile

lneynolde and ceaton, Peport of Survey, 19L8.
Sgatalogue, 1916=17, pe 23,

6Ib“’ Pe 2L,




In the eollegiate department, the curriculum included

English - with the emphasis on literature and language, by texts and
collateral reading

History = designed to give a comprehensive survey of general, Huropean,
English, and American history by texts-books and collateral
reading

Mathematice -~ taught mainly for the purpose of mental development
rather than for practical uses

Sclence - to give thorough understending in chemistiry, physics, and
astronomy

Education - intended to give preparstion for the work of organizing,
governing, and teaching in public or private schools

Bible =~ designed to give a comprehensive knowledge of the (ld and New
Testament

Latin - with the aim of leading to accurate knowledge of Latin grammar
and ability to translate fluently

Modern Langueges - French and Cerman, with constant practice in sight
reading, study of grammar, and parallel reading

Music - plano, organ, and voice, theory, harmony, and musical history

Art - with thorough instruction in drawing and painting

Expression and Dramatic Art

Domestic Art - sewing reouired of 2ll students

Home Economics - theoretical and practical

Business - including stenography, typewriting, end bookkeeping,!
ixpenses in the junior college at Louisburg were still held to a

minimum, with the basic expenses for the student amounting to $88.50 per

tern in 1915.% Fxpenses were higher in 1917, with the basic expenses

TIbide, ppe 29-50.
8catalogue, 191k=15, pe L.



amounting to §98.50 per term, or {101.00 if the student lived in the
Devis Memorial Fuilding.® In 1918 the emount of expenses was $112,00
per term, or $114.50 for the student living in Davis Building.10
Tducated at Trinity College, Columbia University, and Union
Theological Seminarxy, the Reverend lLove in 1917 accepted the leadership
of ILoulsburg College in expanding the newly organized junior college to
meet its needs. He not only served as president of the college, but he
served as treasurer, as professor of education, and as professor of
history,t
esel have done the full work of a college tescher, having all
the college history, have assumed every administrative responsi-
bility that I could possibly meet, have traveled more than...five
in yoatsloniiy’ vvesy purt of the Guaterensare
pra ry parb
As a result of his scoualnting himself with the departments of
his school, one of the first accomplishments was the reorganization of
the education department. The newly orgenized department offered six
courses in eduecation: PBducation I, (2) Seience of Human Nature (b)
How to Study: Fduecation IT, (a) Mundementals of Child Study (b) Special
Method in the Recitationj Pducation IIT, Method and Educational
Psychology; fducation IV, first term, Bagley's School Management and

Bulleting from the State Department of Fducation, second term, The

Pcatalogue, 191718, pe 5l.
10catalogue, 1918-19, pe 55.
ucltdo& 5 1917"15, PPe ll"S’ Pe 380

12peport of the President of Louisburg College to the Doard of
Trustees, December, 1J17e et pTe e+ 4 arp




Country Iife and Country Schoolj Tducetion V, History of Tducationg
Pducation VI, which was the same as Bidle IV.L3

During lr. Love's administration, the preparatory depertment re-
mained for the primsry and intermediate ages but came under the diree-
tion of the Department of Education. The course of study included
reading, spelling, writing, arithmetic, geography, Fnglish, history,
nature study, end dming.n"

The sub=collesiate depertment continued to offer a complete high
school course with the ssme faculty that served the collegilate depart-
ments Pvery sdvantage of the college was 2t the disposal of the sube
collegiate students.l®

In all depertments attention was given to the individual student.
Individual attention and the pleasant home life of the college had
received emphasls in every catalogue since Mr. Bagley's reocpening the
school in 1889,

The Student Covernment ceme into being in the 1918-19 term, "in
ovder thet the student of louisburg College may have an opportunity for
a larger development in learning the socizl cualities of self-control
and individual responsibility to the commnity."'® The president, the
dean, and two members of the faculty made up an advisory board to assist

catalozue, 1927-18, pp. 38-L0.
mpid,, pe 53.

15110,

160:1:&1053._, 1918«19, p. 5%,
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the students in unusually difficult adjustmenta; The dean regulated all
off-campus permissions.li?

At the end of his first year, President love presented a program
of expansion for the college. The program called for the construction
of a residence on the campus for the faculty, & wing on the south side
of Main Building corresponding to the Davis Building but larpger in order
to give more classroom and dormitory space, an extension of the dining
room and kitchen srea, & two=story science building, and a gymaium.m

From the fducational Drive planned for the entire Southern Metho=
dist Church, the amount of money apportioned to louwisburg College was
$245,000,00, & sum which provided for the outlined building program,
esteblished an endowment of #100,000.,00, and liocuidated the college
indebtedness.1?

In 1918, the college purchased two tracts of land adjoining the
back campus on the south side and erected the president's home on one
part.zo The other tract was lster prepared for tennis courts, and is
gtill used for that purpose.

171014,
18wpeport of the President," May 21, 1918,

1950land W. Reinwater, Jr., "The Contribution of louisburg
College to Christian Education With Special heference to the Half-
Century, 1889=1939" (unpublished Master's Thesis, Duke University, 19L3),
pe 23+ (Also see Journal of North Carolina Conference of the lMethodist
%ﬁh&cb, South, 1911, pp. Gé=0je. The Conlference 1n 1710 had
v o borrow £10,000,00 on the college property. Mrs., Allen, the
president of Loulsburg Female College, was to pay anmually the interest
on the amount.)

20ppanklin County Register of Deeds, Book 217, pe 522.
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In June, 1920, ir. Love rehired from his college work to return to
active ministry. "We record our highest appreciation of the fine work
and constructive leadership of lev. Fo 5. lLove, vho since June, 1917, has
been president of this institution,” were the words of the Conference
Board of Education in its ammal report.2l

The Reverend L. S. Massey, who joined the North Carsline Metho-
dist Conference in 1891, succeeded V'r. love as president of Louisburg
college.az He had been chzirman of the college Poard of Trustees since
1908, the year in which the management of the college was turned over to
the trustees by the Vorth Cerolina Vethodist Conference.?3 e was one
of the three persons appointed to effect the transfer of the property
from ¥r. B. H. Duke to the Conference.2l

During lir. Messey's first yvear ge president there were nineteen
members of the facuvlty. Essentiel expenses for a etudent were §1L0.00
per term.2> The yeer was reported st the meeting of the North Carolina
Vethodist Conference to have been a good one but with & elightly de-
ereased enrollment. "This institution is in grest need of more eouip-

ment end more roomy," the Doard of ¥ducation reporbad.26

21 youynal, 1920, p. 68,

22114,

23patelorue, 1909-10, pe ke

2hryankiin County Replster of Deeds, Book 162, pe 16h.
25catelopue, 1920=21, ppe. 2=3; pe 16k

26Journal, 1921, p. 73.
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At the 1922 nonference of the Metlhodlst Church, the report of the
Board of Tducation repeated the statement concerning the college's need
for more equipment, and more room, mt added that Nr, R. U, Vright of
Darham had made during the yesar 1921-22 a gift of 220,000.00 to the
college, the ilncome from which was to be used to aid worthy giris. The
Gonference considered the gift notable in the history of the eollepe and
recommended that Mre Tright be elected as a trustee of the colleges2! He
wes elected and remsined a trustee until hie death in 1929,

¥re. Massey resigned as president of the college in June, 1922, to
return to the ministry.

II. THE EXPANSION YEARS

The need for expansion of the college had been recogniged by Hre.
Ivey Alleny former president, befors 1707. Her successors, Mre. Love and
My, Massey, kept before the Conference the need of more buildings and
eruinment,s The years 1922 through 1929 brought the actual expansion.

Professor srthur Wyandt ohn succeeded v, Masgey as president of
the eollege in June, 1922, Fducated a2t Ohio Northern University, Ohio
Wesleyan iniversity, and the University of Chicago, this president came
to lLoulghburg College at a time when a decision had to be mede whether to
build or close the school. MNie Mohn was described ss the "right leader
at the right time," for it wes hie attitude that "122 years of service to

27 Journal, 1922, p. 52.
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the girls of Franklin County constitutes a trust too sacred and valuable
to give up without a struggle to the doath."za

lire Mohn convinced the Board of Trustees and the Conference Board

of Education of the importance of Louisburg College and outlined a pro-
gram of development. Shortly, in September, 1923, the Executive Com=
mittee of the trustees adopted the following resolutions:

Whereas, it is the conviction of all forward looking educators
that the Junior College is an absolutely necessary and most impore
tant unit in the educational systems of both Church and state, and

Whereas, the history, traditions and surroundings of Loulsburg
College prepare it to be the mucleus for a Junior College which to
say the least can not be excelled,

Therefore, be it resolved, that steps be taken at once to expand
the buildings and ecuipment of the college to the capacity (200 to
250) where efficiency and econonmy in administration can be secured,??

Since the college dormitories were filled to overflowing, making

it impossible to wait for completion of a financial campaign, the com=
mittee recommended that the Conference Board of Education be requested
to authorize the Board of Trustees to bond the institution and to
borrow 375,000.003‘3 Permission to borrow the amount for improvements to
existing buildings and for the construction of new buildings, and to
execute a deed of trust upon any or all property of the college was
given by the North Carclina Conference in annual session in November,
1923, In giving its consent, the Conference stipulated that it assumed

no moral or legal responsibility for the obligations assumed by the

2B)\ews item in The Franklin Times, July 15, 192L.

29g_}rrmt-u of the Executive Committee of the Foerd of Trustees,
Louisburg College, September U, 1023.

301bid,.
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trustees of the college.l At the same session the Conference Board of
Fducation endorsed the forward movement on the part of the trustees of
the college by which they proposed to raise additional funds for the
enlargement of facllities and for an endowment .>°

The college trustees resolved to issue 180 Negotiable Coupon
Bonds, aggregating §75,000.00 and maturing serially 1929 to 1943, and to
secure the loan by a deed of trust on the college progorty.” The bonds
were issued by the Board of Trustees on iarch 1, 192k, and on the same
day a deed of trust was uacuted.3h

The eitizens of Franklin County had agreed to raise $150,000.00
2s a part of the expansion program, but for months ir. dMohn could find
no one who believed that the county could carry out its part of the
forward movement. Craduslly he persuaded the leaders of the county to
organize for the purpose of raising the $150,000,00. He inspired them
individually until seventy-five workers in the campaign worked day and
night to make the campaign in Franklin County a success. On July 12,
192, the county had subscribed £120,000,00.3°

A twenty-five percent increase in the student body was noted in
the 1925 report of the Conference Board of Bducation. Also reported was

BIJW, 1923’ PPe 69"'700
321‘9“0. Pe 710

339m, He & Thos. Fuffin, "Opinion Upon the Bonds Offered by the
Louisburg Female College," in President's office.

lbpranklin County Register of Deeds, Book 261, p. 139.
35News item in The Franklin Times, July 15, 192lL.
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a gift of §100,000.00 from ¥r. B. N. Duke of Durham. The Conference was
asked to endorse a movement to raise a fund of a half million dollars
outside of the churches proper for bullding and endowment., The report
was adopted.36

In March, 1926, blueprints and plans for the present Franklin
County Bullding were presented to the Executive Committee of the college
Board of Trustees and approved., The committee ordered the architect to
proceed at once with the building plans and specifications and ordered
work to begin as soon as the Frunklin County people had $60,000.00 on
hand. Mr. Mohn reported §3kL,812.6) on hand and $49,200.61 definitely
promised on the Frenklin County Bullding.>! On arch 30, 1926, the
total Franklin County Fund assets were $57,750.28.% In November it was
ennounced that the Franklin Puilding wes closed in at a cost of
§150,000,00,39

A gift of $80,000,00 from ¥r. Hichard H. Wright, trustee, to the
college made possible the erection of a girls' dormitory named in memory
of Ur. ¥right'e sister, Pattie Julis Wright. The building was dedicated
on November 23, 1926,0 The three-story, red brick, stone=trimmed

36Jonrm1, 1925’ PPe 62=53

37Minntu of the Executive Committee of the Poard of Trustees,
larch 2, m

3811316.0. March 30. 1926.
3ews item in The News and Observer, November 23, 1926.

ho"Gi.ﬁ.a on the learthstone of Christian Vomenhood in North
Carolina," a leaflet in the Loulsburg College Library.
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building, corresponding in style with Main Building, could accommodate
one hundred and four girls. The basement rooms of the new building were
a well-equipped domestic science d.partme!!bom

¥re Wright was born in 1851 within elght miles of Loulsburg
College., He left Franklin County at an early age and returned fifty
years later to give his gifts in memory of his slster, Pattie Julla, whe
had died soon after her graduation from Louisburg Female College in 1868,

Nedication ceremonies for Wright Dormltory were held in the
Louisburg Methodist Church, since the college had no auditorium to seat
the student body and visitors. At the conelusion of a brief speech
during the program, Mr. Wright surprised the college trustees with
another gift of $50,000.00., "I want this to be used to hal.p' poor girls
attend this college," he said simply.bh2

President Mohn was optimistic about the college development pro-
gram vhen he presented a summary report to the Executive Commitiee of
the Board of Trustees in the spring of 1927. The student body more than
doubled in the three years after 1923. For 1925-26 the enrollment was
2,0, with 73 gradustes. There were twenty=-one faculty members, the
value of the property was {L69,000,00, and the school had an endowment
fund of $100,000,00 given by Mr. D. N Duke.i3 The objective of the
program was to provide for 500 students by reising §1,000,000.00.

Wyews 1tem in The News and Observer, November 23, 1926.

k21014,
b3journal, 1926, pe She



The Hethodict Conferense in gession in 1923 had epproved a goal of
£500,000.00, 0Of that amount $250,000,00 wes to be used for endowment,
and $250,000,00 for buildings. In 1927, ir. iohn reported $30,000.00 as
secured on the endowment fund from Worth Carolina Methodist subserip-
tions, $80,000,00 from Mr. Re He Wright, end §100,000.00 from Mr. B. Ne
Tuke. For buildings, he reported 500,000,000 given Ly Mr. Wright for the
erection of the Pattie Julia Vright Bullding, and the $150,000.00 raised
for the Franklin County Building. The totels amounted to §210,000,00
secured on endowment and §230,000,00 secured for buildings, meking the
grond total secured by 1927, 8li0,000,00,

The second part of the development progrem approved in 1925 was
to provide for sdditional endowment and building fund. Items not pro-
vided for in the originel progrem were a dormitory, dining hall,
teacherape, president's home, teachers' cottages, library, dairy and
farm, infiymary, campus tennis courts, funding of vonds, repair debts,
all estimated to cost §330,000.00,5

In the fall of the same year, 1927, Mr. W. E. White, trustee {rom
Franklin County, reported Lo the Fxeculive Commitiee that "Lusiness con-
ditions in the county are fine, but the people feel that if they could
raise §$100,000,00, the Metbodist Conference should raise {350,000,00."
At the same meebing, the Committes appolinted a special coumittee to

iinutes of the Executive Gommittee, Hay 2L, 1927
k51014,




investigate the property title of Lhe college in order to ascertain
whether the Conference owned the college in fee si.mpil.et.h6

A%t the sescion of the Methodist Conference held in November, 1927,
the Trustees of the Conference were empowered to convey to the college,
a body corporate, or to the duly elected and cuslified ILouisburg College
Trustees, all the proporty and title vested in the Conference by virtue
of Seetion 7 of the original charter of Louilshurg Female College. How=
ever, nothing in the conveyance was in any way to impair or diminish zny
right, power or privilege of the Conference in the control end managew
ment of the real property of the college as otherwise provided in the
original charter, The action was taken for the purpose of sliminating
any possible necessity for the Conference Trustees %o join in the
execution of any deed of trust which might obligate the Confersnce for
the payment of any debts so incurred.l7

The speciel commitiee appointed by the college trustess to
investigate the title of the college property made & roport concerning
the removal of restrictions covering tho owmership of the ccllege, and
the report was accepted in May, 1928. The town Board of Commissioners
was given an expression of thanks from the college trustees for the
interest of the town in the growth of Louisburg College.td

bérvia,, October 6, 1927.
h7Joumnl, 1927, ppe. 53-5k.
li8ysmutes of the Board of Trustees, May 22, 1928.




Although the administration wes cptimistie shout the expansion
program, a sethack occurred in April, 1927. The old weoden building,
built for the Female Acadeny in 181lL, and later moved to the south side
of the campus to be used as an ennex to the cellege, burned, entailing a
lose of approximately §5,000.00; not covered by insurance. The loss of
the Puilding snd the crowded conditions made it necessary to cormandeer
gome of the unfinished classrooms of the Franklin County Puilding to
acconmodate the art and the music departments which had been housed in
the annes,k®

The less prompted the Fxeeutive Committee at the next meeting in
June, 1927, to instruct the building committee to make necessary pro-
visione for new classrooms, science rooms, and 2 likrary in the "ranklin
Puilding,50

In 1927, Mr. Mohn was granted a six months' leave of absence on
part=time service to the college, with traveling expenses and calary for
the time of service fixed on the basis of his annual s-zla::'y.51 ¥re Eeo Le
TYest, superintendent of Tranklin County schools, was elected to serve as
chairman of the faculty during ¥r., Yohn's absence. MNr. Best agreed to
act without salary, but because of his regular work he could not assume
any responsibility for collection of subseriptions to the building ﬁmﬂ.s2

L9%ewe item in The Franklin Times, April 1, 1927.

sommxtee of the Ixecutive Committee, June 9, 1927.

Slyimutes of the Foard of Trustees, August 27, 1927.

521 nutes of the Executive Committee, September 8, 1927,
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At the anmusl session of the lMethodist Conference in the fall of
1927, the Conference Board of Fducation recommended "“that the Trustees of
Louisburg College be given permission to issue §125,000.00 in bonds for
the purpose of funding the existing bonded indebtedness; to pay outstand-
ing building obligations and complete the central heating system." The
Board also approved plans for the enlargement and equipment of the col-
lege., The number of students for 1926-27 was nearly three hundred. The
value of eculpment and loan funds was $485,137.7h.5°

A committee from the Southern Association of Colleges and Second-
ary Schools inspected the college in November, 1926, and approved the
college in prectically all lines, but the committee recommended that the
size of classes be reduced, that all teachers meet the minimum scholastic
recuirement of graduation from a standard college and one year in grad-
uzte school, and that the income from the church appropriation be in-
creased from §1,000.,00 to §10,000.00 a year. Dre Jo He Highsmith, State
Supervisor of High Schools, stated before the Association committee that
the two years of college work offered at Loulsburg Coliege was as highly
regarded as that offered by any college in NHorth Carolina. The committee
could not place the college on the accredited 1ist because the acadeny
maintained by the college did not meet all of the recuirements for
acereditatione Sl

During the Mohn administration the college was opened to the
Epworth league Conference (now called the Methodist Youth Fellowship)

53journal, 1927, p. 56.
Shpeport of President lohn to the Trustees for 1927-28.
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of the Horth Carclina Methodist Conference for sumer assemblies, a
courtesy which has been extended since that time.

Mr. Mohn felt that 1927 was the most satisfactory of his six
years at Louisburg College. For the Franklin County Building, §$67,91L.43
had been collected, and the first floor had been completed and furnished
for use. That year he reported that the Franklin County people had paid
$67,91L.43, with $82,085.57 in unpaid pledges; Mr. Ke He Wright had
given a total of §160,000.00; ¥r. 2. No Duke had given §100,000,00; and
the North Caroline lethodist Conference had given $6,955.36 with the
amount of $23,0kl.6l in unpaid pledges.>®

The report for 1920829 was not optimistic, for on December 5,
1928, the two top stories of lain Puilding and the west wing were
partially destroyed by fire with a loss of approximately $200,000.00.
The Davis Puilding was damaged Ly water, but the ¥right Building and the
Franklin Building suffered no damage.”® The fire, believed to have
started from the heating system, was first discovered in the chapel,
which was on the fourth floor. Two sisters named Knox, whose home was
at Liverty, Worth Carolina, discovered the fire and hurried to the firet
floor to give the alarm by ringing the school bell., By doing so they
lost all of their personal belongings, but they were credited with save
ing the lives snd belongings of the other students. OSchool was dis-
missed until after the Christmas holidays.>T

551bid.

56jjews item in The Franklin Times, December 1l, 1928.

5Tyews item in The heleigh Times, December 5, 1928.
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At a meebing the day after the fire, the trustees of the college
considered the emergency and decided that the wisest course wes to start
a drive at once for the funds to complete the ranklin “uilding in order
that schosl could open on schedule after the holidays. It was estimated
that it would cost 540,000.00 %o complete the bullding to the point where
the room facilities would be available. Contracters promised that the
work could be done within thirty days by working day and nighte The
fifth and final payment on the building, which was due in December, in
addition to the lapsed payments, would amount to about %6(3,000.00.58 The
Executive Committee voted on the same day to carry an emergency appeal to
the Bishop, Presiding Elders, and churches of the Methodlist Conference.
President Mohn was authorised to send telecgrams to special prospective
donora.”

Tt was the consensus among the trustees that the Franklin County
people were willing to pay and intended to nay pledges, tut because of
the financial conditions they were not able to pay. The Board voted to
lend the insurance money, collected from the loss of the buildings by
fire, to finish the Franklin Puilding.®0 The amount of insurance
collected was $83,000.,00, Of that amount $3L,000.00 was borrowed to
complete the Franklin Pullding.6l

58N0wu item in The Irenklin Times, Necember 1k, 1928.

5%imites of the Fxecutive Committee, December 6, 1928.

60yimtes of the Board of Trustees, December 1k, 1928.

€lpresident lohn's Anmmal Report to the Board g£ Trustees,
1928-29,
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"The most unsatisfactory condition this year has been brought
about by fallure of the North Carclina Conference to meet our expscta-
tions in regard to the raising of £350,000.00, the objective as deter-
mined by the Conference at ite session in Raleigh in 1927," Mr. Mohn
stated in his snnual report for 1928-29, Again the college could not be
accredited by the Southern ‘ssocistion, this tine becsuse the stzble ine-
come from the Church appropriation did no% reach {10,000.00, The only
income for 192829 was ©1,791.78 from the Duke Wndowment, and {l,020.00
from the church, making a total of #8,811.59 for the yeer's income, The
college was aceredited by the State Department of Publie Instruction,
which grahtad teachers! certificates without examination to 21l louisburg
Cellege students who had completed the college educatien coum.&

At commencement on May 23, 1928, Mr. Mohn announced that ir.
Richard Wright had Just made two additional gifts to the college--one of
£150,000,00 for a new building to be known as the R. ¥, Vright Audito-
rium to complement the Pattie Julia ¥Wright Building, and the other of
£100,000,00 for the college endommsnt fund, conditional on the subscrip-
tion of £500,000.00 by friends of the college. Nr. Vright, with this
gift, had given a total of {430,000,00 to the oollogc.63

Since the $500,000.00 had not been subscribed by friends of the
college vhen lir. Wright died on March kL, 1929, the money he had offered

for an auvditorium and endowment was not received., lowever, Nr. Wright

621p1d.

€3rgifte on the Hearthstone of Christian Vomanhood irn Worth
Carolina," a leaflet in the Loulsburg College Library.



had given the college a lot valued at {150,000.,00 on Chapel Hill snd
Roney streets in Durhame It was the plan of the trustees to0 ereet a
mercantile bullding on the lot and use the proceeds to bulld & Wrl hi
Vemorisl Auditorfium.® A comittee negotisted with B. C. Quinn Furniture
Company in Durham, and the ecoupany entered into a written agreement to
lease the hullding for five years at 10,300.00 a ym.65

luch can be said of lire Mohn's accomplishments in building up the
physical plant at Louisburg College and of his ascomplishments in devel-
oping the inmer life of the college.

¥ith betler equipment and more space, each department had a
better opportunily to grow. The home economice department offered two
courses, Teacher's Course and “ome Makey's Course. A student taking the
Teachor's Course was requived to teke English, history, science, a
foreign language, textlles, clothing, costume design, foods and cockery,
dressuaking and millinery, and home management. £ student taking the
Home Maker's Course was reculred to take the same program in addition to
mutrition and food preparation, food preservation and canning, and home
murging and child care. No foreign language was recuired in the Home
Haker's &mm.66

The Department of Fine Arts grew until there were twenly pages in
the catalogue piving course descriptions. The School of ifuslic designed

6ly1i mites of the Ixecutive Committee, June 29, 1929.

smmacript letter from R. He Vright, Jr.,to Rev. J. He Shore,
filed with the linutes of the Board of Trustees, July 30, 1929.

66gatalogue, 1927-28, pp. Lhi-i7.
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its courses for the preparstory, academy, and college ages. The school
taught lessons in pilane, veice, pipe organ, violin, viola, violincello,
and cortrabass, Instruection in wood-winds, brasses, and percussions wes
offered orchestrally., Histery of musie, harmony, and theory were
courses recuired for the students graduating in piano; volee, or violin.
¥onthly student recitale were held, 67

Pxprescior courses geve particular attention to tracing favlts of
speech teo their esusees end the elimineticn of faulte by prover training.
lessons were given on preparstory, sub=colleriate, and sollepiate levels.
For a collepge diplome in expression; the following regquirements had to
be met:

1. The completion of the full four yesrs! conrse ae outlined and
the giving of a satisfactory publie reecitel.

2. The completion of the academic work outlined for college
entrance.

3, The completion of twenty~four semester hours of eollege work,
as followss English, 63“1" hours; lodern lLanguapes, six hours;
Plectives, six hours.

A repular eourse in the Schoal of Art covered four years, but a
student was not held haek until the end of the vear if her work warranted
sromotion before that time, The Teacher'!s Course in Industrial Art ine-
¢luded probleme in 1illnstration, interior decoration, household arts and

erafts, designing, sdvertising, modeling and casting, history, and

67“16.-, Phe L8-62,
681hid,., pp. 63-65.
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research. A diploma was given for the completion of four years' work,
and & certificate wae given for the completion of three years! worke %

In the School of Pusiness, the Secretarial Course included Oregg
shorthand, touch typewriting, business English, business pemmanship,
rapid ealeulation, office training, and business letter writings; the
Bookkeeping Course included hookkeeping, ¥nglish, pemmanship, spelling,
arithmetie, rapid ealeunlation, commerecial law, and business lstter
writing.7°

A mality point system was intmduced by lMr, Vohn's administraw-
tion, COrades were bhased on letters 4, B, 0, D, B, F, with "®" being a
eonditional failurs that ecould be removed Ly repeating and passine the
failed course, To each of the grades, values in points were assirnede
three points for each semester hour of Aj; two points for each hour of Bj
one noint for each hour of C3 no noints for each hour of 0, B, and ¥,
The grade A meant 96 to 100; B, 90-953 ¢, 80-89; D, 70-79; ¥, 60-693
¥, 60«, Tor college praduation, 2 student was recuired to have sixty
semester hours and sixty points in addition to the reeuired work in
physical educatier, For high school graduation, the student was re-
emired to have fifteen units and fifteen pointe in addition to the re-
quired vork in physieal eduestion, /%

The same student orgerizations as in previous years existed dur-

ine ¥vr, Yobnte administretion, with the addition of the Dramaties Club,

691’01(!. 3 PP 65=67,
7°Tbid o5 DDe 68-72 -
nIbi.d.o 9 Do 25 ®
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which was open to 2ll students. The elub was responsible for several
plays during the year. The student publicatlon was The Qak, the college
anmual, which is still published. The library was increased from one
thousand to three thousand volumes while ir. Nohn was preuldont.n

Expenses also inereased, bringing the basic expenses for each

student to §356.00 each year. Payments were to be made at the beginning
of each tnrn.73

Very few rules of behavior were printed in the catalogue between

1923 end 1929, The following gives the attitude of the administration
towards rules and regulstions:

School life should be made pleasant and happy...The Teachers are
the companions and advisers of the pupils; they seek to guide them
to the highest ideals of Christian womanhood...The repulations of
the School recuire that each student shall be lady-like and honor-
able in her conduct as long as she remains within its walls. Due
respect at all times aend under all circumstances must be peid to
officers and teachers.

All college authorities have learned by experience that it is
both necessary and prudent to have some well-defined rules for the
protection and benefit of the students, and perents are requested
not to give permission which conflicts with these regulstions.
Pupils come to college for work and improvement, and nothing should
be permitted to interfere with their duties.

Their interest is the ruling consideration, and the mimxte% de=
tail of every regulation is planned with reference to thems..

Commencenents were climactie events during the years when lr.

Vohn was president. One particular commencement, that of lay, 1929,

2 Tbid., PPe 1L-18.
"3104de, ppe. 75-76.
7hrbid. 5 PPe 73=The



"set a precedent in the history of college gradustions in the United
States...vhen a combination of aeroplanes, radio broadcast, moving
pictures and Billy Sunday played a conspicuous part."’> The college
bell was lifted from the belfry and carried by the president of the
graduating class and the officers of the student council who headed the
procession of seniors in caps and gowns., As the procession moved across
the campus to the high school auditorium, two airplanes circled overhead
to drop roses, gifts from the alumnae and 753 churches of the North
Carolina Conference, When the students had gathered in the auditorium,
¥r. Mohn stepped up to the bell placed in front of the microphone and
broadcast to the alumnae 1L9 taps from the bell that had called students
to classes for 1LY years. The broadcast was made from station WPTF
through a specially leased telephone wire from Louisburg to Raleigh.
Reverend L. W, Sunday, D.D., addressing an audience that overflowed onto
the campus where amplifiers were placed, advised the graduating class to
have a set purpose in life. In addition to the regular diplomas, the
president presented forty-two Blue Seal diplomas to graduates who had
completed the courses in Religious Education outlined by the Roard of
Bducation of the Methodist Church, and five state teachers! certificates.’®

Hre Mohn resigned as president in the summer of 1929 to work with
Yartz and Lundy, Inc. "

TSyews item in The News and Observer, May 13, 1929.
T61p14,

"Myinutes of the Bosrd of Trustees, August 2, 1929.
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ITI, THE CRISIS

Following the years of physical expansion the oonoge was heavily
indebteds &ince the burden came during the time of depression, the
school again faced the possibility of having to close. The loyalty of
friends, however, brought the college through another crisis to another
period of growth.

Upon Mr. lkohn's resignation in the summer of 1929, the Reverend
Ce Co Alexander of Birmingham, Alabama, was elected president of lLouis-
burg College. Nr. Alexander was educated at Duke i'niversity, Princeton
University, and Princeton Theological Saminary.78

It was the opinion of the Conference Board of Fducation at the
time when lr. Alexander assumed his duties as president that the college
was "facing one of the greatest crises in its history," and the board
reconmended "sympathetic and full co-operation with the present adminis-
tration in its efforts to maintain this splendid college, which is de-
voted to the task of education as a Junior College."’”

lire Alexander faced an indebtedness of §158,138.52; the total
value of the property was §L6k,890.47.30 The appropriation made by the
Conference for 192930 was {5,000.,00; for the year ending in the fall of
1929, the Conference had paid $3,599.63 of the §$5,000.00 appropriated.Sl

7808“1022‘, 1929-30, p. bLe

79 Journal, 1929, pe 51.

80301and V. Rainweter, Jre, ope cites pe 30
81Jonrnl1, 1929, Pe 520
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To assist the college trmstees in working out a2 financial plan for
meeting the problems of the college, the Conference appointed in 1529 a
comuission of five meng J. F. Bruton, of "ilsonj Re. L. Flowers; of Dure
hem; Willis Smith, of Raleighj W. A. Stanbury, of Durham; and Ce Ke
Proctor, of Oxfoﬂ.sz

In its November, 192% meeting, the Board of Trustees authorized a
conmittee to use money given to the college by Mr. Be Wo Duke and depos-
ited in varilous banks to apply to the payment of nctes held Ly those
banks apainst the college, and to apply the surplus to the payment of
most urgent bills egainst the college.03 The trustees also suthorized
the chairman of the trustees to write to R. E. Juinn end Company of Dur-
ham notifying the company of the "failure of the Noyth Carolina Confer
ence of the lethodist Episecopal Church, Jouth, to pass the necessary
resolution for securing a loan and developing the Chapel Hill and Roney
Street lots in Durhams.e...” The trustees authorized a member of its
board to get the consent of the Vright estete to sell the lots. The
income from the proceeds was to be allowed to accumulate and augment its
prineipal until there were sufficient funds to build the Wright Vemorial

Auditorim.w
Yhen the college was offered $65,000.00 for the lots in Durham,

various trustees folt that it was unwise to accept the orfcr.as In

leb’.do, Pe 510
83yimites of the Board of Trustees, November 11, 1929.
844,

85uimtes of the Board of Trustees, February 1k, 1930.
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October, 1930, the fxecutive Committee of the Board of Trustees ordered

that the trustees reconvey to the estate of H. He Vright the ilurham lots,

but the records show that the property remained as a part of Louisburg
College pmperw.aé

In September, 1930, the college trustees submitted the foilowing

ouestions to the commission appointed by the Methodist Conference in

1929 to work with the trustees in solving the financial problems of the

college:

the

le In the opinion of the Commission, is there any possibility of
the Conference's arranging sufficient financial assistance to enable
Louisburg College to contimue as a Conference institution?

2, If not, would the Commnission recommend an attempt to interest
the NMuke Endowment Trustees to take over and continue the operation
upon such terms and conditions es may be worked ouv?

3. That other advice does the Commission oﬂ‘cr?BT
The Commission submitted through its secretary, Nr. K. L. Flowers,
following answers to the trustees:

l. The Commission believes that the Church needs a junior col=
lege, such as Louishurg College, and we believe that it would be a
great disappointment to the Church for lLouisburg College to be dis-
contimied. ¥e believe the Trustees should exhaust every possible
means to raise funds for its continuance. However, the Comuission
does not feel anthorized or willing to advise that the Conference
would be justified in assuming as an obligation the financing of
Touisburg College, or any other educational institution.

2+ seettccording to terme of Indenture of J. Ps Duke, Trustees of
the Duke Endowment could not take under its direction any educational
institution not mentioned in the indenture.

861 mites of the Executive Committee, Ocbober 1k, 1930.

ETrimtes of the Board of Trustees, September 3, 1930.
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3, The Commission doeg not feel empowared to adviee but pledges
its personal cooperation. 8

The trustees moved that President Alexzander open college on sched-
ule on September 10, 1930, and endeavor to continue operation, He was
authorized to borrow §2,000.,00 with the anmal eppropriation from the
Conference as security. He was instructed to pay only the obligations
that were absolutely mmoary.89

In his annual report for 1929-30, President Alexander reported to
have found "disturbing conditions.® During his first year, the Conference
Board of Hducation promised the college §1,000,00 or §1,500.00 if the
money were availeble. The trustees had withdrswn $L0,000.00 from the en-
dowment and had paid off notes to the amount of {32,000,00. At the advice
of Hre. Willis Smith, the college sccepted a $50,000.00 loan from Simmens &
Harris, Inc., in Rocky Nount and gave as security five hundred shares of
Tomlinson Chair ¥enufacturers and the "right property in Durham. He re-
ported a good year academically, but the prospects for enrollment for the
next year were not encouraging. He estimated the 193031 income from
students snd other sources as $l1,500.00 and the operating expenses as

$68,800.0C,

I veritably believe lLouisburg College has the possibility of &
great mission to young women of lNorth (arolina Conference, especlally
to those of limited means. I confess, however, that I do not see the
golution to the gresent eorisis unless there should be forthcoming
some financial aid.?0

8831pid,
891044,

90president Alexander's anrmel report to the Board of Trustees,
1929=30, filed with the lMinutes of the Board of Trustees for 1929-30.
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ir. Alexander doubted that the Conference would operate the col=-
lege after 1930, for at the fall meeting of the trustees in 1930 he made
a statement regarding his personal situation and asked permission to
announce to the Bishop and his Cabinet his availability for a pastoral
appointment conditional upon the action taken by the Conference in regard
to Louisburg College. After a brief discussion of the possibility of the
contimuation of the college, lir. Alexander withdrew his remuest.’!

At the same meeting the Reverend A. D. VWilcox, pastor of Louisturg
Methodist Church, made a forceful talk in conveying the desire of the
Franklin County people to cooperate in an effort to save Louisburg
Ct'.vllege.92

The NHorth Carolina Annual Conference session at Henderson in
lovember, 1930, was a memorable one to those interested in Louisbturg
College. The Doard of Christian Fdueation, in Report Mo. L, declined to
ask the Conference to assume, at the request of the College Board of
Trustees, the indebtedness of the college. The Board offered as its
best suggestion that the trustees of the college "direct and handle the
affairs of Louisturg College to the best interests of all concerned."’3
A substitute report for Report Wo. L, was presented, signed by F. S. Love
and Ae De Wilcox, which authorized the Board of Fducation of the Confer-
ence to borrow a maximum of $12,000,00 to be used in the current

Iyinutes of the Board of Trustees, November 21, 1930.
93Journal, 1930, p. 50.
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operating expenses of Louisburg College. The report also authorized an
emergency appropriation "sufficlent to pay the interest and retire
twenty=five per cent of the principal of said loan or loans each year to
be included in the budget of this conference, beginning with this confer-
ence and continuing through this cuadrennium, and until said loan or
loans are fully liouidated." The substitute report urged the pastors
and people to cooperate and help in every way the "agents, trustees, and
management of Louisburg College to provide for the contimued operation
of sald college on and after Jamuary 20, 1931.%%

The substitute Report No. L was adopted, and the adoption gave
hope and encouragement to the citizens of Louisburg who attended the
Conference to pledge their support and cooporation.’s

In ¥Yebruary, 1931, the trustees discussed the matter of trans=-
ferring the lLouisburg College property to Atlantie Christian College in
wilson, North Carolina.”® In march, 1931, while the Atlantic Christian
College Poard of Trustees was in session on the Louisburg College campus,
Hr. Alexander offered his resignstion to the Louisburg Collepe Hoard of
Trustees, also in session in another building on the campus, stating
that it did not seem to him that the college could be kept open even
though "every effort humanly possible had been put forth."”T After ir,

9th1do 9 Po 510

95 Interview with ir. and ¥rs. Stewart Davis, Loulsburg, North
Carolina.

96yinutes of the Board of Trustees, February 17, 193l.

9T1bide
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Alexandert's statement, a Loulsburg citizens committee was heard as it
presented a petition urging continuation of the college under the aus-
pices of the lMethodiet Conference. A member of the Board of Trustees
suggested a plan whersby the town of Louisburg might lend its credit and
that the Reverend A. D. VWilcox, pastor of the Louisburg Methodist Church,
be offered & free hand in the management of details. Nr. Wilcox assured
the trustees thet finaneial relief could be had from the town,”®

President He £. Hilley of Atlantic Christian College; lire. Ne Jo
Rouse of Kinston, and lr. Braxton of Kinston, the visiting committee
from Atlantiec Christian College, went before the Louisburg College Board
of Trustees, after Mr. Wilcox's speech, with the proposition that the
Louisburg property be transferred to Atlantic Christian in consideration
of Atlantic Christiants assuming all the indebitedness of Louisburg
college.”?

The Louisburg Board of Trustees then accepted iir. Alexander's
resignation and decided that the proposition offerdd by the citizens of
Lovisburg be considered rather than that of itlantic Christian College.
The citizens were given until April 30 to offer a concrete proposition
for the continuance of the college. The Reverend A. D. Wilecox was
appointed financial agent of the colhge.loo

9Binutes of the Board of Trustees of Louisburg College, March 31,

1931,
?91vid.
1001144,
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On the date set, April 30, 1931, the town offered iits delinite
support to the college. The trustees accepted the propositlon and
elected Hev. Wilcox president of Louisburg College with authority te
reorganize the faculty and to teke steps to open the college in
septenber, 101
A trimte to Mr., Wilcox by a later mresident of Loulsburg College,
Dre Walter Patlen, wae as follows:
It is a rare soul that will not accept defeat when odds are secem=-
ingly insurmountable...He accepted with a will hard tasks that

others shunned, and spent his all for their attainment...fe had the
courage of a reformer, tgs vision of a builder, and the power of a

commanding porsamlity.l

The Wilecox adeinistration at Louisburg College is known for the
faith and enthusissm that kept a school alive during one of the most
difficult periods of ite history.

Armour David Wileox was Lorn in Ohio in 1868 and received his
education at Bmporia (XKansas) Teachers College and at Ottewa University.
For & vhile after graduation he was superintendent of schools at Onaga
and at Ottawa, Ransas. e was meking a lecture in sastern North Carc-
lina for the Anti-Saloon league of America when he declded to enter the
ministry. ¥e Joined the Worth Carolina Conference of the Methodist
Churek in 1906 on trisl and was ordeined Elder in 1910. He served some
of the largest pastorates in the North Carolina and the Western North
Carolina Conference. It was while he served the Loulsburg Church the
second time, 1930 to 1931, he made the appeal to the (onference that

1014 nutes of the Board of Trustees, April 30, 1931.
102 journal, 1937, pp. 8L=85.
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caused Lovisturg (cllege to remain open. "From that hour he Lecame ite
chaspion, and wes so recognized by the pesople of jouisburg and the
officials of the college that he was persuaded to accept the presidency
of the financially distressed college."i03

The Wilcox administration set five objectives: (1) the restora-
tion of confidence in the college; (2) an increase in the enrollment of
the student body; (3) the operation of the college without deficit; (L)
the esteblishment of a strong faculty; and (£) the lisuidation of the
indebtedness 1 Txcept for the fifth one the aims were larely
achieved by the time of Lr., Wilcex's death in 1937,15

Mre Wilcox's faith in the school was expressed in a part of his
firet annuel report to the trustees ulter he becaume president: "There
are no major difficulties except those occasioned by the defaulied bonds
and interest for the past year. The school is rumning smoothly. G&Stu=-
dente and teachers are working together in fine spirit. There is no
thought, not even the shadow of 2 fear, concerning the closing or the
lose of the school, 106

In the spring of 1931, the president presented the matter of make

ing the college co-educational, and the trustees approved on condition
of approvel by the Bishop and his Cabiret.107 The Rishop and the cabinet

1031!‘.‘ ®
10kreport of President Wilcox to the Board of Trustees, May 10,

1932,
105yorth Carolina Christian idvocate, LXXXII, March 11, 1937, pe 1l.

1061014,
10T yinutes of the Boerd of Trustees, May 25, 193l.
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approved the change in June, 1931.198  The new system resulted in a 62,7
per cent increase in enrcllment at the beginning of the second week of
the 1931=32 school sessions’%? on November 17, 1931, the Board of
Trustees adopted a resolution authorizing the necessary changes in the
charter so that it provided for the education of "young ladles and young
gonumn.'no

In the soring of 1931, NDirector Gilmore Ward Bryant of the South-
ern Conservatory of 'usic in Durham presented to the Louisburg Hoard of
Trustees the proposition of a working arrangement whereby the Conserva-
tory would take over the operation of the music department of the col-
leges The plan was approved, and the two schools entered into a written
agreement, for the 1931-32 school session.l11

In the written contract, the two schools agreed to the following:
(1) that neither school should surrender its separate existence nor be
responsible for any debt or liability of the other; (2) that lLouisburg
College should have control of the discinline and management of the stu-
dent bodies of both schools except where discipline by the Conservatory
was necessavy to the teaching of the music students: (3) that the Conser-
vetory would furnish the faculty for the Musie School and recuire the

1084 nutes of the Board of Trustees, June 30, 193l.

109president Wileox's report to the Boerd of Trustees, October 27,

1931.
110yinutes of the Board of Trustees, November 17, 193l.

1llyinutes of the Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees,
June h, 193.0
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faculty to give loyal support to Louisburg College; (L) that all fees and
charges received by the School of Music in excess of an amount two-thirds
of which would be sufficient to pay each member of the mueic faculty the
som of #1,000,00 in addition to board, room, etec., should be divided
equally between the two schooley (5) that Louisburg Collere would furnish
sufficient snd suitable housing facilities for the ¥uele Schoolsy (6) that
the eollepe wovld provide the use of 211 musical instrumente slresdy
owmed by the collepe, and that the Conservatory would furnish a2ll other
ingtyrumente; (7) thet the college wonld furnish the staff and fasulty of
the Conservatory without charge, bosrd, and room, and other incidentals
furnished members of the college faeulty; (8) that 211 diplomas, certifi-
eates, snd degrees should be awarded by the Conservatory aescording to its
riles and repulationsy (9) that Touisburg College would not conduct a
school of music during the existence of the contrect 112

For econcmiec reasons catalogues of the two schoole were combined
under one cover for the 1931-32 seseion. Roth school names were printed
on the front cover, and each echool had a2 separate section in the
catalogue.113

The Conservatory ocoupied the entire first floor of Wright Dorml-
tory with an office, teaching studios, practice rooms, and twenty
pianoa.llh A 1l four-vear music course wag offered, The course met

112wy ouisburg College and the Southern Conaervatory of Imeie," a
contract, in the presidentts oifice, Louisburg College.

1i3gatalogue, 1931=32, pe 93.
mfbid., De 96.
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the requirements of the State Board of Hducation, which recognized the
Conservatory as a Class A institution,115

In Jamery, 1932, the withdreawal of the Conservetory was dis-
cussed at an executive mecting of the trustees. Dr. Bryant had served
notice of intent to withdraw from the agreement between the Conservatory
and Louipburg College. Mr, Wilcox was directed to adjust a2ll matters
with the Conservatory in sccordance with the original agreement, and the
fonthern Congervatory of imsle withdrew after one year at Joulsburg
College.u6

In 2 veport of the trustees %o the Conference Roard of Wduneation
in 1933, stotistice showed a gein in enrollment of fifteen per cent over
1931-32,117 4 letter accompenying the suditor's report showed that nif
the support from the Conference which was plven in prior years had been
contimed durine the past two years, the operating results would have
ghown a surplus rather than a deficit, and also the teachers would have
been paid in full."18 gome of the facwlty members had been teaching for
several years without full aalary.m

Through e self-help plan, insusurated in 1935, students who would
otherwige be denied an education were anabled to atbtend Touishury College.

115 Ibido’ Pe 9%.
1161 putee of the Fxesutive Committee, Jamuary 25, 1932,

117neport of the trustees to the Conference Board of Edueation,
tiovember 22, 1933, filed with the Minutes of the Board of Trustees.

1101110,
mmum College ieport on Audit, 1931-33, pe 3lLe
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The plan cut a Louisburg College student's annual expenses to a minimunm
of §210.00. Each student accepted for ald was appointed to some work for
which he was suited, and each job of work was supervised by a faculty
menmber or a student. The supervisor certified to the bookkeeper how much
work each student did under his direction each day. The work was
arranged so as not to interfere with classwork and study hours 120

Bach student was required to do one hour of work for each of the
235 days of the school year; however, the school year wes divided into
three parts of seventy-eight days each. The student could work three
hours each day for the seventy eisht days if he chose to have duty work
only one third of the year,12l

Under the self-help plan; the college gave the student a reduce
tion of £90.,00 from the regular $300.00, the §90.00 being the student's
total earnings at thirty-eight and one third cents an hour, 122

The curriculum offered during ir. Wilcox's administrztion re-
mained approximately the same as 1t had been previously, except for the
courses added specifically for men students.

4 student could pursue the following courses in 1935-36: ILiberal
Arts, Science, 'iome Econamics, Pre-Teaching, Agriculture, Spoken English,
and Music.123 A student taking the Science Course could receive his

120catalogue, 1935=36, ppe 22-26.
1211pig,

1221044,

123Ibid.. PPe L7492



Be Se degree in any branch of englneering from North Carolina State
College by taking two years and one summer term of twelve weeks after
graduation from Louisburg College.}2l students taking the Agriculture
Course could receive a degree in Dachelor of Agriculture or Bachelor of
Science in Agriculture in two years after graduation from Louisburg
Collegest?5 Engineering courses were dropped at Louisburg in 1935 be=-
cause too few students were taking the course, but they were resumed in
1939,126

The Associate in Arte diploma was given for a completion of
sixty-four semester hours in one of the above courses with an average
grade of not lese than "O" snd sixty-four euality points.l27

The "E" had been dropped from the system of grading in 1935. The
letter "D" indicated "below average" with no ecuality points; "F" was
"failure." One cuality point was subtracted from the total pointe for
every "I reported.i20

It was found necessary to change rules of conduct after the col=-
lege became co-educational. Three of the added rules were as follows:

l. Students of opposite sex must so deport themselves in such a

m:;.thm can be no suspicion or eriticiem of thelr modesty or

2. Idquor drinking and drunkenness are so destructive to good
work in college that they are absclutely prohibited. Courtesy and

12b.1_:_b_1_c_!-., pe LTe
125!9_13. » Do LB.
126peport of the President to the Trustees, ay 15, 1935.
1271bide, po L74
1287bid., p. 39.
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kindness ere expected of all students in their relations with each
other and with the faculty and officers of the college.

3. Steeling the property of the college or of any %ndividtwl stu-
dents or teachers is considered ground for expulsion.iey

An athletic assoclation was organized and supported enthusiastie
cally ater the college accepted men students. A program of sports ine
cluding interclass and interscholastic contests was carried on under the
direction of the associatlion, with the help of the directors of physical
educations The college provided both interecholastic and intramural
teams in football, basketbell, soccer, volley ball, baseball, and
tennis,130

The enrollment of students Increased by about two hundred per
cent during Mr, Wilecox's six years as president of Louisburg College.

In 1930-31 the total registration was one hundred. In 1936, the enrolle
nent reached three hundred,l3l

Teachers' salaries were being paid in full by 1935. 4lso, by
1935, $1,068.,50 had been paid to teachers formerly employed but who had
not beon paid in full,132

At a meeting in 1936, it was the sense of the Capitel Debt
Committee that the entire college indebtedness should be tsken inte

mwo’ DD hHhO
13%atalogue, 1936, ps 7hs

131r1ouisburg College," a leaflet published by the college,
November 10, 1936,

132inutes of the Board of Trustees, Hovember 5, 1935.
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consideration. The committee felt that the total indebtedness of
§65,000,00 should be paid off,133

At the Anmual Conference ome month later, the Domrd of Fducation
recommended to the Conference that Loulsburg College be permitted to put
on & cempaign during 1937 to raise §65,000,00 to pay the total indebted=-
ness of the collepe, provided the plam be approved hy the Bishop and his
Cebinet, 13l pishop Paul B. ¥ern urged the raising of sufficient funds
for the retirement of all indebtedness and the redemption of the Durham
property piven by ke R H. Wrdcht, 135

On March 8, 1937, M¥r. Wilcox dled after a short illness. "iis
body wes prowing weary of the unrelenting demands mede upon it by a
strong will and an alert nind," wrote v, Patten, later president of
Loulsburg College.t36

Mre Ve Re Kilby of the collepe faculty was appointed scting chaire
man of the faculty until @ new president could be elected.t>7

The Nominating Commitiee of the Poard of Trustees presented the
name of Tieverend D. B, Farnhardt for the presidency of Loulsburg College
at the meeting of the trustees on March 19, 1937. lr. Farnhardt was
unanimously elected to take over his dutdes om April 1, 1937,138

133-19_15.

13bjournal, 1936, pe LS.

135yinutes of the Boerd of Trustees, March 19, 1937.
136;0urnal, 1937, p. 85.

137yimutes, ope cit., March 10, 1937.

138yinutes, op. cite, March 19, 1937.
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lir, Tarnhardt, the son of a lMethodist minister, joined the North
Carolina Conference of the Methodist Chureh in 1916, and was Presiding
Elder of the Fayetteville District when he was elected to the presidency
of Louisburg College. Ile attended Futherford College, Trinity College,
and Duke Universlty.l”

The first plans made by the Farnhardt administration included the
promotion of & campeign to raise {100,000.00, working through Presiding
¥lders and pastors of the churches in the North Carolina Conference,lid
' By October, 1937, only £30,000.00 had been raised by subscription and
donations. The trustees felt that "the failure of the campeign to pro=-
duce the desired results was the indifference on the part of mumerous
menmbers /members of the Conference asked to take the lead/ to properly
present the cause of the oollago."m The college faculty members gave
a total of §1,000,00, and the town of Louisburg underwrote {10,000.00 of
the total amount raised in the campaign.li2 Tt was the sentiment of the
Board of Trustees that "wvigorous representation should be made to the
Conference for some immediate and decisive action relative to college

i.ndebtadnon."m
At the Anmugl Conference in Hovember, 1937, the Louisburg College

Trustees were authorized and empowered to negotiate new loans from any

1hOyinutes of the Board of Trustees, June 10, 1937.

Udyimtes, op. cite, October 15, 1937.
121144,
1h31bid.
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source available, proceeds of which were to be used in the liquidation of
the college indebtedness; to execute all notes, bonds, and evidence of
indebtedness that nmight be necessary, to sell or mortgage the Durham
property; and to mortgage the Loulsburg property.ibl

The Conference Board of Fducetion presented at the same session a
report recommending (1) that the Conference assume moral responsibility
for the liguidation of the debt of the college in the amount of
$65,000,00, upon the understanding that the creditors would extend the
time for peyment under the oripinal plan until December 31, 1938; (2)
that the Conference approve contimuation of the present campaigns (3)
that the Conference approve selection of a member of the Conference to
devote full time to the movement and assist in the field of publie
relationsy (L) that the Conference add §3,000.00 to its budget for the
salary of the selected personj (5) that the Conference authorize the
college trustees to mortgage or sell the Iurham property, and mortgage
the Louisiturg property, the proceeds to be applied to payments of the
debts, and that the repular appropriation for the college be applied as
far as is necessary to the payment of interest on any new loan.u‘s The
report was MOptod.n‘s

Dr. Walter Patten, minister in the Conference, was appointed by

the Conference in the fall of 1937 as Public Relations Secretary for the
college to ald in the reising of funds for the college.il’

ikkJournal, 1937, p. 78.
11&5_12_1_9_., ppe 53=5k.
M&iﬂ., pe 3l.

147 journal, 1937, pe Lk
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Biehop Paul B. Fern gave his approval and opinion in a letter to
Ire Farnhardts

Te feel that Louisburg College has demonstrated its right and its

ability to continue to live and to serve. The Conference regards it
as an indispensable link in its educational work and has every
intention of standing solidly behind it until its financial diffi-
culties are completely resolved.

The Bishop reminded Dr. Foarnhardt that the Conference had taken
two steps: (1) it had set sside a sum to teke care of the interest on
indebbedness, and (2) had appointed Dr. Patten to devote full time to the
finencial stebilization of the colliege. "The outlook for loulsburg Cole
lege is brighter and more secure than st any time within the past two
decades," Dishop Kern mt..w

In April, 1938, the property in Durhem, given to the college by
lr. fe Me Vright, was sold for {50,000,00 cash to adjust the 2. 5. Toler
and Son debt of $6,091.56. The Toler Company accepted as settlement the
$50,000,00 plus §5,000.00, The compeny canceled the lien on the college
property and surrendered the Tonlinson Chair Company stoek.l50

During the summer months of 1938, ¥right Bullding and Fyenklin
Pullding weye renovated and work was begun on a new suditorium at the

rear of the soclal hall on the second floor of the Main B‘ui:!.ding.ls:l

Bretter from Bishop Paul ©. Kern to President Farnhardt not
dated, filed with the winutes of the Board of Trustees for 1938,

1h910id,
150yinutes of the Board of Trustees, April 1b, 1938,

151301&3‘1 e Ra.i.mter, ey _02. _01-!_0’ Pe 350
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In oxrder to cut food expenses and to furnish training for the
agricultural students, the Farnhardt administration bought a farm for the
college in 1938 at a cost of $4,500,00, To pay for the property the col-
lege sold a Johnston County faym which had been donated to the college
under the will of iiss Amy J. Stevens.152 vith §1,000,00 donated by
ire Te Be Upchurch in 1937, the college purchased cattle and farm equip-
nente1®3 known as the Macon Place, the property consisted of one
hundred and eighty acres, and was located sbout three miles north of
Touisburg on the Henderson road 150 Because farm expenses became a bure
deny the farm was sold in 1951 for {19,200,00. The money received from
the sale wns used to pay the farm operating fund defieit accumlated
over the vears of owmership and to set up endowment funds-—={12,071.15 to
onerationsy $1,000.00, the original investment plus the acerued interest
£1,703.08 as the Sally K. and Amy J. Stevens Memorial Service Scholare
ghips and £1,000,00, the original investment; plus the accrued interest
8L25,77 a8 the T. Be Upchurch, Sr., and dollle Johnson Upchurch
semorial, 15

The ¢ollege enrollment reached its hirhest mark during Mr,
Barnherdt's presidency. The report of the treasurer and repistrar for
1938-39 showed an enrollment of L30 students., Officers and teachers for

153R0P0rt, ibido, Pe 18.
151‘0&1;&10 s 1938"39. Pe 18.
155Roport on Examination, May 31, 1951, pe Le
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that year numbered twenty-two. The value of the property was $3L8,325.00;
the endowment was $58,875.00; the indebtedness was §$5L,000.00; and the
total capital assets were $L17, 620,00, 156

On April 1k, 1939, Mr. Barnhardt resigned from the presidency to
return to the ministry. The trustees accepted the resignation with
regret and unanimously elected Dr, Walter Patten as president. Iir.
Barnhardt accepted the work as Publie Relations Agent until the Confer-
ence met in November.l5T

156Roport of the Treasurer and Registrar to the Annuel Conference,
November 8, 1939.

15Tyinmutes of the Board of Trustees, April 1L, 1939.




CHAPTER VI
THE NEW LOUISBURG COLLWOE (1939-1958)

In his first report to the trustees after he became president of
the college in 1931, Mr. Wileox stated: "Feeling seems to be widespread
and deep seated that we ave in the beginning of an era which may well be
cellad the New Louisburg College."t

In 1939, with the largest enrollment in ite history, with the
indebtedness reduced to legs than half end no lonper a great problem,
and with facilities to make it capable of offering a greater service
than ever, louisburg College at last appeared to have entered the new

era envigioned by former President Wilcox.
I. THE PATTEN ADMINISTRATION, 1939-1947

Pr. Walter Patten, who became President of the college in 1939,
is remembered as the president who gave Louisburg College a {reedom that
it had not known before, who joined with the students to beautify the
buildings end campus, and who helped meet the needs of returning
veterans,

Born in Pridgeville, Delaware, in 1880, Dr. Patten spent his
college student years at Vesleyan University. His alma mater conferred
upon him the degree of Doetor of Divinity in 1928, and he earned his
Vaster of Arts degree later at the University of North Carolina, He
joined the North Carolina Conference in 1913. During his second time

lyinubes of the Board of Trustees, October 17, 193l.
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a8 pastor at Chapel Hill, the University Chureh was bullt. Including
funds raised to build that church and the money raised to cencel the
debt at Louisburg College, Dr. Patten directed the securing of nearly
hzlf a million dollars for the benefit of college students. He also
helped esbablish the Pitt County Wospltal while he was pestor in
Creenville, North Oaroling.?

When he became president of Loulsburg College, Nr. Patten planned
five objectives for his administrations
(1) The development of a permanent faeulty of high celiber;

{2) The tuilding of cuslities of scholarship end Christien
character in student lifej

(3) The improvement and expansion of the physical plent

(h) The gradual retirement of the collepe's indebtedness and the
acourmlation of an endowment;

(5) The development of en effective publicity department.s

The first of these objectives the Patten administration hoped to
accorplish by inecreseing the teachers! sslaries z2s repidly as possible
until 2 respectable standard was reached. To help promote the second
objective, the college gave 2 mumber of awards to students echieving
high stendards in scholaership. Financlal assistance wes assured capable
etudents vho were without finsnecisl support otherwise., In August, 1939,
the trustees approved a resolution to offer a fifty-dollar scholarship
to each of the top seven Franklin County high school students atiending

2journel, 1947, ppe 170=171.
33018-&! Ve Rairwater, Jre, 22. 9_1}.0’ Pe 36,
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ILouisburg College as a boarding student, and a similar twenty-five dollar
scholarship for day students.?

In hie 1940 annual report to the trustees, the president stated
that there was a higher grade of academle work beilng done, but the
adninistration realized the need of counsellors, He emphasized the plan
of having faculty members as counsallors in vocational, personal, and
scholastic problems. Dr. Patten took part in the counseling. Tt was
customary for Dr, Patten to have groups of students in his home on
funday evenings, and he was often seen on the campus working with the
students who were helping beautify the oampus.s

Tven though the enrollment had drooped in 1940, the administration
considered the deerease in favor of finer student morale and a higher
scholastic grade of work because it avoided overerowding.

Social fraternities were not permitted on the eammus, but scho-
lastie honorary fraternities were established Yo recognize and encourage
a high smuality of worke The Phi Theta Xappa, for students in the
Iiberal Arts Department, and the Alpha Pi ¥psilon, for secretarial stu=-
dents, were honorary scholarship fraternities with chapters organized at
Louisturg College in 1938 and well established by 19L40. Beta Phi ramma,
recopnizing individual ability in journalism, was organized at Louisburg
College in 19408

bpresident Patten's anmal report to the Board of Trustees,
Augmt 2. 1939.

S51bid.
Sgatalogue, 19L40=isl, pe 50
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In 1942 President Patten reported that there had been a special
emphasls on the physical improvement of the college. The improvement of
the fourth floor in Main Building and the installing of new furniture on
that floor, the building of two new tennis courts, the erection of a
flag pole on the front campus, lining the front walk with red brick,
bordering the walk with mimosa and lilies, the planting of many shrubs
and bulbs over the campus, and the employing of a housekeecper and a
campus worker went far toward making the third objective of the Patten
administration bocome & reality.’

By 1942 the college had emerged from the burden of debt "to a
state of creative li.vzlng."8 However, the school was in need of a larger
endovment that would provide an annual income of §10,000,00 in excess of
the income from the student fees. To have the endowment which would
enzble the college to conserve and gtrengthen the educational, financial,
and spirituel velues, the adminigtration planned the "Living “ndowment,®
whereby individuvals and orgenizetions were invited to malﬁa a gift of
four per cent interest on such prinecipal ss the finencial conditions of
the individwal or organization would permit.’

By the time of the Anmmal Conference ression in November, 1943,
only 420,000,00 of the €200,000,00 deht of 1937 remained. The Confer=
ence ~oopersted fMlly with the college tmsgheers and anthorized the

Tprgnident Pattente report to the Rosrd of Trustess, May 13, 1942,
81ouighurg College Bulletin, Vol. IIT, No. 2, December, 19k2.
PTuide
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trustees to secure the balance from churches and individusls.l® Credi-
tors were cooperative, and bondholders agreed to accept a fifty per cent
payment in settlement of their bonds. 1t

The Methodist College Advance was the effort of the North Carolina
Methodist Conference and the Western North Carolina Methodist Conference
to meet the financial needs of the Methodist Colleges of the state in
December, 1745. An sndowment fund of $900,000.00 was asked for the
Methodist colleges in North Carolina. Since five per cent interest on
that amount would yileld $45,000.00 per year, the churches were asked to
subscribe and psy anmmually the interest amount instead of paying the
principal., Loulsburg College was alloted an endowment of {150,000.00 or
$75500,00 interest annunlly.u "Never before have the two Conferences
so set themselves to strengthen their colleges. In this terribls age
the colleges need the Church, but it ls equally true that the Church
needs strong r.zol).ugea."13 For the College Advance program, Loulsburg
College needs were outlined as follows:

Femodeling Plant o+ « ¢ o o ¢ « o » o o $80,000

N“Emmtooooooooo~ooo. IO,CXD
Cymnasium, Laundry, Soclel Hall,

Yucgic Practicing Roomes Puilding. . « 100,000
D@rmt of CroundsS. « o o ¢ o ¢ o o 10,@
Endowment o ¢ o o ¢ o ¢ ¢ o o s o « o « 150,000
TMOOOOOOQO-IOOGOOOO $350,0001h

10 ouigburg College Bulletin, Vol. IV, No. 2, December, 1943.

l1vid,

125.11etin, Vol. VI, Noe 2, December, 19L5.
13pyiietin, Vol. VI, No. 6, June, 19h6.
i,
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Churches responded to the recuest that they pay amually
§7,500.,00 interest on the endowment prineipal. In 1947, scholarship
funds amounted to $13,46L.00. The "Iiving Endowment" decrecsed over the
yearsj; however, other endowments have been addod.ls

Thirty veterans of World War IT enrolled in the college in 1945
to study under the Ge. I. Bill of Rishts., Twenity of the veterans took
refresher courses, and ten did undergraduste work for ciredit. They were
pood students. The administration stated, "The majority of them might
be characterized by a desire to learn and to make up for the years of
separation from school. They have set a fine example of courage, integ=
rity, and enthusiasm to the repular student group,ml6

Since larger groups were expected during the following years,
special housing provisions were planned to accommodate thems In the
fall of 1946 two units were provided by the federal govermment for the
housing of ex-service men and their familioa; one unit of eight
apartnents was located at the west of the tennis courts; the other unit
of twelve rooms, arranped in suites of two bedrooms and a study, was set
up west of the 01d Well.:'

For some years the idea of conducting & summer school at Iouis-
burg College had been discussed by the president and some members of the
faculty. Until 1947 it had been decided that conditions were not favore
able to the project. A sumer school was opened on July 1k, 1947,

lSInterview with Mrs. Oenevieve Perry, lLouisburg College Treasurer.
16pulletin, Vol. VI, No. 5, April, 19k6.
17}3“11“1!\' Vole VII, No. 1. October, 19,460
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of fering liberal arts subjects and commercial subjects. The school was
conducted on a plan by which each student could concentrate on one
subject of study and do a full year's work in the subject.l® The
faculty was drawn from the college faculity, and the regulations were the
same 28 thoge of the regular sessions of school. The summer school
session wes not opened again since the 1947 session did not prove
financlally profitable.

President Valter Patten had many plans for the improvement of
Louisburg College, but they were interrupted by his sudden death on
March 8, 19L7. Less than two hours after he had returned home from
Raleigh, vwhere he had taken part in a ceremony awarding a posthumous
medal of heroism to an alumnus of the college, Dr. Patten died of a
heart attack,

0f the partially executed plans, Dr. Patten's most recent was the
one to bring the college into the Southern Association of Secondary
Schools and Collsges. Through Dre. Patten's efforts a2 building for
sclence with a cafeteria combined had elready been promised by the
federal govermment. Other plans included the enlargement of library
facilities, constructing a hard-surface circle drive on the front campus,
and a graded athletic field. e had announced that $100,000,00 of the
Hethodist College Advance fund would be used to provide a physical educa-

tion building with gymnasium, laundry, music practice rooms, and social
h&ll019

18pulletin, Vols VII, Ho. 6, June, 19L7.
19Bullotin, Vole VII, Noe S’ April, 194L7.
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An "esteemed and zealous president"0 had seen the college grow
free of debt and become ready to move forward.

II, THE HOLTON ADMINISTRATION, 19L7-1955

The president chosen to lead the college forward was ir. Samuel M.
Holbon, who recelved an enthusiastic welcome from the faculty and staff
on July 2k, 1347, when he was elected unanimously by the trustees. ot

¥r, Holton received his A. B. and Y. Ae. degrees and further
graduste credits from Duke University, where he was & member of the
honorary fraternities Phi Beta Kappa, FPhi Delta Kappa, Tau Kappa Alpha,
and PL ¥eppa Delta. FPrior to coming to Louisburg, he had spent
eirhteen years in administrative end teaching capacities at the Virginia
sta%e Teachers College ab Farmville, Virginia,?2

In response to the welcome given him by the trustees, fecully, and
gtalf, lr, Nolton outlined what he considered to be the functions of a
junior eollege: "Pirst, successfully to bridge the gap between high
gchool and & larger college; end, second, as a correlated function, to
serve ss & character-building agency." He stated that he wonld adopt a
polioy of gradual development rather then one of sudden change, and
pledged himself to & eereful considerstion of the college's pest and to
the intention of helping to widen its area of service,>

201etter from Rev. W. A. Oade to Boerd of Trustees, filed with
vinutes of Trustees, 19L47.

2lyimutes of the Board of Irustees, July 2L, 19L7.
22py1letin, Vale VII, Noe 6, July, 1947.
2310vid.
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The new administration, always emphasizing Louisburg College 25 a
Junior college and as a church related college, offered work built around
three major curricula: Liberal Arts, Fre-Englneering, and Commercial
Seience. OJtudents could take two-yesr courses leeding to degrees in
agriculture, dentistry, medicine, nursing, religion, or social work, 2l
The home economics curriculum wes dropped in 1948, but the basic courses
in home econamics were still offered.2>

The annual expensee in 19L8«l9 amounted to £575.00 for a boarding
student and {300.,00 for the day student. Free scholarships were granted
"upon evidence of need by the student's parent or guardien," but a labor
scholarship of §60.,00 was required of each person receiving a free
l:t:!u:sl&.:’thi.l.».26

The government-donated building to be used for the cafeteria vas
set up west of Iranidin Building in time for the 1948-L9 school session.
The old cafeteria space in Main Bullding was remodeled for the library,
and the old library cuarters in Frenklin Building were made into three
clagsrooms. The sclence rooms remained in ranklin Building instead of
being moved to the new cefeteria building as was earlier p].amwd.e"

Another physical improvement was begun in Mey, 19L9, when
representatives of the college trustees signed the contracts for the
constrction of a gymnasiume The building, finished in 1950, is a einder

2hicatalogue, 1948-L9, pp. 35-LB.
25yimbes of the Board of Trustees, April 1L, 19L8.

260stalogue, 19L8-49, ppe L9=50.
27B'\111ﬁtm’ Vol. IX, Ne. 1, Oc‘bOh.r, 19!‘80
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block, brick veneer construction located on the south side of the
athletic field, facing east, and contains a regulation basketball court,
a large stage, dressing rooms for the stage, locker rooms and shower
rooms for men and women, lounges, 2 lecture room, offices, and storage
space,  The pymnesium was a welcomed addition, for it was considered
useful to the college and to the commmity.za

Yr, Holtont's first enmzl report to the Board of Trustees in
Varch, 199, showed a decresge in the mumber of veterans emrolled. Mr.
Holton steted that in order to bresk even finencially the college needed
en enrollment of three hundred. In 1948 the enrollment was 359 (270 men
and 89 women). The enrollment in October, 1949, wae slightly lower than
that of the 194819 temm. The . T. enrcllment was forty-three as
compared with seventy-two in 19L8-L9 and 273 for the 19L7-L8 gession.
Yowever, the number of women studente had increased to one-third more
than the mmber enrolled in 19L8<L9, "right Dormitory, which had been
uged as a men's dormitory since 1945, was again prepsred for use as a
women's dormitory.2?

The president's report chowed his concern sbout the mumber of
ministers who thought of Louisbury College cnly as e place for students
vho needed major financial aesistance or students who had scholastic
difficulty entering any other cocllege. The North Cerolina Methodist
Conference was providing only #5,000,00 anmal support, an amount which

28y imtes of the Beard of Trustees, May 30, 1949,

29mlletin, Vole X, Noe 1, October, 19L9,
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Holton Gymnasium, 1950
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was not enough in view of decreasing enrollment and the increasing
muber of students reculring maximum financial assistance,3?

A feeling of umrest and uncertainty came %o focus in a meeting of
the Conference Board of Education with the college Hoard of Trustees on
Detober 5, 1951, when a long discussion resulted in the sugrestion that
the North Caroline Conference should declide onece and for all whether or
not the Nonference wanted lLouisbury Collepe, Tt was the final consensus
emong the two groups that Louisburg Collepe filled a definite place in
the Confersnce and had a distinet comtribution to offer, +

"We are building up a reputation for good scholastiec work," was
the emphasis in ¥r, Yolton's 1951 report. To support his stotement, the
president reported that two louisburg Collepe graduates in the 1950 class
at the "niversity of North Carclina were Phi Beta Rapps members; one
Touishurg College praduste in the class of 1949 at State College in
Paleirh was an honor student in Pharmacy; another in the 1942 class at
Tuke Tniversity wes an honor student in Engineering, A 1950 graduste of
Touishurg College wrote that the Tniversity of Florida had accepted all
of hig eredits from louisburg, and that he had been complimented by
officiels and advisors because nf courses taken at louisburg, "If I had
to start my college career over, I would prefer that start be made at
Lounisburg," he wrote, 2

30president Holton's ennusl report to the Board of Trustees,
Mereh 22, 19L9.

3lyinutes of the Board of Trustees, October 5, 1951.
32president Holton's Report to the Board of Trustees, April 10,

1951.
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It was in 1950 that the Worth Cerolina Conference of the Methodist
Church added a Sustaining Fund to its usual armual appropristion. From
19LS until 1950, the appropriation was §5,000,00 anmuelly. Tn 1950 a
Sustaining Pund of $15,947.00 was given in addition to the appropriation
of £5,000,00. 7Tn 1951, the amount of the Sustaining Fund was $21,221,00
in addition to the appropristion of 8%,000,00,7>

The Peverend W, A, Oade, President of the Roard of Trustees and
former Executive Secretary of the Vethodist College Advance, venorted in
1951 that the finaneial campaipn had netted approximately two miliion
dollars, with the larger amount of money comine from the Western Worth
Carolina Conference. Set up_ta sucoeed the Advance was the Methodist
College Foundation, or the United College Appeal, Yr. Cade sugpested
that any amount raised for the college should be through the Anpesl.
The trustees voted to support heartily the United College fpmeal in
order to gain $500,000,00, the minimum amount estimated necessary to
bring the eollege to & physieal condition that would warrent aceeptance
by the Southern Associztion of Golleges and Secondary Schools,3l

Lonishure Collepe was adwmitted to the Southern Association at the
anmmuel meeting of the Asscciation held in Memphils, Temessee; Novem=
ber 29, 1952, Recognition civen by Duke University, The nivereity of
North Cerolina, ‘Fast Carolina Collere; and other leading senior colleges
of the state was influentisl in the new recognition,3’

33Int.erviuw with Mre. Cenevieve Perry, Loulsburg College Treasurer.
3"‘“".‘!1“.' One ;‘_’.__t_o. October 2‘&, 1951.
353\!1101‘4_19 Vol. IIII’ lioe 2’ chublr, 1952.
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The Conference appointed Board of Visitors made its first visit
to Louisburg College in February, 1953, and recommended that the College
Trustees, the Conference Board of Education, and the Roard of Visitors
undertake to lead the Conference in coming to a definite decision on the
ocuestion, "What kind of college do we want Loulsburg to be and what pure
noge do we want it to nozr-w;'a"'36

At the joint meeting of the Conference Roard of Visitors and the
College Noard of Trustees a speclal committee agreed upon the following
angwers to the muestion posed by the Board of Visitors: (1) that the
eollege ghould contimie at its present location as a two=vear liberal
arts school, not precluding the possibility of a four-vear college in
the futurey (2) that there ghould be provided Trom the United College
Appesl an improvement of the physical plant to make the college livable
and attractive; (3) that the trustees avpoint a committee to formilate
plang for changes in the faculty and curriculum to enable the college to
serve more speclfically the needs of the towm and cdmtry churehes 7

Tn Octoher, the special committee recommended that the college,
in order to serve the towm and country chrches more specifically, add a
rerson to its faculty to teach in the field of Town and Country Church,
if possible for the 195L-55 session. The committee recommended that the
Hime of the new faoulty member be divided between teaching amd field
work, that the new course be treated as a separate department, that the

3&iimtes of & joint meeting of the Conference Board of Visitors,
and the college Board of Trustees, lMay 25, 1953.

3T1vid.
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Board of Fduecation and the college Ioard of Trustees be jointly respon-
sible for raising the necessary funds for the department. The Reverend
vade Coldston was employed for the 1954=55 school session to work with
pastors of small towm and country churches and to teach courses for
supply pastors of the Conference.3d

In adding the new department the Board of Trustees was very care-
ful not to add any course to endanger accreditation of the collage.”
Acereditation by the University Senate of the Methodist Church in 195k,
in addition to the acereditation by the Southern Association, gave Louis-
burg College full recognition among junior colleges in the South.l‘o

The physical appearance of the college underwent many changes in
the summer of 195L4. With money received from the Methodist College
Foundation, Wright Dormitory was remodeled completely to become "one of
the nicest dormitories in the state"j; Franklin Building was renovated;
the precident's office, the faculty parlor, the scciel hall, and the
avditorium in Mein Puilding were painted, and a new boliler %o give
sufficicnt heat and hot water was installed under temporary shelter. The
front ecircle drive was changed to a more convenient drive and was pavoc!.“1

The campus was more drastically changed by Murricmme Hazel, which
struck Iouicburg on October 15, 195k, and destroyed eightoen of the great

38rpid,

39uimtes of the Board of Trustess, October 12, 1953.

WOmy31otdn, Vols XIII, No. 2, December, 1952,
h3-Bullot.i._-n, Vol. XIV, No. 1, October, 195k.



138
oaks on the college grounds, including one 178 years old. Demage to the
buildings amounted to about five hundred dollars.2

President Holton submitted his resignation on October 21, 195k,
effective July 1, 1955, but the Board of Trustees declined to accept the
resignation at the time. A special commitiee was authorized to study the
matter and make recommendstions. In February, 1955, the comittee inter-
viewed college people individually and in groups and found "evidence of
the best year at the college in some time... " It was said that "there
is hardly anything wrong with the college that could not be remedied
through more students and more mc:w.""‘3

On February 25 the comaittee reluctantly recommended the accept~-
ence of the president's resignatlon end listed the following observations
which grew out of its studys (1) a need for someone to devote more time
to student recrultmenty (2) a need for more second-yeaor students; (3) a
need for more good publicity; (L) a need for a full-time maintenance manj
(5) a need for a student center: (6) a need for more attention from
trustee committees to the college; (7) a need for dedication and re-
dedication of the trustees to the intereste and welfare of the college.il

President liolton in his last report requested the trustees to take
some actlion to erect a new heating plent, to renovate lain Building and
Davis Building, to employ a full-time secretary to the president who

b2president ts Report to the Board of Trustees, October 21, 195L.

wﬁaport of the special committee to study the resignation of
ir. Holton, February 25, 1955.

Lhyoid,
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could also take care of alumni work, to employ a full-time maintenance
men and two assistanis, and to repair the president's home. The
recommendations were weopbod.l‘s

President Holton set up a faculty retirement plan and a plan of
insursnce coverage for all students. Upon his recommendation the college
employees were placed under Social Security benefits, all of the non-
professional personnel on the campus were placed under Vorkmen's Compen=
sation, and all students were covered by an accident pol:l.«:y.x"6

At their last meeting during Mr. Holton's administration, members
of the faculty voted unanimously to petition the trustees to name the
gymnasium the Holton Cymnasiume The trustees unanimously approved the
recommendation., TFaculty members requested the name because they were
"deeply conscious of the unselfish service rendered to Louilsburg College
by Samuel M. Holton as its president from 1947 to 1955 and keenly aware
of the progress made by the college during this period..."l7

III. THE ROEBINS ADMINISTRATION

Unanimously elected president of the college on May L, 1955, Iw,
Cecil Yayne Robbine assumed his duties on July 1 of that year.

Dre Robbins was born in Shannon, Mississippi, and received his
Bachelor of Arts degree from Birmingheme-fouthern College, his Bachelor

wPruident Holton's Annual Report to the Doard of Trustees,

’46Bullotin, Vole XIV, Noe 5, April, 1955.
LTyimtes of the Faculty Meeting, April 5, 1955.
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of Divinity degree from Duke University. lHe was awarded the honorary
degree of Doctor of Literature from High Point College and the honorary
Doctor of Divinity degree from BlrminghameSouthern college.ha

He was admitted to the North Carolina Conference of the Methodist
Chureh in 1932 and served as a pastor in the Conference for sixteen years
before being elected editor and manager of the Morth Carolina Christian

Advoeate, a position he held untll elected president of the college.?

Speaking to the trustees of his faith in the school and the
importence of Loulsburg College, Dr. Hobbins sald after his first month
g president, "I have no doubt in ny mind that the work here at Iouisburg
College is the biggest opportunity of North Carolina Methodism. I have
no hesitetion at all about throwing myself into the college and its
programe I feel that I am simply riding the tide, because I think the
tide had turned before T had taken over,">0

The first action tsken by the Board of Trustees for the Robbins
administration was to commission plans for a central heating plant, the
letting of a contract for the remodeling of Main Building at a cost of
§13,263,00, and approving an anmual incresse in faculty selaries. >t

For the building of the heating plant, the president and officers
of the Doard were authorized to borrow §25,000.00 at an anmual interest

LBpu1tetin, Vol. XV, No. 5, July, 1956.
L9yimtes of the Board of Trustees of Louisburg College, May L,

1955,
50yinutes of the Hoard of Trustees, August 2, 1955.

51“51“1“" Ope cite, April 1h’ 1955,
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rate of four per cent for five years and to execute a deed of trust on
the college real estete as oewrity.sz

The Board of Trustees also passed a resolution for the organiza=-
tion of a College Long Renge Flamning Committee to redefine Iouilsburg
College's mission and to make recommendations as to means Ly which the
college could achieve its mission during the years shead. TFighteen
menbers from the trustees, the college administration, faculty, student
body, end alunni association were appointed by the chairman of the Board
of Trustees, The members met for the first time on December 5, 1955, at
the collepe. Matters studled at the meeting included Louisburg College's
part in taking care of the enrollment, which was expected to double dure
ing the next twenty vears.>3 it a second meeting on February 20, 1956,
reports from the following conmittees were heard: Physicel Plant,
Facilitles, and Personnel Needs; Curriculumj Admission Recuirements and
Policles; Faculty Salaries, Qualifications, and Temure.>t

The Conference Long Renge Planning Committee held a special meet-
ing during the spring of 1956 and passed a special resolution that
"ghruck like an atomic bomb® when the news of the meeting reached lLouls-
burg.5® The committee, in a study of the church's higher edusation needs
in Yerth Csrolina, recommended to the Bishop of the Worth Carolina Confer-
ence of the Methodist Church the establishment of a fourwyear

52yimites, ope cit., August 2, 1955.

53pulletin, Vol. XV, No. 2, December, 1955.
shBullﬂti_&. Vol. XV, No. 3, January, 1955,
SSyinutes of the Board of Irustees, April 6, 1956.
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coeducational college at Fayetteville, North Carolina, and the moving of
Louisburg College to Rocky Mount, North Carolina, with the view of
consolidating it into a four-year college as soon e practicable. The
comnittee recommended that Loulsburg College be continued at Loulsburg
28 a junior college until such time as a college in Rocky lount could be
esteblished, and that the property at Louisburg be retained by the
Conference for educational and other church related activities.>®

After hearing of the possible move to Rocky Nount, the Board of
Trustees expressed the feeling that "it is better to establish a strong
junior college than to operate a mediosre senior college."5! Since the
Board of Trustees felt that the moving of the college was & matter for a
Conference vote, a speclal sescion of the Anmual Conference was called
for May 1lh, 1956,

From early April until Mey 1ll, feeling againet moving the eollege
wag strongly expressed in work, in writing, and in speech. Citizens of
Louishurg orgenized a "Keep Loulsburg at Home" committee which called
mass meetings and led the people of Franklin County in working day and
nizht to raise £50,000,00 for the removation of Devis Puilding, The
people raised $31,000,00 by April 6, and they promised the remainder by

Tuly.58
The louisburg Public School District Committee assured the college

trustees of its desire to cooperate in every way possible to acoulre

56ngpecial Resolution of the Conference Long Range Planning Come
mittee," Mimtes of the Colloge Doard of Trustees, April 6, 1956, p. L.

5T1bid,
58uinutes of the posrd of Trustees, April 17, 1956,
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additional land for the college. The Franklin County Board of Education
was recuested by the committee to do whatever was necessary to make
aveilable to the college the campus of ¥ills High School, the original
Male Academy campus, at a price and upon terms to be agreed upon when=
ever the college should need more lmd.”

Dr, James F, Hillman, president of the Board of Trustees, wrote
and spoke when possible for the cause of the junior college. As to0
making Louisburg College an academy, he wrote: "Any program of higher
education that would have the support of a major church denomination is
not adequate or complete unleses it includes a junior college. The
establishment of an acedemy would be 2 step in the wrong direction.n0

An editorial entitled "The lord's Will or the High Dollar?" spoke
the feelings of many people. The editorial stated: "There is an
umistekable sugpestion of a sellout in the plan to move Ioulsburg
College. And what is wrong with 2 small college in a small towm? Why
the frenzied effort on the part of the Church people to make big col=-
leges out of little collegee,; as though size in itself were a virbun?"sl

At the speeial session of the Conference at Ste. Paul Church in
0oldsboro, May 1ll, 1956, it was decided that Louisburg College would be
retained at Louisburg as a junior college of aceredited standing and

that the enrollment would be reised to four hundred or six hundred as
the need warrented. It was also decided that a four-year college would

59“1“\11?”’ Ope 9&0, April 11&. 1956.
60;rti61e in The News and Observer, April, 1956,
€lpaitorial in The Nashville Crephie, April 5, 1956.




bk
be estzblished at Rocky lount without the proviso that Loulsburg College
be moved, and that a four-year college would be established at
Fayetteville, Morth Carolina.®?

Judge Hamilton Hobgood of Iouisburg was a leader in the appeal
for the college to remain in louisburg. Judge Hobgood pointed out that
of the six buildings on the campus, four were built by the Pranidin
County citimens, The Methodist Conference, he pointed out, did not
erect a bullding before 1950, when the gymnasium was built, Judge
Marshall T. Spears of Durham, Mrs. Be B, Everette of Paluyra, Superine
tendent Suey Chandler of Currituck County Schools, and Dr. Jemes I
Hillman of Raleigh, all spoke in favor of keeping the college in Louis-
burge The Reverend D. ¥, Earnherdt led the movement to transfer the
collepe. Mr. Ve I, Smith of Bethel, Mrs. D. L. Fouts of Mt., Olive, and
Mr. Ce 8. Bumn of Nashville 2lso spoke in faver of moving the c:o:l.legc.63
The Reverend C. De Barelift moved the sdoption of the report of the Long
Tange Planning Committee, The Reverend C. P, Morris offered an amend-
ment moving that the Rocky Mount college be established without the
proviso that Louisburg College be moved, The Reverend ¥, i, Cade com-
posed the smendment that was adopted; deciding thet ILouisburg College
remain in Louisburg and that the enrollment would be raised as the need
nmnted.a‘

&Journll, 1956’ Pe 53
631044,
a‘rbid., De Shc
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A Franklin Times editorial warned its readers that lLoulsburg Col-

lege hed won a vietory only if the college remained what the people of
Franklin County thought it was. "Perhaps this has sharpened our aware-
ness of the importance of a Junior college, not to a community alone, but
to the young men and women it serves. We must not let this clarity of
vision become dim..."e have here at Toulsburg College the necessary
leadership=-truly capable and devoted men and women. Let us now join
with them for a greater lLouisburg Colleg«.\."65

The News and Observer of Raleigh supported the declsion not to

move the college. "The Methodists are right in desiring to expend their
educational programe There is a definite need for more colleges. Bub
abandonment of an established college would seem %o be a2 poor basis for

axpansim."“

The Board of "dueation at the regularly scheduled Anmuel Conferw
ence in June, 1956, reported that louisburg College enrollment during
the 1955-56 session was 3L43, showing an increase of more then fifty per
cent over 195L-55, Renovation of Main Building opened new dormitory
space for men. A central heating plant had been completed at a cost of
$125,000,00; indebtedness on the plant was $85,000,00, which sum was
covered by the anticipated United College Appeal funds, The school year
was closed with a surplus in its operations. The property was valued at
$1,260,000,005 endownent was §160,000400,7

E5raitorial in The Frenklin Times, May 18, 1956.

66p41torial in The News and Observer, Mey 18, 1956,

67J0um1, June, 1956’ DD 130"131.
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Davieg Puilding wes remodoled in the summer of 1957 at a cost of
about $060,000.,00, the arount including the $50,000,00 donated by the
people of Franklin County. The remodeled building provided for four
classrooms, eight offices for faculty members, infirmery facilities, an
apartment for the housekeeper, six apartments for faculty mewmbers, reste
rooms, and a darkroom for developlng pletures.

¥r, T, He Bartholomew of Loulsburg, a member of the Nollege Board
of Trustees, added to the athletie and recreation facllities through his
conbribution of cement and lighting firxtures to complete the pymmasium
basement rooms., He also donated the backstop for the college ball park.

Statistics for 1956-57 showed an enrollment of 366 and a faculty
and staff of thirty~two persons. The property was valued at
#1,500,000,00 and the eollege had an endowment of #188,000.00. The
indebtedness of the college was .‘580,000.00.68

fonstruction of a #200,000,00 student union-gafeteria bullding
wag begun in the sgpring of 1958, The building, completed in December,
1958, is located between Wright Dormitory and the ball field. The
building includes a dining room seating 240, two additional dining rooms
seating around one hundred, a modem kitchen, a soda shop and book store,
and a lounge and restrooms. The federal govermment approved a loan of

£180,000,00 at an interest rate of 2.87 per cent to be pald back over a
period of forty years. The college advanced §20,000.,00 of the

$200,000,00 as its assurance in the investment, plus §12,500.00 for move
able cquim-nt.69

68 journal, 1956, p. 159.
69 Tnterview with Mrs. Cenevieve Perry, lLouisburg College Treasurer.
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With every difficulby it has overcome, Loulsburg College has

growm stronger. Throughout its history, as plans for development were
nade leaders came Lo carry them out, usually after a period of struggle.
Present plans call for & new library building and a classroom-auditorium
building, both of which will cost apmraximately $L00,000.00. A needed -
endowment of $500,000,00 to increase faculbty salaries and to provide
scholarship aid is one of the chief goals of the present administration.



1,8

Benjamin N. Duke College Union, 1958

FIGURE 9



CHAPTER VII
THE FUTURE OF LOUISBURG COLIEGE

Louisburg College has endured from the past because of certain
strong characteristics. Because of the faithy loyalty, and determina-
tion of its supporters, these characteristics have been manifested in
every phase of the school history. As a result, the college today is
prepared to offer more to its students and to its community than ever
in its history. The school deserves the right to a successful future.

The Reverend William A, Cade, a member of the Louisburg College
Board of Trustees for twenty-six years and president of the DHoard for
thirteen of those years, recently made this statement concerning the
future of the college:

Through the 178 years of its honorable record of service as an

educational institution Louisburg College has earned its right to
a contimuing and larger service to the Church and state for the
years ahead. Louisburg has demonstrated its quality of immortal-
ity in surviving meny adversities.

Today the college is stronger and better equipped in its physical
plant and its capacity to serve the lMethodist Church and the youth
of eastern North Carolines than it has ever been.

The Conference has recently pledged to Loulsburg a larger and
continuing support as a junior college, and an enlargement of its
student capacity as the need may justify,d

President C. W. Hobbins has expressed the opinion that Louisburg
Collepe in 1958«59 is in its grandest year because of the sacrifices of

the pasty that the present administration and faculty are challenged by

lyiliteam A. Cade, letter to Miss Miriam Russell, July Ly, 1958, in
Louisburg College Library.
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the achlevements of the pasty and that the college has more friends than
ever in the North Carolina Methodist Conference and in the community,
more alumni proud to be identified with the college, and more support
from the senior collegu.z

Predictions concerning the future of Louisburg College stem from
the evidences that it is making rapid progress as a small Christian
Junior college. Although its life depends largely upon action taken by
its owner, the North Caroclina Hethodist Conference, it is expected that
the school will continue as a small junior college.

The 1958 fall semester enrollment was L02. When the Conference
decided to retain the college at Loulsburg, it was also decided that the
enrollment would be raised to four hundred or six hundred as the need
warranted. If the enrollment reaches six hundred, the college will still
be considered a small school.

If it remains a small college, Loulsburg College will contimue to
offer the student the opportunity to meke a good start in his academic
life, his social life, and his life's work before be enters a larger
school or the world outside of schoole. The family-like atmosphere and
and close faculty-student relationships which have always been character-
istic of lLouisburg College help bridge the gap between the student's
home 1ife and his independent adult life.

One of the faculty members, after teaching at the college for

seventeen yeers, has predicted, as to the social and cultural aspects of
the college, thats

2¢ecil W. Robbins in an address to the Louisburg College Faculty,
S@ptember 6, 19580
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seel more broadening and maturing phase would seem probable, yet
with never the loss of the characteristic family-and-close friendship

aspect of Loulsburg life, which studente, alwmni, and faculty have
cherished., Such a prospect would seem additionally dependable in
view of the many years during which by some miracle of perpetuation,
in spite of student generations of only two years, the so-called
Louisburg spirit has been preserved and shared.

"It is inconceivable that we should think of a program of higher
education that does not include the Junior college," Dr. Jemes B, Hille
man, chairman of the Loulsburg College Board of Trustees and Director of
the Division of Professional Service for the North Carolina Depertment
of Publiec Instruction, said two years ago in introducing his plea for
keeping louisburg College a junior collago." In his statement Dre Hille
man quoted freely from Dr. James Be. Conant, former President of Harvard
University, and Dr. Jesse P. Dogue, I'xecutive Secretary of the imerican
Assoclation of Junior Colleges.

Dre Conant said that "one~half of all college students should
ottend two-year aollogu.s Dr. Bogue said:

Because one-half of all students who enroll in senior colleges
drop out by the end of the second year, would it not be much betier
if they would enroll in good two-year colleges and complete some
well-organigzed curriculum? ...if the church related junior colleges
leave this field for senior :tatg-, public junior colleges will be
organized to take their places."

Since leaders in education find the junior college of such great

importance, and in view of the current plan for two new four-year

3Ruth W. Merritt, letter to the thesis writer, iugust, 1958.

l‘ermt Be Hillman, "The Junior College I8 Indispensable in Any
Program of Higher Hducation," a statement prepared for use in 1957.

5Tobide.

“roaa.
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Methodist schools in the state, it now seems logical that Loulsburg will
center its plans upon the goal of becoming an increasingly stronger
Jjunior college. It will be open perticularly to the deserving student
who cennot finaneially afford to attend four years of collegej to the
capable one who has not decided what his objectives arey to the intellie
gent one with the poor social background,

According to Dre Hillmen, the enrollment in junior colleges in
peneral is on the increase.! At Loulsburg the enrollment for 1955-56
ghowed an increase of (9 percent over the previous yearj 1956-57 enrclle
ment was an increase of 6,7 percent; 1957-58 enrollment showed an
inerease of 0.5 porcent.8

The increase in enrollment will make possible & closer screening
of students, thereby giving opportunities to the more deserving and
capable students., Higher selectivity also points toward continuing and
inereasingly high academic and socisl stendards.

Louisburg College as a Jjunlor college is useful to the senior
colleges of North Carolina. The reputation Loulsburg holds among lorth
Carolina senior colleges indicates an even greater usefulness in the
future. Approximately seventy-five loulsburg College seniors were
aceepted in 1958 at senior colleges. Most of those students are now en-
rolled at Dast Carolina College, the University of North Carolina, Yorth
garoline State College, Duke University, and itlentie Christisn College.”

TIvide.
BInterviu with John B. York, Hegistrar, Louisburg College.
2104,
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The college is also increasing ite usefulness in academic rehabile
itation. For the fall semester of the 1958-59 session louisburg College
accepted nine Duke University studemts who expect to return to Nuke.
There are thirty other trensfer students at ILonisburg at the present
times the majority are students who expect to return to North Carolina
stete College or the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill,10

To meet the needs of a stronger curriculum and szn increased en-
roliment, Iouisburg College needs an inerease in anmual support and
£1,070,000,00 for building purposes.l

The North Ceroling Wethodist Conference now appropriates
$61,900.00 annually. An inerease to £100,000,00 would brine the average
faeulty solavy from $l,078.00 to £L,B800.,00 and ensble a teacher pension
plan to be started. The inerease in salary and the pension plan would
help secure faoulty personnel.

The present campus is valued at #1,750,000,00. Sinee 1950 a
gymnasium eosting #150,000.00, 2 central heating plant costing
£135,000,00,and 2 cafeteria-student unien building eosting $200,000,00
have been tuilt, In addition, the following buildings are needed so
that the school can operate more effectivelysl?

101pia,

11rouisbury College Boamd of Trustees, "hat You Should Know About
Louisburg College," a leaflet, 1958.

121p44.



(1; Iibravy building, books and furnishings « « « « » § 200,000
(2 Auditorium and muhiﬂgﬂ e 5 v o o o s s 0 8 275,@0
(3) Dormitory and furnishings « o« o ¢ ¢ s ¢ o o ¢ o o 3&,@
(h)mm-ocooooooooooooooo-o 30,000
(5) athletic field and development of pgrounds . « « 120,000
(6) Funde for Cafeteria « o« o ¢ ¢« o ¢ 6 ¢ o v 6 0 o o 30,000
(7) pavis Building (Franklin County hes contributed
850,000) ® e % 5 @ s s 0 s s s s 0 e s 4 e s e 15,000
(8) President's OM@e o« o o ¢ o ¢ ¢ o o o o ¢ ¢ ¢ o & hO!OOO
81,070,000

To expand to five hundred boarding students, $350,000,00 would be

needed for a dormitory and $100,000,00 for a classroom addition.13

Vost valuable in the future of the college are ite idecls and the

success with which it holds to those ideals.

The present statement of ideals is as follows:

(1) Christian Character

{2) Sound Scholarship

(3) Broad Culture

(L) Social Efficiency

Toward these objectives the educational program of the collepge

attempts tos

§1) Encourage the search for truth and besuty.

2) Build for physical and mental health through clean sport,
wholesome recreation, and the wise use of leisure time.

(3) Offer an opportunity to study toward a libersl education in
arts and cciences, and toward proficiency in a career,

(L) lead toward the individual student s esvablishwent of a set
of Christian Values for his enrichment and the awareness
of social responsibilities.

Since its beginning, Louisburg College has had its strength in

being & small Christian college. Its future liez in the same strength,

and a determination to maintain high academic and social standards.

Bruid.
hyouisburg College Catologue, 1958-59, pe 2.
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Southern Historicael Collection, University of North Carolina Library.

Louisburg Collepe Board of Trustees Vimutes, 1927-56, including reports
of college presidents to trustees. Fresident's Office, Louisburg
College.

Louisburg College Ixecutive Committee, Board of Trustees. limutes, 1923=-
1956,

Louisburg College Report or Audit, 1931-33; June 30, 19383 May 31, 1951.
Treasurer's O0ffice, Loulsburg College.

Louisburg College and the Southern Conservatory of imsie. Contract,
1931, President's Office, Louisburg College.

Merritt, Ruth W. Letter to Miriem Russell, August, 1958.
¥. UNPUBLISHED MATERIALS

Franklin County. Books 1, 63, 88, 217, 268l. Louisburg: Office, Franke
1in County Reglster of Teeds.

Hillman, James e "The Junior College Ie Indispensable in Any Progrem
of Hipher Education." 1957. (Mimeographed.)

Malone, Anna Fuller. Pageant for Sescui-Centennial Celebration, 1929.
Typed copy in scrapbook of Je. ©. Halone, Loulsburg.

Rainwater, Rolend ¥, Jr. "The Contribution of louisburg College to
Christian Bducation with Special Reference to the Half-Century,
1889=1939." Unpublished Master's thesie, Iuke University, Durham,
North Carolina, 1943.

Reynolds, James W. and Seaton, John L. "Report of survey," Louisburg
College, May, 19’480 (lﬂ.mograptwd.)

Puffin, Thomas and William He "Opinion upon the Bonds Offered by the
Louisburg Female College," President's Office, Louisburg College.
July 2L, 192k
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1778
1779

1785

1787
1802
1805
1805-1600
1809=1016

1810

1813
161k

181h=-1821
1816~1820
1820-1822
1821-162l;
1823

182}=1631
1824=-1825
1826<1827
1828~1830
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APPENDIX A

SIGNIFICANT DATES

Bute County divided into Franklin County and Warren County.

Land purchased for establishing the town of Louisburg,
including the Town Common later used as school property.

The first meeting of the Methodist Conference of lorth
Carolina at Creem Hill Flace, Louisburg.

First Charter granted for establishing Franklin Acadengy.
Second Charter granted for establishing Franklin Academy.
Franklin Male Academy opened, January l.

Natthew Dickinson, first preceptor of the Academy.

(with exception of 1810) Davis H. Meyhew, prineipal of lale
Aeldm .

James Bogle, principel of Male Acadeny.
Library established.

Franklin Femsle Acadeny added.

Franklin Female Academy building erected in west grove of
Town Commone

iiss Harriet Partridge, first precepiress of Franklin Academy.
John Be. Bobbitt, principal of Male Academy.

Fitch Theeler, principal of Male Acadeny.

¥iss Ann Benedict, prineipal instructor of Female Academy.
Ceorge Perry, principal of Male Acadeny.

Miss Mary Ramsey, principal instructor of Female Academy.
Adcdison White, principal of lale Academy.

Eliah Brewer, prineipal of Male Academy.

Charles Applewhite 11ill, principal of lale Academy.
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1832-18L3
18L3-1855
18131856
1855
1856
1857

1857-1858
1858-1859
1859-1861
1861
1862-1865
1365

1866
1866-1869

1869
1877
1878
1839

13891
1394=1896
1897=1906
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lirs. John B, Bobbitt (Mise Florence Partridge), principal of
Female Academy.

John B. Bobbitt, principal of Male Academy.
Asher Ray, principal of Wale Acadeny.

¥rs. Jene Ae. Ray, prineipal of Female Academy.
Louisburg Female College Company charterad.
Matthew Davis, principel of Male Acadeny.

New building (present Main Building) erected as college
building.

James P. Nelson, first college president.

Je Je Avirett, President.

Columbus Andrews, President.

College property sold to clear indebtedness.
James Southgate, President.

College and Academy closed for few dayes during spring while
buildings and grounds were occupied hy Union Army.

College re-opened in January.

Te Mo Jones, President. Creensboro Female College moved to

Louisburge

College closed, while Academies continued to operate.
College re-opened, with F. L. Reid, President.

College closed, I'ranklin Acadeny continued.

College property sold to Louisburg Town Commissloners.
College re-opened by Se De Bagley, President.

The Sea=pift and Neithean Literary Societies organized.
College property bought by Washington Duke of Durham,
Je Ae Creen, President.

Matthew Davis, President, and his daughter, Mrs. Ivey Allen,
business managere



1915
1917=1920
1917
1918
1920=1922
1922-1929
1923
192l
1926

1927

1928

1929-1931
1930

1931

1931-1937
1931
1931=-1932
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First issue of The Collegian, a magazine published cuarterly
by the two literary socleties.

Urse. Ivey Allen, President.

College given to the North Carolina Conference of the
¥ethodist Churech l"y lre Be Ne Dukee.

Davis Building erected.

College reorganized zs a junior college.

Franklin Swindell Love, President.

President's home erected.

College Student Covernment organized.

L. Se lingsey, President,

Arthur ¥W. lohn, President.

First issue of the college annual, The Oak, published,
West Wing added to Main Building.

Pattle Julia Wright Memorial Puilding (given by R. H. "right)
dedicated on November 23.

Franklin Building erected.

Female Academy building turned.

Main Bullding pertially destroyed by five on December S.
College accredited by State Department of Fublic Instruction.

Clark Conrad Alexander, President.

Ne O Ammual Conference of the Methodist Church in Henderson
voted contined operation of the college.

Trustees decided against transferring Louisburg College
property to Atlantic Christian College in consideration of
Atlantic Christisn's assuming all indebtedness of Louisburg
College.

Aymour David Wileox, President.

College made co-educational,

Southern Conservatory of ilusic operated at Louisburg College.



1935
1937=1939
1938
1939-1947
1943
19k7
1947=1955
1948

1950
195k

1955

1957
1958
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Selfe-help plan inaugurated,
De E. Barnhardt, President.
Auditorium built at back of Main Building.
Dre Walter Patten, President.
First issue of the school paper, The Columns.
Summer School.
Samuel Mo Holton, President.
Government-donated building set up as Cafeteria west of lain
Building.
Main dining room remodeled for the librarvy,
Oymnasinm erected,

wpight Darmitory remodeled completely.
Franklin Puilding renovated.

Cecil W. Robbins, President.

The North Carclina Methodist Conference at a speclal session
decided to retain Jlouisburg Collspe at Louisburg as a junior
college instead of moving the eollege to Rocky Mount as &
mecleus for a new four-yvesy college.

Louisburg College Hurricanes won annual North Carolina Junior
College Tournament for first time.

Main Building renovated.

Central heating plant completed.

Davie Bullding remodeled,
Student Union-fafeteris bullding erected,.
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CHARTER 1787
in Act to Erect and Establish an Academy in the county of Franklin,

Whereas the establishing an Academy in the said county for the
education of youth will be attended with great advantages to the State
in general, and the county of Franklin in particular:

I. Be it therefore enacted by the Ceneral Assembly of the State
of North Carolina, and it is hereby enacted by the authority of the same,
That Doctor John King, William lLancaster, Joslah JLove, Benjemin Seawell,
Robert Coodlow, Fobert Bell; Jorden Hill, Francis Taylor, Hugh Hays,
William Creen, Thomas Stokes and Doctor Wiliiam Varell, Esquires, be and
they are hereby constituted and appeinted Trustees, with full power and
authority to receive into their hands and possession, all monies and
other property which heve been or hereafter may be subscribed for the
purpose of erecting an academy in the town of lLewisburg in the county
aforesaid by the name of Franklin academy, and the said Trustees and
their successors shall be able and capable in law to ask for and demand,
receive and possess of the several subscribers all sums by them respec-
tively subscribed; and in case of refusal of any of them to pay the
same, to sue for and recover by action of debt or otherwise, in the
name of the Trustees, the sum which such person so refusing shall have
subsceribed, in amy jurisdiction having cognizance thereof, and the
monies when collected and received to be applied by the said Trustees
or a majority of them towards paying for the house already contracted
for to be erected in the said town, to contract with and employ a
Tutor or Tutors, and to perform every act or thing that they or a
majority of them shall think necessary and expedient for the advancement
of the said scademy, and the promotion of learning therein.

II. And be it further enacted by the authority aforesaid, That
the Trustees herein mentioned, shall previous to their entering on the
execution of the trust reposed by this Act, give bond to the court of
the county, parable to the Chairman and his successor, in the sum of one
thousand pounds specie, with condition that they shall well and faith-
fully account for and apply all gifts, donations, beocuests and monies
which they may receive of and by virtue of this Act for the purposes
aforesaid.

III. And be it further enacted by the authority aforesaid, That
if eny of the Trustees by this Act appointed shall die refuse to act or
remove away, that he cammot sttend the dutles of his appointment, the
remaining Trustees may appoint snother or others in his or their stead,
who shall exercise the same powers as Trustees appointed by this Act,
and when met together in said town shall have power and authority to
elect and constitute one or more Tutor or Tutors and a Treasurer, and
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also to make and ordain such rules and repulations not repugnant to the
laws of this State for the well ordering of the students, their morals,
studies and academical exercises as to them shall seem meet, and to give
certificates to such students as shall leave saild academy certifying
their literary merit: Providedy They shall not on any account confer
any degree such ag Bachelor or Master of Arts, or Doctor in any faculty;
in general they shall and may do all such things as are usually done by
bodies corporate and politiec,; or such as may be necessary for the promo=-
tion of learning and virtuej; and the said Trustees or a majority of

them are hereby impowered and shall have lawful authority to remove the
Tutor or Tutors, Treasurer or any of them if they shall find it necessary,
and on the death, resignation or refusal to act of any of them, to
appeint and elect others in the stead of those dhplacod, dead or refuse .
ing to act.

IVe And be it further enacted by the authority aforesaid, That
the Trustees by this act appointed or a majority of them and their
successors, shall meet anmually on the second londsy in December in each
and every yesr, or at any other time they may find more convenient, and
elect a proper person out of their own body to preside for the term of
one year, who may convene the Trustees at any time he may find it
necessary. rProvided always, That he shall give ten dsys previous notice
of such meetingsj and that the President and Treasurer shall be chosen
on the said second Vonday in December unless in cases of unavoidable
accident,

Ve And be it further enacted by the authority aforesaid, That
the Treasurer of the said board of Trustees shall enter into bond with
sufficient security to the Trustees, conditioned for the faithful dis-
charge of the trust reposed in him by this Aetj and that all monies and
chattels that shall be in his hands at the expiration of his office,
ghall be inmediately paid into the hands of the succeeding Treasurer;
and every Treasurer shall recelve all monles, donations, gifts, bequests
and charities that may belong or accrue to said acadeny during his
office, and at the expiration thereof shall account with the Trustees or
a majority of them for the same, and on refusal or neglect to pay and
deliver as aforesaid, the same mode of recovery may be had against him
as is or may be provided for the recover of money from theriffe or other
public officers. (Passed Jan. 6, 1787.)
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CHARTER 1802
An Act to establish an Academy in the county of Franklin.
Whereas, The establishing of Seminaries of Learning, for the pure

pose of educating youth is essential to the happiness and prosperity of
the community, and therefore worthy of leglslative attentioni

“ppa |
Archibald Davia, W:lllinm I.aneastcr, Jomiah Pan-y, ;Jnnlur, Richard
Fenner, Ceorge Tunstall, Creen Hill, Villiam CGreen, Alexander raleont
and William Williams, Jjunior, Wsquires, and NMajor Jeremiah Perry, shall
be and they are hereby declared to be a body politiec and corporate, to
be known and distinguished Ly the name of "The Trustees of the Franklin
Acadeny," and by that name shall have perpetual successiony and they and
their successors, by the name aforesaid, or a majority of them, shall be
able end capable in law, to take demand, receive and possess all monies,
poods and chattels that shall be given for the use of said Acadewmy, and
the same apply according to the will of The donor; and by gift, purchase
or devise, to take, have, receive, possess, enjoy and retain, to them
and thelr successors forever, any lands, rents, tenements of what kind
or nature soever, in speclal trust and confidence, that the same or the
profits thereof, be epplied to and for the purpose of establishing and
endowing the sald Academy.

1lexander Taleoner
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APPENDIX E

ACCOUNT OF EXAMINATION OF FEMALE ACADEMY, 1820.%
LOUISBURC FEMALE ACADEMY.

The examination of the students of this insiitution closed on
Thursday the lst day of June inst. The Trustees attending this examina-
tion beg leave to submit the following Report.

1st Class--Composed of M. G. Somerville, K. A. Perceval, E. T.
Howze and A. S. Jones, were examined on Natural Philosophy. i G Somer-
ville was deemed best, E T Howze was considered next, the other two per—
formed very well and were preferred in the order of their names.

2nd Class--Composed of M. G. Somerville, was examined on
Chymistry. /sic/ It would be doing injustice to Miss Somerville to with-
hold the highest meed of praise for the handsome mammer in which she
accuitted herself on this science.

3d Class~-R A Perceval, ¥ T lowze, examined on the History of
Furope. These young ladies acouitted themselves very handsomely, and
were deemed ecual.

Lth Class—f ¢ Somerville, ¥ B Hill, J E Fox, were examined on
the History of (reece. This Class were very perfect and were deemed

ecual.

Sth Class~=} ¢ Somerville, examined on Rhetoric and acquitted her-
self very honorably.

6th Class--if 0 Somerville, R A Percevaly, ¥ T Howse, S I Jones,
J B Fox, and ¥ B Hille-examined on the history of America. M G Somer-
ville, deemed best, the rest very good and ecual,

Tth Class=-S L Jones, H ¥ E Hunter, M ¥ long, ¥ E A Taylor, A 8
Jones, H S King, A C Rawlings, and 0 Perry--examined on the Ceography of
Furopes M E Long, M E A Taylor, and H S King were deemed best and equal,
the others performed well,

8th Class—-i ¢ Somerville, R A Perceval, J [ Fox and ¥ B Jille
examined on the Ceography of the Vorld--iiisses Somerville and Perceval
were deemed best--the others very good and equal.

*charles L. Coon, North Carolina Schools and Academies 1790-18L0
(Raleighs FRdwards 2 Brougﬁ'fon,m)s PPe =98,
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9th Class==ii ¥ F Hunter, & L Jones, I ¥ Longy 8 H Jones, A S
Jones, i £ A Taylor, A Rawling and ¢ T Somerville--examined on the
Ceography of South America--iilsses S Jones, Long, Taylor and Rawlings,
were considered best-—-the rest good and eousl.

10th Class—-if ¢ Somerville, & L Jones, J & S Cutterbridge; J E
Fox and A § Jones--This class performed very well and were distinguished
in the order of their names.

11th Clags--M E Long, H ¥ E Funter, and C Perry--examined on the
Ceography of Asia, and were distinguished in the order of their names.

12th Cless—-i ¥ Long, ¥ B A Taylor, 5 H King, and § Sills——
examined on Arithmetie, and were considered best in the order of their
namese

13th Class==J A § Cutterbridge, ¥ & A Teylor, S H King, C T
Somervell=-The three first best and ecuale.

1hith Class—=i ¢ Somerville, E T Howze, R A Perceval, S 1 Jones,
M B Hill, and J £ Fox--examined on reading, spelling, parsing, &c. The
two first considered best in the order of their names--the others very
gOOd.

15th Class—-A G Rawlings, J A S Outterbridge, H M E Hunter, A S
Jones--axamined on Crammar, Parsing, &ce. The two first considered best
an /sie/ ecquale~the others very goode.

16th Class=-J A 8 Outterbridge, M E A Taylor, S H King, E M A
Fox, B Yarbrough, and ¢ T Somervell-—examined on the introduction to
Ceorgraphy, and of PFritish America--The three first excelled in the order
of theiy names, the others did well.

17th Class—-¥ E Long, ¥ E A Taylor, & H King, E i Fox, M Perry,
C Perry, © Yarbrough, and £ T Somervell--examined on Reading, Spelling,
Grammar, and Parsing--First named considered best. M B A Taylor, S H
King, second best and esual--The others very good.

18th Class—-} 8 lMassenburg, M R Thomss, E V longgun--axamined on
Parsing, Spelling, Crammar, and Abbreviations--i R Thomas best--the

others very good.

19th Class=-]l, D & Thomas, M & Fox, ¥ A Fox, M C Teylor and £ F
wymnne. This class of small children was examined on Reading, Spelling,
and Abbreviations. They all did very well, but L D 8 Thomas was
particularly distinguished.
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On Drewing & Painbing.

E T Howse, R A Percevall, M B Hill, end Jane E Fox, exhibited the
best specimens. M ¢ Comervell, H ¥ © Hunter, M E A Taylor, excelled in
Needle Work. R A Percevall, M G Somervell gave the handsomest evidences

of penmanship.

It would be doing a great injustice to ir., lLataste, who has had
charge of the music department, to withhold that approbation, which his
professional talente so justly merit. The young ladies under his care
gave the most satisfactory evidences of their progress in this elegant
branch of polished learning. The trustees feel it a duty which they owe
to the friends and patrons of this Institution, and a tribute due from
themselves, to remark that this examination throughout, gave the most
uneculvocal evidences of the oqualifications, assiduity and attention of
lirs. Bobbeit, the prineipal under whose auspices, the good morals and
regular diseipline of the students have been no less objecte of atten-
tion than their literary advancement.

The exercises of this institution will again comnmence on Monday
the 19th inst. under the care of lrs. Bobbett as principal. The music
will be puperintended by lre. Lataste.

By Oxder, Rob't A, Taylor, Sect'y
~~The Ster, June 16, 1820




172
APPENDIX F

COPY OF THE LOUISBURG FEMALE SEMINARY CIRCULAR USED IN 1851

LOUISBURG FEMALE SEMINARY,
Franklin County, North Carolina.

R s ey
REPORT OF
Miss for the Session of
She has been in attendance at School Days
mly " " ”" " "
Late " " " " "

Absent, Excused
Absent, not excused
Faults in Deportment
Faults in lanners
Faults in Dress
SCHOLARSHIP.
Perfects Cood. BEade. Failure
Recitations
The Studies which she has pursued this Term are those which belong to

m’ Louisburg Female m’ 1851’ Pe 1’ in Hawkins
Papers, Southern Historiecal Collection, University of North Carclina.
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CIRCULARS.
LOUISBURGC FEMALE SEMINARY,
Franklin County, North Carolina.

RSN

THE SPRING TERM OF THIS INSTITUTION will commence on the lst
Monday in Jamuary of each year, and close on the Lth Fridsy in May.

THE FALL TERM will commence on the lst Monday in July, and close
on the Lth Friday in November.

TEACHERS s

A. H, RAY,
Prinecipals.
Je As RAX,

Miss Bma W. Curtis, Instructress on Plano, and in Vocal Yusic.
iise R. Se Fairell, Instructress on Puitar, and in Vocal Wusic,

Drawing, Peinting and Calisthenics, &c.
Other Assistance as it may be needed.

PREPARATONY COURSE.

This course includes Spelling, Reading, Writing, Arithmetic,
English Orammar, Ceography and History; and Pupils must be at least 12
yeare of age, and well grounded in the elemente of these studies, before
they will be permitted to enter on the regular Course.

BOOKS USEDt-=fAngell's Series, Nos. 1, 2 and 3; Town's Speller and
Definers Smith's Primary Ceography, Morse's Schocl Geography; Emerson's
1st and 2nd Parts in Arithmeticj Parley's U. S. History, and Common
School Historys and Smith's Fnglisk Cremmar,.

RECULAR COURSE.

Pirst Year.
English Crammar, Smith's or Bullion's
Arithmetic, Emerson's
Geography, Yorse 's
History, Viorcester's
Nate. Philosophy, Phelps 's

Botany, Phelps's



Second Year.
Arithmetic Completed, Emerson's
Algebra Commenced, Davies'
Rhetorie, Newman's
hstronony, Blake's
Physiology, Cutter's
Chemistry, Phelps's

Third Year.
Moral Philosophy, Wayland 's
Algebra Completed, Davies!?
Ceometry Cormenced, Davies!
Logie, iledge 's
Flements Criticin, Kames !

Ceography of the Heavens, Burritt's
Fourth Year.

Ceometry Completed, Davies!

Astronomy Completed, Burrittts

feology, Hitchcock's

Hental Philosophy, Abercrombie's

Fvidences of Christianity

Paley's or Alexander's

Orthography, Reading, Pemmanship, Composition, and Practical
Fxerecises in Arithmetic and CGrammar, will be pursued throughout the
courses

The Classes will be formed and the recitations arranged with
reference to this course, but pupils will be admitted to any partial
course that may not conflict with the regular classes,

EXPENSES .
Board, Washing and lights, per Session, $L0.00
Tuition in Preparatory cOurae, 10.00
Do " Bﬁgul“ 15.00
Extra Charges.
Music on Piano, 17.50
Do " Guitar, 17.50
Use of Instrument, 3,00
Sol-Feppio lesstns, 8.00
Drning and Painting, ;.gg
L}
Latin or creek, 7.50

Fuel for School Room «50

174
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Interest will be charged in all cases where payment is not
punctually made at the end of the Session.

The necess nses of a Young lLady pursuing the regular course
of atudiu,'m%%g % Text books, need not exceed $115 per annum,

Diplomes will be awarded to Young Ladies who have passed satis-
factorily through the full course of studies. Certificates to those who
have completed only a partial course.

EXAMINATION,

Ho Pupils will be received except with the understanding that they
are to remein through the term, and attend the examination at its close,
unless called away by sickness or other imperative necessity. The ixami-
nations are thorough and strictly impartial, and are conducted in such a
manner that neither Teachers nor pupils can know beforehand what part of
each study will be the subject of exemination. A Report will be sent to
Parents and guardians after the close of the Term.

BOARDING HOUSE.

The regulations of the boarding house are designed to promote
order and energy. Young ladies boarding in the family of the Teachers
receive those offices of maternal care and kindness which are needed for
their health and comfort; though under such restraints with regard to
manners, company, and the employment of time, as judicious parents know
to be necessary in a well conducted boarding school.

LIBRARY .

There is gemll but interesting and welleselected Library
connected with the Institution, which is designed soon to enlarge; and
the Library of the Principals, comprising a valuable selection of
Literary and Scientific works, will be accessible to students of the
higher classes, without extra charge.

DRESS.

o uniform dress is recuired; but % is considered very
desirsble and ie strongly recommended. es of clothing should
be marked distinetly with the owner's name in full,

LOCATION.

The tuildinge of the Institution are situated in a beautiful grove
in the most elevated and delightful portion of the Village. The resi=-
dence of the Principal is not more than 150 yards distant, but lying
without the limits of the corporation, and entirely remote from the
noise and bustle of the Town, combining all the real advantages both of
the town and country.
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INSTRUCTIONS FROM PARENTS AND CUARDIANS.

Parents and Cuardians are recuested to leave with the Prineipal,
written answers to the following euestions, vizs

1st.
2nd.

3de
Lthe

Sthe

What course of study do you wish your daughter or ward to
pursue?

That (if any) of the Ormamental Branches do you wish her to
take?

Do you lesve money at her disposal?

With whom, for what, and to vhat extent are you willing
that she should contract debts?

At whet Post Office may you be addressed?
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REPORT CARD, MAY 27, 186L.

Copy of the manuscript report card in the possession of Je. Ee

Malone, Louisburg, North Carclina.

¥iss Arma Richmond Fuller

Loulsburg Femmle College

Has received during this session, the following grades on her

studies, viz:
Bible
Definer
English Crammar
Natural History

Geography
Arithmetic

Vi v w1 v wn

Composition 5
Demerits None
Deportment 5
History 5
Music 5

Distinetions Eight

A% her final examination, she has received a distinction on English

(iramsare

Explanation.

5 denotes Perfect = l very good = 3 medium - 2 indifferent - 1 very bad.

A Distinection at an Examination is equal to ten on Recitation.

Taking into consideration Miss Fullert's age (being only 10) the

above report is unparalleled.

For such assiduity to study and elegant

deportment, she merits and receives the esteem, confidence and commenda=-

tion of her Teachers.

James Southgate,
President L. F¥. College.
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APPENDIX H

LOUISBURG COLLEGE STATISTICAL REPORT, 193k=1958

Year Enrollment Total Free VWork  Total
Date  Total Vets Others Charge Schrs Schrs Schrs Surplus Defieit
1934=35 194 7528L
1'91;-'3% 276 275 2,108
I

=

168% Only 29 men students in this number
321# Only 80 men students in this number
¢ Largely due to increase in Athletic Scholarships
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NORTH CAROLINA METHODIST CONFERENCE APPROFRIATIONS, 1940-1957

19h0 ® & ¢ ° e 8 & & 9 % P P T 8P O 8 e NN

190 o s s e s v o s e s v e b b b o
AOUR o o ¢ s s s oo s s s e B s s e a0
IS s s s v o s s v e e s s R
L I T
IS 4 s s s s s s v s e s v s e E e
WhE ¢ s s s v s s s s e s s b0 a s v s
9B o » v s e s o s s s v e e AW E A E LN

19h9 . 8 8 & % ° 8 O 8 & 4 e & 6 s & 0 2 00

1950. @ 8 & & & o ° 4 0 4 8 B O b e O 0 s o

1951 ® & 2 0 0 8 6 & 9 P e " " 2 " O e s e °

RN AR AT T A I T R pe
1983 o s s s o s s s e n e s e e b
1 I ST S I S
1955 ¢ o+ o o s s s s s s e s s b e e s
1986 ¢ ¢« + ¢ s s s o v s e BB e B s e s b

195?.."....."l.......'.

# The Appropriation and Sustaining Fund became
contimued to be called the Sustaining Fund.

v e
. o
o
. e
.
one

L

L

.

$ 1,588
2,006
2,586
3,098
3,591
55000
54000
55000
55000
5,000

5,000
15,947

5,000
21,221

22,736
23,000
29,130
36,115
83,960
56,960

fund in 1952 and

% Part of the amount was in payment of the 1955 Fund,
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FACUITY AND ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL, 1958-59

RObbim, Cecil
Perry, Cenevieve
York, John
Arieil, william S.

Blumenfeld, Amn
Cooke, Ruth

Coor, Zelda

de Hart, S. Allen
de Hart, Flora

Finch, Mary
Foster, Sarah

Goldston, Vade
Cretter, V. C.
Johnson, Adelaide
Johnson, Tlizabeth
Kornegay, Julia
McDonald, Valter
Merritt, Ruth
Mitchell, Bessie
Modlin, Rachael

Moon, Isaac
Moon, Nellis
Nease, Felton
Nease, Pauline
Patterson, Thomas

Pearce, ILila
Pruette, C. Ray
Ruesell, lMiriam
Snydery Crady
Snyder, Yary E.
Stanley, Robert
Stevenson, Helen
Vause, Edward
Wicksy Ne Je

Winberry, Herman
Yarborough, Flsa

Office

President
Treagurer

Dean and Registrar
Coach

Secretary to
President

Dean of Men
House (ounseloy

Secretary to Dean
and Registrar

Director of
Public Relations

Dietitian

Dean of Women

Nurse

House Counselor

Superintendent
of Buildings

Chaplain
Librarian

Subjects
Taught

English

Mathematics

Fhysical Education
and Hesalth

Forelgn Language

Fhysical Edueation
and Health

History

English and Foreign
Language
English and Religion

Musie

Religion

Social Scilences
Business
Mathematice

Art

Religion
English

Business

Psychology and Musiec

Business
Bioclogy
Blology

Chemistry and Physice

English
Mathematics

Business
English

130

Years of
Service

6 br ol
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ADVANCED STANDING CERTIFICATE

e out in quadruplicate. Send the original and one copy, together with the transcript, to the Office of Registration.)
" ; s : : ;
Do, Juswss Chardes . __is admitted to North Carolina State College in the
Age amd Pol, Chemistay

leminbrg “SLlogs

. o —curriculum, with the following college credits from

(Name and Address of Institution

}1" at;‘mt!»:»i{c.r;‘. e ;fwr:\ers_feﬁrs_ir_)r_ogg-'ﬁh B8)< ) .\f"’”'f _M,ﬁ,_,,,,_m
atslog Number 1 Alrlg(;:f " Subject | :ﬁ;:i:;gr “ Remarks High School
i "“———‘—--—k.;-—“-_' ‘.7; g i ol ’-‘ T “ Troey B i V i im ‘Wm. “1
! éar é | G poad tion i ERG 11 | Graduated
! 8ar 6 Osnerul 7Zc0logy | 20 |
4 G s }Mh. fow gy | W ' W | Date
¥»¥ % 2 | Piys. kde . M |
vt W 3 lmw. Oovh. Syet., PO 200 | , S TR
Zeso a‘ 3} | Eecnomise | BC ¥R | o .
g, (| § |den, Imowg., Chem  CH 800 | | Sublucts Ui
u ( 5 10‘-1"”&* Cuad on w ‘ l English h
u 1 | rye, sd. ’™ |
&ab S | Kiem, Oowwmen MG 303 | Algebra 3
i(iﬂ.m.& Pr.Rood ¥, l Plane Geom. i
8a | 3 | cemeel tetmy | o 0L00 B
' ba Lk |Quen. soslywls cH ) | | Y
a = |Rosoves h.8. W ! | Am. Hist 1
.‘ m f." w. \ " m ‘ Science ’
P éaa | 6 |Eaglich Mleetiwe | dvioe 1
o 8an 6 | Hhumendtiss Bhﬂr i Fremah ?
-8  daa( | | hard i
& | ; P, i
ot | Coum, xg
; 22 | vee Elsctives l Iriver od,
'w | Total w
: Crandatey Klootive |
| Agwiownl ternl hAngbive f Entrance Deficiencies:
(rem.) M 3 | Pt mpileeils g degree | %olid iecmotry o
I;
Total Credits |
1;: PoLnee f efsmved at Loadsbuy

dits allowed toward advanced standing are conditional on the student’s doing Summary of
ry work in this institution. College Credits
MMENDATIONS REGARDING FUTURE WORK: Beqs el for
graduation o0 TS
{ Total
credits
allowed = S

number of
credits to
| be earned for

|
I Minimum
l graduation e

eV R . 6e23-58



